CRDENTIA CORP Form 4

July 11, 2008

FORM 4

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF

SECURITIES

OMB Number:

3235-0287

Expires:

January 31, 2005

0.5

Estimated average burden hours per

OMB APPROVAL

response...

if no longer subject to Section 16. Form 4 or

Check this box

Form 5 obligations may continue. See Instruction

Filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Section 17(a) of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 or Section 30(h) of the Investment Company Act of 1940

1(b).

(Print or Type Responses)

1. Name and Address of Reporting Person * TONEY C FRED

2. Issuer Name and Ticker or Trading Symbol

5. Relationship of Reporting Person(s) to

(Check all applicable)

Issuer

(First) (Middle) CRDENTIA CORP [CRDT]

_X__ Director

(Last)

(City)

3. Date of Earliest Transaction (Month/Day/Year)

10% Owner Other (specify Officer (give title

500 THIRD STREET #535 07/09/2008

(Zip)

4. If Amendment, Date Original

6. Individual or Joint/Group Filing(Check

Applicable Line) _X_ Form filed by One Reporting Person Form filed by More than One Reporting

Person

below)

Filed(Month/Day/Year)

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107

(Street)

(State)

Table I - Non-Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned

1.Title of Security (Instr. 3)	2. Transaction Date (Month/Day/Year) 07/09/2008	2A. Deemed Execution Date, if any (Month/Day/Year)	3. Transaction Code (Instr. 8)	4. Securities omr Disposed of (Instr. 3, 4 and Amount 2,500,000	of (D) ad 5) (A) or	Price	5. Amount of Securities Beneficially Owned Following Reported Transaction(s) (Instr. 3 and 4)	6. Ownership Form: Direct (D) or Indirect (I) (Instr. 4)	7. Nature of Indirect Beneficial Ownership (Instr. 4) See footnotes
Stock Common	0,7,03,7 2 000			2, 0 00,000		0.3	4,666,667	D	<u>(1)</u> <u>(2)</u>

Reminder: Report on a separate line for each class of securities beneficially owned directly or indirectly.

Persons who respond to the collection of SEC 1474 information contained in this form are not (9-02)required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

Table II - Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned (e.g., puts, calls, warrants, options, convertible securities)

1. Title of Derivative Security (Instr. 3)	2. Conversion or Exercise Price of Derivative Security	3. Transaction Date (Month/Day/Year)	3A. Deemed Execution Date, if any (Month/Day/Year)	4. Transaction Code (Instr. 8)	5. Number of onDerivative Securities Acquired (A) or Disposed of (D) (Instr. 3, 4, and 5)	6. Date Exercis Expiration Dat (Month/Day/Y	te	7. Title and Amour Underlying Securit (Instr. 3 and 4)	
				Code V	(A) (D)	Date Exercisable	Expiration Date	Title	Amou Numb Shares
Warrants to purchase Common Stock	\$ 0.35	07/09/2008		P	1,250,000	07/09/2008	07/08/2013	Common Stock	1,25

Reporting Owners

Reporting Owner Name / Address		Relationsh	ips	
	Director	10% Owner	Officer	Other
TONEY C FRED				
500 THIRD STREET #535	X			

Signatures

C. Fred Toney; /s/ C. Fred

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94107

Toney 07/11/2008

**Signature of Reporting Person Date

Explanation of Responses:

- * If the form is filed by more than one reporting person, see Instruction 4(b)(v).
- ** Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute Federal Criminal Violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 15 U.S.C. 78ff(a).

After giving effect to the transactions reported on this Form 4, 15,145,170 shares of common stock reported on this Form 4 are beneficially held by MedCap Partners L.P., 3,670,162 shares are beneficially held by an offshore investment limited partnership (the "Offshore Fund") and the balance is held by C. Fred Toney directly. MedCap Management & Research LLC ("MMR"), a registered

- (1) investment advisor, is the general partner and investment manager of both MedCap Partners, L.P. and the Offshore Fund. C. Fred Toney, the Chairman of the issuer's Board of Directors, is the managing member of MMR, and Mr. Toney also holds, directly or indirectly, limited partnership interests in MedCap Partners, L.P. Each of MMR and Mr. Toney expressly disclaims beneficial ownership in the securities reported on this Form 4, except to the extent of their respective pecuniary interests therein.
- The acquisition of the issuer's securities (shares of common stock and warrants exercisable therefor) were made by Medcap Partners, L.P. (2) and the Offshore Fund. As the beneficial owner of more then 10% of the issuer's common stock for Section 16 purposes, Medcap Partners, L.P. is resporting its transactions in the issuer's securities on a separate Form 4 filed concurrently herewith.

Note: File three copies of this Form, one of which must be manually signed. If space is insufficient, *see* Instruction 6 for procedure. Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB number. bsp; 845

Trade and other Receivables

138,543 20,828 20,828

Cash and cash Equivalents

503,169 75,644 12 (65,701) 13 57,016 (48,882) 12 95,943 14,15

Reporting Owners 2

Edgar Filing: CRDENTIA CORP - Form 4
Total current assets 647,332 97,317 12 (18,640) 78,689 Non-current assets Goodwill 60,104 9,036 60,144 21 69,180 Intangible assets 24,906 3,744 1 27,742 10 31,487 Property, plant and Equipment 58,355 8,772 8,772 Deferred tax
30,657 4,609 4,609
Total non-current Assets 174,022 26,161 1 87,886 114,048
Total assets 821,354 123,478 13 69,246 192,737
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities Trade and other payables 75,951 11,418 529 12,433 16 24,380 Tax 70,152 10,546 (3,703) 17 6,843

Total current liabilities 146,103 21,964 529 8,730 31,223 **Long-term liabilities**

Deferred taxes 70,314 10,571

10,571

Total long-term liabilities 70,314 10,571 10,571

Total liabilities

216,417 32,535 529 8,730 41,794

Shareholders equity Aplitec common stock, \$0.001 par value 237 36 (36) 18 Net 1 common stock, \$0.001 par value 16 106 14 122 Special Convertible Preferred Stock, \$0.001 par value 111 19 193 82 15 B class preference shares, ZAR0.001 par value 36 22 36 Additional paid in Capital 267,838 40,265 1,992 36 18 153,116 1,760 20 (36) 22 52,831 14 43,112 15 (65,701) 1 Retained earnings 336,862 50,642 (2,524) (48,882) 12 (2,524) (1,760) 20 Total shareholders equity 604,937 90,943 (516) 60,516 150,943 Total shareholders equity and liabilities 821,354 123,478 13 69, 246 192,737

84

Table of Contents

- (1) Based on the audited financial statements of Aplitec for the year ended June 30, 2003 on a US GAAP basis (see paragraph (d) of Note 23 to Aplitec s audited financial statements).
- (2) Based on the unaudited financial statements of Aplitec as at and for the six month period ended December 31, 2003 on a US GAAP basis. See note 10 to the unaudited financial statements of Aplitec for the six month period ended December 31, 2003.
- (3) Translates the audited financial statements of Aplitec for the year ended June 30, 2003 on a US GAAP basis (see Note 23 to Aplitec s audited financial statements) at a rate of ZAR 9.0568 1= \$1.00 for the income statement, which approximates the average daily exchange rate for the twelve months in the period ended June 30, 2003 as reported by an independent external source (www.oanda.com).
- (4) Translates the unaudited financial statements of Aplitec for the six-month period ended December 31, 2003 on a US GAAP basis at an exchange rate of ZAR 6.6518 = \$1.00 for the balance sheet, which approximates the closing exchange rate as reported by an independent external source (www.oanda.com) on December 31, 2003 and ZAR 7.10152 = \$1.00 for the income statement, which approximates the average daily exchange rate for the six months in the period ended December 31, 2003 as reported by an independent external source (www.oanda.com).
- (5) Based on the audited US GAAP financial statements of Net 1 included in its annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2002, adding subsequent interim periods and deducting comparable preceding year interim results, as reflected in the unaudited financial statements of Net 1 included in its quarterly reports on Forms 10-QSB, as appropriate.
- (6) Based on the audited US GAAP financial statements of Net 1, deducting comparable preceding interim results, as reflected in the unaudited financial statements of Net 1 included in its quarterly reports on Form 10-QSB, as appropriate.
- (7) Based on the unaudited management financial information of Net 1 Holdings for the year ended June 30, 2003 on a US GAAP basis. Net 1 Holdings is incorporated in Luxembourg as a limited liability, 1929 type company. Under Luxembourg law, such companies are patent holding and/or investment companies only and are not allowed to trade, other than to receive royalty/license fees on patents and/or investment income. As such, the only expenses incurred by such companies are principally those associated with keeping patents and/or investments current. Aside from these expenses, Net 1 Holdings has no administrative expenses, operating expenses or interests. The revenue of Net 1 Holdings is comprised entirely of license fees received and the costs of maintaining the patents are reflected as costs of sales.
- (8) Based on the unaudited management financial information of Net 1 Holdings for the six month period ended December 31, 2003 on a US GAAP basis. Net 1 Holdings is incorporated in Luxembourg as a limited liability, 1929 type company. Under Luxembourg law, such companies are patent holding and/or investment companies only and are not allowed to trade, other than to receive royalty/license fees on patents and/or investment income. As such, the only expenses incurred by such companies are principally those associated with keeping patents and/or investments current. Aside from these expenses, Net 1 Holdings has no administrative expenses, operating expenses or interests. The revenue of Net 1 Holdings is comprised entirely of license fees received and the costs of maintaining the patents are reflected as costs of sales.
- (9) Represents the stock compensation charge for 8,720,936 ordinary shares in Net 1 that are to be allocated for issuance to management under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. It is currently contemplated that these stock awards will vest in increments of 1,744,187 per year over a period of five years. The compensation charge in year one is \$1,992. The compensation charge for the first six months of year two is \$560.
- (10) Represents the recognition at estimated fair values, of intangible assets in the acquiree which at present have no carrying value in the financial statements of the acquiree. As noted above, this identification and estimation of fair value is provisional and may change if and when a final purchase price allocation is made. The tax bases of these identifiable intangible assets approximates their

Table of Contents

accounting bases, and consequently, the recognition of these assets does not result in the recognition of additional deferred taxes.

Asset	Fair Value (\$)	Fair Value (ZAR)	Asset Life (Years)	Annual Amortization Charge (ZAR)
Cash Paymaster Services contracts	17,064	113,509	2.7	42,040
Support services relating to UEPS software	10,678	71,025	4.5	15,783
	27,742	184,534		57,823

Using the rates of exchange noted in (3) and (4) above, total amortization expenses for the year and six month period ended June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2003 are \$6,385 and \$4,071, respectively.

- (11) Represents estimated interest earned by Aplitec in the year ended June 30, 2003 and in the six month period ended December 31, 2003 on existing Aplitec cash of \$48,882 that would have been distributed to shareholders and therefore not have been held by Aplitec had the transaction been consummated on July 1, 2002. An estimated pre-tax interest rate of 5.4% has been used in respect of the year ended June 30, 2003 and of 4.4% in respect of the six month period ended December 31, 2003, based on the actual interest earned on the year-end cash balance of Aplitec on a US GAAP basis. The adjustment has been tax-effected at 37.78%.
- (12) Under Option 1, \$48,882 of cash, which is equal to ZAR 300 million plus such additional cash of Aplitec as is equal to 25 cents for each of the total 236,977,187 Aplitec ordinary shares in respect of which Aplitec shareholders elect the cash option, and which has been translated at the December 31, 2003 exchange rate noted in (4) above, will not be acquired by Net 1, as described in the Sale Agreement. This column treats this amount as a cash distribution to Aplitec shareholders in advance of its acquisition by Net 1. \$48,882 is calculated as follows:

Fixed amount of cash to be distributed	ZAR 300,000,000
Total number of Aplitec shares for which the cash option has been exercised	100,621,904
Incremental cash distribution	ZAR 25,155,476
Total cash distribution	ZAR 325,155,476
Total cash distribution translated using the	
December 31, 2003 rate of exchange per (4) above (\$ 000)	\$48,882

(13) Represents the incremental cash paid to former Aplitec shareholders, comprising

Cash distribution in respect of:	
Cash option	75,635(i)
Reinvestment option	38,948(ii)
Less: amount funded through non-acquisition of Aplitec cash	(48,882)(iii)
Cash element of purchase price	65,701

(iii) As calculated in (11) above

⁽i) 100,621,904 of Aplitec shares for whom the cash option has been exercised, are paid ZAR 5.00 per share, which at the balance sheet exchange rate of ZAR 6.6518 = \$1.00 amounts to \$75,635

⁽ii) 136,355,283 of Aplitec shares for which the reinvestment option has been exercised, are paid ZAR 1.90 per share, which at the balance sheet exchange rate of ZAR 6.6518 = \$1.00 amounts to \$38,948

86

Table of Contents

- (14) Represents the effect of the Brait Consortium s capital contribution of \$52,831 into Net 1 in exchange for the issuance of 105,661,428 shares of Net 1 common stock, at a subscription price of \$0.50 per share.
- (15) Represents the underwriting contribution by the Brait Consortium of ZAR 2.85 per Aplitec share in respect of which the cash option is exercised, amounting to \$43,112. In combination with \$52,831 per (14) above, Brait s total contribution is \$95,943.
- (16) Represents the amount owing in respect of the purchase price relating to transaction costs estimated at \$12,433. These costs do not include the effect of total estimated costs to be paid to professional advisors of \$6,524, approximately \$2,500 of which may be satisfied through the issuance of equity. These costs will be accounted for in accordance with the substance of the individual expenditures, as costs of acquisition, as costs of issuing capital, or as period expenses.
- (17) Included in the transaction costs adjusted for in (16) is an amount of South African Secondary Taxation on Companies (STC). This adjustment reflects \$3,703 of STC which was historically provided for by Aplitec. Accordingly, the net assets of Aplitec have been increased by this amount.
- (18) Represents the elimination of historic common stock of Aplitec, as the legal acquiree.
- (19) Represents the acquisition of special convertible preferred shares by reinvesting holders of Aplitec common stock at a distribution ratio of 0.814286.
- (20) Represents the elimination of retained earnings of Aplitec, as the accounting acquiree.
- (21) Goodwill was determined based on a provisional purchase price allocation and is equal to the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of net assets acquired, as set forth below:

Purchase price	
Incremental cash paid to former Aplitec shareholders(13)	\$ 65,701
Distribution of special convertible preferred shares(19)	55,516
Transaction costs to be paid by Net 1(16)	12,433
	\$133,650
Net assets acquired	
Historic net assets of Aplitec	\$ 90,943
Add: Fair value adjustments to Aplitec intangibles(10)	27,742
Less: Aplitec cash not acquired(12)	(48,882)
Add: STC provided by Aplitec, to be utilised by Net 1(17)	3,703
	73,506
Goodwill pro-forma adjustment	60,144
Add: historical goodwill	9,036
Goodwill	\$ 69,180

(22) Represents the issuance of B Class preference shares by New Aplitec, which are, in substance, considered to be common stock of Net 1 for financial reporting purposes.

87

Table of Contents

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Unaudited In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, Except Per Share Data or Unless Otherwise Indicated) For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Option 2

	Aplitec (ZAR 000)(1)	Aplitec(3)	Net 1(5)	Net 1 Holdings(7)	Pro Forma Adjustments	Notes	Pro Forma Combined
Revenue	678,567	74,924	41	134			75,099
Cost of sales	(234,885)	(25,935)		(24)	(667)	10	(26,626)
Gross profit	443,682	48,989	41	110	(667)		48,473
Other operating income Operating expenses continuing operations	5,373	593					593
Distribution costs	(6,155)	(680)					(680)
Administration expenses	(72,063)	(7,957)	(8)		(1,992)	9	(9,957)
Other operating expenses	(196,334)	(21,678)	(142)				(21,820)
Total operating expenses	(274,552)	(30,315)	(150)		(1,992)		(32,457)
Operating profit/(loss)	174,503	19,267	(109)	110	(2,659)		16,609
Interest income/(expense), net	23,546	2,600		_	(2,160)	1	440
Profit before taxation	198,049	21,867	(109)	110	(4,819)		17,049
Taxation	(85,794)	(9,473)	<u> </u>	(17)	816		(8,674)
Profit after taxation	112,255	12,394	(109)	93	(4,003)		8,375
Minority interests	(4,095)	(452)	(20)	,,	(1,000)		(452)
Net profit from continuing			_	_			
operations	108,160	11,942	(109)	93	(4,003)		7,923
Earnings per share (\$) Basic and diluted							
Common stock Special convertible preferred							0.03
shares							0.03
Number of common shares used to calculate earnings per share							130,235,220
Number of special convertible preferred shares used to calculate earnings per share							192,967,138
		8	8				

Table of Contents

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(Unaudited In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, Except Per Share Data or Unless Otherwise Indicated) For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2003

Option 2

	Aplitec (ZAR 000)(2)	Aplitec(4)	Net 1(6)	Net 1 Holdings(8)	Pro Forma Adjustments	Notes	Pro Forma Combined
Revenue	390,742	55,022		10			55,032
Cost of sales	(129,363)	(18,216)	_	(400)	(334)	10	(18,950)
Gross profit	261,379	36,806		(390)	(334)		36,082
Other operating (expense) income	(159)	(22)					(22)
Operating expenses continuing operations							
Distribution costs	(7,053)	(993)					(993)
Administration expenses	(36,540)	(5,145)	(7)		(560)	9	(5,712)
Other operating expenses	(97,226)	(13,691)	(197)	(25)			(13,913)
Total operating expenses	(140,819)	(19,829)	(204)	(25)	(560)		(20,618)
Operating profit/(loss)	120,401	16,955	(204)	(415)	(894)		15,442
Interest Income/(expense), net	11,160	1,571	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	(1,000)	11	571
Profit before taxation	131,561	18,526	(204)	(415)	(1,894)		16,013
Taxation	(53,284)	(7,503)	(-)	(8)	378		(7,133)
Net profit from continuing operations Earnings per share (\$)	78,277	11,023	(204)	(423)	(1,516)		8,880
Basic and diluted							
Common stock							0.03
Special convertible preferred shares							0.03
Number of common shares used to calculate earnings per share							130,235,220
Number of special convertible preferred shares used to calculate earnings per share							192,967,138
			89				

Table of Contents

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited In Thousands of U.S. Dollars, Except Per Share Data or Unless Otherwise Indicated) As at December 31, 2003

Option 2

Historical

	A 114			D E		D E
	Aplitec (ZAR 000)(2)	Aplitec(4)	Net 1(6)	Pro Forma Adjustments	Notes	Pro Forma Combined
		ASSETS				
Current assets						
Inventory	5,620	845				845
Trade and other receivables	138,543	20,828				20,828
Cash and cash equivalents	503,169	75,644	12	(22,589)	13	60,797
				(45,101)	12	
				52,831	14	
Total current assets	647,332	97,317	12	(14,859)		82,470
Non-current assets	0+1,552	71,311	12	(14,037)		02,470
Goodwill	60,104	9,036		3,822	21	14,603
Goodwin	00,104	9,030		1,745	10	14,003
Intensible assets	24.006	2 744	1	4,620	10	0 265
Intangible assets	24,906	3,744	1	4,020	10	8,365
Property, plant and equipment	58,355	8,772				8,772
Deferred tax	30,657	4,609				4,609
Total non-current assets	174,022	26,161	1	10,187		36,349
Total assets	821,354	123,478	13	(4,672)		118,819
		LIABILITIES	;			
Current liabilities						
Trade and other payables	75,951	11,418	529	11,960	16	23,907
Tax	70,152	10,546		(3,703)	17	6,843
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				
Total current liabilities	146,103	21,964	529	8,257		30,750
Long-term liabilities						
Deferred taxes	70,314	10,571		1,745	10	12,316
	<u> </u>					
Total long-term liabilities	70,314	10,571		1,745		12,316
Total liabilities	216,417	32,535	529	10,002		43,066
Total natifices	210,417			10,002		
	SHA	REHOLDERS	EQUITY			
Aplitec common stock, \$0.001 par						
value	237	36		(36)	18	
Net 1 common stock, \$0.001 par value			16	106	14	122
Special Convertible Preferred Stock, \$0.001 par value				193	19	193
B class preference shares, ZAR				175	1)	173
0.001 par value				36	22	36
Additional paid in Capital	267,838	40,265	1,992	36	18	78,118
. 100111011111 para in cupitur	207,030	10,203	1,772	50	10	70,110

			(22,589)	13	
			3,822	21	
			4,620	10	
			52,831	14	
			(106)	14	
			(193)	19	
			(36)	22	
			(2,524)	20	
336,862	50,642	(2,524)	2,524	20	(2,716)
			(45,101)	12	
			(8,257)	16, 17	
					
604,937	90,943	(516)	(14,674)		75,753
821 354	123 478	13	(4 672)		118,819
021,331	123,170	13	(1,072)		110,017
	00				
	90				
		604,937 90,943	604,937 90,943 (516) 821,354 123,478 13	3,822 4,620 52,831 (106) (193) (36) (2,524) 336,862 50,642 (2,524) 2,524 (45,101) (8,257) 604,937 90,943 (516) (14,674) 821,354 123,478 13 (4,672)	3,822 21 4,620 10 52,831 14 (106) 14 (193) 19 (36) 22 (2,524) 20 336,862 50,642 (2,524) 2,524 20 (45,101) 12 (8,257) 16,17 604,937 90,943 (516) (14,674) 821,354 123,478 13 (4,672)

Table of Contents

- (1) Based on the audited financial statements of Aplitec for the year ended June 30, 2003 on a US GAAP basis (see paragraph (d) of Note 23 to Aplitec s audited financial statements).
- (2) Based on the unaudited financial statements of Aplitec as at and for the six month period ended December 31, 2003 on a US GAAP basis. See note 10 to the unaudited financial statements of Aplitec for the six month period ended December 31, 2003.
- (3) Translates the audited financial statements of Aplitec for the year ended June 30, 2003 on a US GAAP basis (see Note 23 to Aplitec s audited financial statements) at a rate of ZAR 9.0568 = \$1.00 for the income statement, which approximates the average daily exchange rate for the twelve months in the period ended June 30, 2003 as reported by an independent external source (www.oanda.com).
- (4) Translates the unaudited financial statements of Aplitec for the six-month period ended December 31, 2003 on a US GAAP basis at an exchange rate of ZAR 6.6518 = \$1.00 for the balance sheet, which approximates the closing exchange rate as reported by an independent external source (www.oanda.com) on December 31, 2003 and ZAR 7.10152 = \$1.00 for the income statement, which approximates the average daily exchange rate for the six months in the period ended December 31, 2003 as reported by an independent external source (www.oanda.com).
- (5) Based on the audited US GAAP financial statements of Net 1 included in its annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2002, adding subsequent interim periods and deducting comparable preceding year interim results, as reflected in the unaudited financial statements of Net 1 included in its quarterly reports on Forms 10-QSB, as appropriate.
- (6) Based on the audited US GAAP financial statements of Net 1, deducting comparable preceding interim results, as reflected in the unaudited financial statements of Net 1 included in its quarterly reports on Form 10-QSB, as appropriate.
- (7) Based on the unaudited management financial statements of Net 1 Holdings for the year ended June 30, 2003 on a US GAAP basis. Net 1 Holdings is incorporated in Luxembourg as a limited liability, 1929 type company. Under Luxembourg law, such companies are patent holding and/or investment companies only and are not allowed to trade, other than to receive royalty/ license fees on patents and/or investment income. As such, the only expenses incurred by such companies are principally those associated with keeping patents and/or investments current. Aside from these expenses, Net 1 Holdings has no administrative expenses, operating expenses or interests. The revenue of Net 1 Holdings is comprised entirely of license fees received and the costs of maintaining the patents are reflected as costs of sales.
- (8) Based on the unaudited management financial information of Net 1 Holdings for the six month period ended December 31, 2003 on a US GAAP basis. Net 1 Holdings is incorporated in Luxembourg as a limited liability, 1929 type company. Under Luxembourg law, such companies are patent holding and/or investment companies only and are not allowed to trade, other than to receive royalty/ license fees on patents and/or investment income. As such, the only expenses incurred by such companies are principally those associated with keeping patents and/or investments current. Aside from these expenses, Net 1 Holdings has no administrative expenses, operating expenses or interests. The revenue of Net 1 Holdings is comprised entirely of license fees received and the costs of maintaining the patents are reflected as costs of sales.
- (9) Represents the stock compensation charge for 8,720,936 ordinary shares in Net 1 that are to be allocated for issuance to management under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. It is currently contemplated that these stock awards will vest in increments of 1,744,187 per year over a period of five years. The compensation charge in year one is \$1,992. The compensation charge for the first six months of year two is \$560.
- (10) Represents the recognition at estimated fair values of intangible assets in the acquiree which at present have no carrying value in the financial statements of the acquiree. As noted above, this identification and estimation of fair value is provisional and may change if and when a final purchase price allocation is made. The estimated tax bases of these identifiable intangible assets are nil, and

91

Table of Contents

consequently, the recognition of these assets results in the recognition of additional deferred taxes of \$1,745.

Asset	Fair Value (US\$)	Asset Life (Years)	Annual Amortization Charge (US\$)
Customer contracts	114	5.0	23
FTS patent license and UEPS marketing rights	4,506	7.0	644
	4,620		667

The intangible assets were valued by Stenton Leigh on the basis of management s projections of the relevant cash flows to be generated by the existing contracts of Net 1 and the FTS patent license and UEPS Marketing rights of Net 1 (essentially projected future contracts) taking account of the appropriate level of risk and using an appropriate risk-free discount rate.

- (11) Represents estimated interest earned by Aplitec in the year ended June 30, 2003 and in the six month period ended December 31, 2003 on existing Aplitec cash of \$45,100 that would have been distributed to shareholders and therefore not have been held by Aplitec had the transaction been consummated on July 1, 2002. An estimated pre-tax interest rate of 5.4% has been used in respect of the year ended June 30, 2003 and of 4.4% in respect of the six month period ended December 31, 2003, based on the actual interest earned by and year-end cash balance of Aplitec on a US GAAP basis. The adjustment has been tax-effected at 37.78%.
- (12) The reinvesting shareholders receive ZAR 1.90 per share, which is treated as a capital distribution. This is equal to \$67,689, of which \$45,101 is funded from existing cash of Aplitec. This distribution from existing cash is reflected here.
- (13) Represents the distribution to reinvesting shareholders of the balance of cash described in (12).
- (14) Represents the effect of the Brait Consortium s capital contribution of \$52,831 into Net 1 in exchange for the issuance of 105,661,428 shares of Net 1 common stock, at a subscription price of \$0.50 per share.
- (15) [Not used under Option 2]
- (16) Illustrates the effect of liabilities estimated at \$11,960, including taxes arising on the cash distribution to Aplitec shareholders. These costs do not include the effect of total estimated costs to be paid to professional advisors of \$6,524, approximately \$2,500 of which may be satisfied through the issuance of equity. Such costs do not qualify as acquisition costs of Aplitec and will be therefore be expensed in the period incurred. Although effect has not been given to these expenses in the proforma income statement in light of their non-recurring nature, these costs will be included in the post-acquisition income statement.
- (17) The total amount of liabilities described in (16), is reduced by a historic STC provision carried by Aplitec of \$3,703, which can be offset against taxes arising on the transaction included in (16).
- (18) Represents the elimination of historic common stock of Aplitec, as the legal acquiree.
- (19) Represents the acquisition of Special Convertible Preferred Shares by reinvesting holders of Aplitec common stock at a distribution ratio of 0.814286.
- (20) Represents the elimination of retained deficit of Net 1, as the accounting acquiree.

Q'

Table of Contents

(21) Goodwill was determined based on a provisional purchase price allocation and is equal to the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of net assets acquired, as set forth below:

Purchase Price	US\$	
Existing shares of Net 1 immediately prior to transaction	121,514,000	
Fair value per Net 1 share(1)	0.50	
Total value	60,757,000	
Net 1 assets acquired		
Historic net liability value of Net 1	(516,000)	
Add: Capital contribution by Brait prior to transaction(14)	52,831,000	
Add: Fair value adjustments to Net 1 intangibles(10)	4,620,000	
		
	56,935,000	
Goodwill pro-forma adjustment	3,822,000	

93

⁽¹⁾ The fair value of the shares of Net 1 common stock used in determining the purchase price was \$0.50, which is the price per share paid by the Brait Consortium under the Common Stock Purchase Agreement. The transaction for the acquisition of shares closes before the transaction whereby Aplitec acquires Net 1 (in the Option 2 scenario).

⁽²²⁾ Represents the issuance of B Class preference shares by New Aplitec, which are, in substance, considered to be common stock of Net 1 for financial reporting purposes.

Table of Contents

BUSINESS

THE TECHNOLOGY

Net 1 s and Aplitec s technological platforms are based upon two fundamental components:

FTS patents; and

the UEPS technology.

The FTS patents were first filed by Dr. Serge Belamant and the late Andre Mansvelt in 1989. The patents in South Africa and its surrounding territories were subsequently assigned to Net 1 (Pty), which is currently a wholly owned subsidiary of Aplitec. The patents in Europe and the United States were assigned to Net 1 Holdings.

Description of the FTS Patents. The FTS patents describe a method for the safe and secure transfer of funds from one smart card to another without the need for contact with the card issuer or authorization center at the time of the transaction. It also incorporates how these cards can be loaded or re-loaded with funds as well as how these funds can be redeemed for value in a banking or non-banking environment.

Status of FTS Patents. The FTS patents are registered in the United States, South Africa, Botswana, Namibia and Swaziland.

The European patent was filed in October 1990 and granted in December 1994. The European Patent Convention provides for an opposition period of nine months following the grant of a European patent, and six parties filed an opposition to the grant of the FTS patent. The case was heard before a Board of the Opposition Division in March 1998 and the patent was upheld. Following this decision, a number of the original opponents filed an appeal. The oral proceedings for the appeal were heard on October 10, 2002 and the Appeal Board reversed the earlier decision. The formal written decision from the Appeal Board was received on December 24, 2002. Consequently, the European patent has been revoked and there is no possibility of any further appeal.

As a result of this ruling, Net 1 will not be able to collect any patent royalties in the European Union. However, our business plan and forecast do not account for such royalties as a major source of revenue in the medium to long-term, as the key to Net 1 s operations in Europe is based on its know-how and ability to exploit the technology rather than on its proprietary right. Accordingly, while Net 1 is disappointed in this ruling, it has not and is not expected to have a material adverse effect on Net 1 in the medium or long-term.

The FTS patents in South Africa, Botswana, Namibia and Swaziland were granted on September 25, 1991, March 9, 1993, April 7, 1993 and December 9, 1992, respectively. These patents, held by Net 1 (Pty), remain in full force and effect, and Aplitec is not aware of any challenges to their enforceability.

The FTS patent in the United States was granted on December 29, 1992. A reissue patent was granted under number Re. 36,788 on July 25, 2000. It currently remains in full force and effect, and Net 1 is not aware of any challenges to its enforceability.

Description of the UEPS Technology. The UEPS technology is a suite of software programs that incorporates the FTS patents into a fully integrated payment and settlement system. The primary strengths of UEPS are its affordability, security and flexibility. The system is affordable because transactions occur between the computer chips embedded in the two smart cards involved. Because the computer chips on the smart cards contain the software necessary to enable UEPS transactions, the terminals required to enable these transactions contain far fewer components and circuitry compared to traditional Point of Sale terminals. There is also a reduced need for processing power and on-board memory and, therefore, on-line communication (i.e. internal modem) is not necessary. As a result, the UEPS terminals are relatively inexpensive, and do not require specialized technical expertise for installation. This eliminates the need for existing infrastructures such as electricity, telephone or data transmission. The payment system is secure because all transactions are verified (i.e. confirmation of the actual transfer of the funds) between the two

94

Table of Contents

smart cards, which are involved in the transaction using advanced hardware tamper protection and cryptographic systems, together with protocols and techniques developed by the founders of the technology. The UEPS also allows for pin code or biometric (fingerprint) verification of the cardholder at the time of transacting, which further enhances the security of the system. Finally, UEPS is flexible because transactions are completed off-line, thus eliminating virtually all restrictions on where verified transactions can occur.

The first version of UEPS was released in 1991, and included software to both operate each smart card as well as the main payment system network. UEPS provides all of the functions necessary to issue and manage a smart card and terminal base as well as those needed to effect settlement between all of the operators and participants. UEPS is fully traceable and auditable and can provide advanced facilities such as loss tolerance and interest distribution. Finally, UEPS is scalable and can be made available to well established market leaders or as a starter kit to smaller organizations.

Rights to the Technology. Net 1 owns the exclusive rights to market and sell the technology worldwide, excluding South Africa and its surrounding territories and the rights to license the U.S. FTS patent. Net 1 (Pty) owns similar rights in South Africa and its surrounding territories.

NET 1 S BUSINESS

Overview

Net 1 is a development stage company engaged in the commercialization of the UEPS technology and FTS patent through the development of strategic alliances with national and international banks and card service organizations. To date, our activities have consisted of acquiring certain rights to the above-mentioned technology from Net 1 Holdings and entering into outsourcing and distribution relationships with Aplitec. Net 1 has one full-time employee, its Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Claude Guerard, who provides services to Net 1 pursuant to a consulting agreement. Net 1 s web site address is www.netlueps.com.

Strategy

Following the development of a detailed business plan and marketing strategy, Net 1 s management team has devoted most of its activities to the raising of the funds required to develop and operate the business successfully.

History

Net 1 was incorporated in the State of Florida in May 1997 to acquire and exploit a non-exclusive worldwide license to the UEPS payment system. Net 1 entered into a license agreement, dated May 19, 1997 (the License Agreement), with Net 1 Holdings, Net 1 Operations S.a.r.l. and Net 1 (Pty) (collectively, the Licensors), whereby the licensors granted a non-exclusive license to Net 1 for the UEPS technology in exchange for 5,412,244 shares of Net 1 common stock. On October 1, 1997, the License Agreement was amended to transfer ownership of the UEPS technology and FTS patents world wide (except for South Africa and its surrounding territories), and to assign the Technology License Agreement between Visa International Service Association and Net 1 Holdings, dated July 31, 1997 (the Visa Agreement) to Net 1 in exchange for 4,729,612 shares of Net 1 common stock. This transaction was never completed because certain conditions precedent were never satisfied.

On May 3, 2000, Net 1 entered into a Patent and Technology Agreement with Net 1 Holdings, whereby Net 1 was granted a license for the U.S. FTS patent and the now invalid European patent. The 4,729,612 shares of Net 1 common stock previously offered in the above-referenced amended License Agreement were issued to Net 1 Holdings. At December 31, 2003, Net 1 Holdings beneficially owned 8,520,578 shares of Net 1 common stock, or 53.75% of the shares then outstanding. In addition, Net 1

95

Table of Contents

obtained the exclusive marketing rights for the UEPS technology in all countries other than South Africa and its surrounding territories.

On February 26, 2001, Net 1 entered into an Outsourcing Agreement with Net 1(Pty). In October 2002, this agreement was replaced by a Distribution Agreement, effective as of July 1, 2002, pursuant to which Net 1 (Pty) was retained to provide Net 1 with marketing, sales, administrative and technical support as an accredited UEPS integrator in Net 1 s designated territories. As part of this agreement, Net 1 (Pty) receives 9.5% of fees collected by Net 1 on all new licenses and upgrades of existing licenses.

Business

As a development stage company, Net 1 is principally focused on trying to commercially exploit the FTS patents and UEPS technology in its designated territories. Net 1 s management has developed a detailed business plan and marketing strategy involving the development and implementation of the smart card system as an alternative to existing payment systems such as cash, checks, credit cards and debit cards, utilizing the proprietary technology and operating under the Net 1 brand.

Management has also focused its efforts on attracting the necessary capital to implement the business plan. On October 23, 2002, Net 1 retained Investee Bank Limited (Investee), an international merchant banking group, to provide corporate finance services and assistance in order to raise equity and/or debt funding for the company. This was unsuccessful and Investee and the company mutually agreed to terminate the engagement.

Management continues to strive to meet the following two business strategies:

Build partnerships. Net 1 hopes to establish partnership agreements with IT services and financial services entities, which would provide the total technical support required by Net 1 licensees to launch and develop their own applications based on the FTS patents and UEPS technology. The only partnership established thus far has been the relationship with Aplitec pursuant to the Distribution Agreement.

Develop license revenue. Net 1 hopes to increase revenue by developing its licensee network on a worldwide basis. Net 1 already receives revenues under the Patent and Technology Agreement from UEPS licensees in Latvia, Burundi, Ghana, Rwanda and Malawi and it is in negotiations with potential licensees in various other countries.

The aforementioned Patent and Technology Agreement entitles Net 1 to receive all of Net 1 Holdings license sales revenue in an amount equal to Net 1 Holdings annual net profit before amortization. This agreement has produced minimal revenues and Net 1 has suffered recurring operating losses as is normal in development stage companies. At December 31, 2003, Net 1 had a working capital deficiency of \$517,463. These factors raise doubts about Net 1 s ability to continue as a going concern beyond the second quarter of 2004. The ability of Net 1 to complete its long-term business plan depends on whether it is successful in raising the capital it requires through equity financing and developing a market for its products.

Properties

Net 1 does not own any properties. We currently rent office facilities and services on an as-needed basis at 744 West Hastings Street, Vancouver B.C. Canada from Gilmour, McKay Roberts Consulting Limited, one of our financial consultants. We rent this office on a month-to-month basis at a rate of \$1,000 per month.

Legal Proceedings

Net 1 is not involved in, nor is it aware of, any significant legal or arbitration proceedings which are pending or threatened and which may have, or have had in the twelve-month period preceding this proxy statement/ prospectus, a material effect upon the financial position of Net 1 and its affiliates.

96

Table of Contents

APLITEC S BUSINESS

Overview

Aplitec is an investment holding company established and existing under the laws of South Africa. Aplitec s subsidiaries employ specialized smart card technologies to add efficiency to a myriad of commercial activities that involve money transfers, payment systems and other electronic data applications.

Aplitec s mission is to provide a secure, universal and affordable transacting system, utilizing existing infrastructure within the financial services industry, that will enable people, regardless of income, to have access to goods and services that were previously unattainable. Access to these goods and services should result in improved lifestyles and provide access to new, low-risk and profitable markets for suppliers that use Aplitec s systems.

Through its subsidiaries, Aplitec is involved in the administration, management and payment of social welfare grants and handles the payment of pensions on behalf of provincial governments in five of the nine provinces of South Africa. Aplitec also operates micro-lending businesses with more than 100 micro-lending branches throughout South Africa, and develops, markets and licenses administrative and payment solutions for the micro-finance industry. Aplitec also provides financial services to pensioners through its proprietary smart card platform.

Aplitec, through its subsidiary Net 1 (Pty), holds the FTS patents for South Africa and its surrounding territories and, through the Distribution Agreement with Net 1, provides integrated software and hardware services to customers outside its designated territories. Aplitec also provides technical, operational and outsourcing services to companies.

Aplitec and its subsidiaries currently employ 2,044 persons. Aplitec s web site address is www.aplitec.co.za. The Aplitec website contains information about customers and suppliers who have historically been involved with Aplitec but may not currently use Aplitec s technology or act as suppliers. Aplitec will update its website as soon as possible to more clearly indicate which of the listed customers and suppliers are current and which are historical. The contents of Aplitec s web site are not incorporated by reference in this proxy statement/ prospectus.

Strategy

Aplitec s principal goal is to deploy a national payment system that will provide an affordable and secure financial services and transacting platform to the un-banked and under-banked citizens within South Africa. As commerce and industry in South Africa continues to seek secure and cost-effective solutions that minimize the risk of performing cash transactions and provide access to consumers who may have limited access to traditional financial services, Aplitec is well-positioned to offer effective solutions through its wide range of secure smart card payment system applications. Aplitec believes that its infrastructure will extend the existing commercial banking networks and enable it to provide access to financial and transacting services for all South Africans.

The UEPS is ideally suited to South Africa and other developing countries as it is able to operate in an offline environment. It thus offers a cheaper, more effective option for transacting by poor segments of the population. The UEPS applications developed by Aplitec deliver practical, affordable and inter-operable solutions in various fields including transportation, wage and utility payments, pension distribution, premium collections, retailing and third party transfers.

The UEPS provides a secure and affordable channel through which financial and other services can be administered to persons with lower incomes. Aplitec s strategy is to provide and promote the channel, facilitate services using the channel and participate in the transaction fees based on the services that are rendered through the channel. Aplitec still retains the flexibility of selectively providing services to the channel itself where it is strategic to do so, the resources are available and the returns are commensurate with the risks taken.

97

Table of Contents

The first stage of Aplitec s strategy was to build a critical mass in smart card users. This has been achieved through the administration and distribution of state pensions and social welfare grants to more than 2.2 million beneficiaries. The proliferation of cards in the hands of consumers has generated increased demand for additional services. Going forward, Aplitec will focus on developing UEPS applications that facilitate the introduction of additional services to the channel and will seek opportunities to provide services directly to the channel.

History

Aplitec was incorporated on May 14, 1997 under the name Javelin Housing (Proprietary) Limited. On September 12, 1997, the company adopted its current name, and it also converted into a public company to facilitate the subscription of shares by the public on its listing. Aplitec debuted on the Venture Capital list of the JSE on December 11, 1997 and raised ZAR 30 million (\$4.4 million) through a private placement of 30 million ordinary shares. In April 2000, Aplitec transferred its listing to the main board of the JSE.

Net 1 Southern Africa Acquisition

In May 1998, Aplitec acquired Net 1 Southern Africa (Proprietary) Limited, a business focused on supplying and servicing the point of sale, or POS terminal network of Nedcor, a major South African banking group. The purchase price for Net 1 Southern Africa was 4,560,000 Aplitec ordinary shares.

CPS Acquisition

In 1999, Aplitec acquired CPS, a business engaged in the distribution of social welfare grants, for ZAR 54 million (\$7.91 million). This acquisition achieved two critical objectives. First, CPS s customer base of approximately 1.5 million people were issued UEPS smart cards, which helped Aplitec to achieve a critical mass of smart card users. Second, Aplitec acquired a logistics/ implementation infrastructure that was unparalleled in reach, expertise and experience at the time. Strengthened by Aplitec s technological platform, CPS was able to renew its existing contracts and secure new ones. CPS also entered into a strategic alliance with the South African Post Office to distribute pensions through its branches in the KwaZulu-Natal province utilizing the UEPS smart cards. A key element of the awarding of this contract was the technological advances that Aplitec brought to bear in the provision of services sought. CPS is currently Aplitec s principal operating subsidiary.

Micro-lending Acquisitions

During the course of 1999 and 2000, Aplitec acquired 100% of Moneyline (Proprietary) Limited (Moneyline) for ZAR 43.5 million (\$6.37 million) and 100% of NewWorld Finance (Proprietary) Limited (New World) for ZAR 25.3 million (\$3.71 million). Through these acquisitions, Aplitec gained access to a network of approximately 100 micro-lending branches in South Africa through which its micro-lending administration and payment solutions could be deployed.

Nedcor Relationship

In July 2000, Nedcor Limited (Nedcor) acquired 26.2% of Aplitec. As part of the transaction, Aplitec acquired Net 1 (Pty), the entity housing the FTS patents for South Africa and its surrounding territories, for ZAR 19.5 million (\$2.86 million). This acquisition consolidated the ownership of and rights to the technology for South Africa and its surrounding territories into Aplitec.

Market Opportunity

Aplitec operates in markets that contain large untapped populations of people who have no access to banking facilities (the un-banked) or very limited access to banking facilities (the under-banked). According to research done by ACNielson (FutureFact Marketscape Survey 2002) and the South African Reserve Bank (Labour Markets and Social Frontiers April 2003), only 40% of South African adults have

98

Table of Contents

access to at least one form of basic bank account, compared to approximately 90% of adults in the United States. Furthermore, the distribution of bank accounts is significantly skewed towards higher income groups. This is largely due to the high relative costs associated with maintaining a bank account in South Africa. Aplitec s payment and transacting systems are ideally suited to meet the needs of the un-banked and under-banked in South Africa. The ability to execute offline transactions not only reduces the cost of a transaction, but is also essential in the rural and informal areas with limited or no communication infrastructure, where approximately 60% of South Africa s population live. These markets present a substantial opportunity for Aplitec to increase its user base and the volume of transactions processed using its systems.

Aplitec expects significant growth from its existing businesses in the future. To date, social welfare beneficiaries have not been able to transact with merchants using the value stored on their smart cards and most beneficiaries have withdrawn their full value of the grant in cash. With the rollout of terminals at selected merchants, it is expected that more beneficiaries will use their smart cards for transacting with merchants. In addition, it has been well publicized that the South African government is accelerating its social security program to provide more South Africans with social grants, in order to combat poverty. This will result in an ever-increasing number of customers for Aplitec and significantly increase the total value of grants distributed.

Aplitec s existing applications and services have largely focused on the un-banked segment of the population. However, several applications have been developed to target the under-banked market segment. These include wage payment systems that allow employees to pay salaries and wages of their employees onto smart cards, and canteen systems. These systems provide all of the benefits of cash transactions without the related fraud and security risks. Aplitec also recently launched a money transfer system that provides a fund transfer mechanism between clients in various countries. Aplitec s role is to facilitate the distribution of a secure electronic payment using biometric fingerprint technology for beneficiary identification and the loading of funds onto the beneficiaries smart card.

UEPS systems can also be used to service higher income clients. UEPS applications have been developed for the administration of national health insurance and Internet payments. UEPS can also be adapted to operate in closed environments such as casinos, hotels and gyms.

Business

Aplitec s business is organized into three divisions: Transaction-based Activities, Financial Services and Technology Sales and Outsourcing.

Transaction-based Activities

Aplitec s transaction-based activities are operated through CPS. CPS uses the UEPS to administer and distribute eight different social welfare grants in South Africa, including pensions, child grants and disability grants on behalf of the provincial government. Provincial contracts are typically awarded for a period of three years with an option by the provincial government to extend the contract for two additional years. Currently CPS holds five provincial government contracts, three of which are in the extension periods.

The system uses a smart card based biometric (fingerprint) identification system to verify beneficiaries and effect payments of social welfare grants onto individual smart cards. The beneficiary then has the choice of either converting the electronic value to cash using automated cash dispensers or effecting payments for a range of services such as loan payments and insurance premium payments. The system effectively combats the problems associated with traditional cash payment systems such as fraud and theft as a result of the biometric verification and audit trails.

Due to the limited number of services currently provided, almost all of the beneficiaries download the value onto their smart cards and then immediately withdraw the full amount as cash. Aplitec s revenue is therefore currently dependent on fees earned on the loading or redemption of value on the cards as well as

99

Table of Contents

the registration of beneficiaries rather than the provision of services. The direct costs associated with this business are primarily cash handling costs such as security, transport of cash, banking fees and insurance. Fixed costs comprise salaries and property rental.

CPS s competitors include Allpay, which is responsible for payments in the Free State, Gauteng, Western Cape provinces and a small portion of the Eastern Cape, and Empilweni which is responsible for payments in the Mpumalanga province.

Financial Services

Traditional Micro-lending. Aplitec operates a traditional micro-finance business with more than 100 branches under the New World Finance and Moneyline brand names. These businesses extend cash loans for periods ranging from 30 days up to 3 months, with the majority of loans being 30-day loans. The average interest rates charged to customers are 18-20% per month. These businesses operate on Aplitec s Milpay Pay System, or MPS, of which more than 1,000 have been sold to the industry. The system is unique in that it enables the micro-lender to set up a salary budget account, or SBA, for the client into which the employer deposits its employees net salary. The SBA allows the loan deductions that are pre-authorized by the client to be electronically transferred to the authorized party. This ensures that loan repayments are made every month and substantially lowers bad debt provisions, which provides an overall benefit to the micro-lender. The remaining sum can then be retained in the bank account or transferred to another account. Aplitec believes that marketing this system to an entire industry could result in significant annuity revenue.

The MPS module is linked to the National Loans Register, a database of micro-lending customers with existing loans, which was established by the Micro Finance Regulatory Council of South Africa to encourage responsible lending by microlenders and prevent customers from overextending themselves. The module also ensures that loans are not granted to persons with existing loans. In addition, payment slips are checked for other deductions before an affordability and lifestyle score are given to the potential customer. Based on these scores, the decision to grant a loan is made at the branch level.

At December 31, 2003, the net debtors book amounted to ZAR 28.05 million (\$4.11 million). As this is not a core business, Aplitec does not intend to actively grow the debtors book in the future.

Age Secure. Towards the end of 2001, Aplitec developed a suite of financial services targeted at social welfare beneficiaries, utilizing Aplitec s issued base of smart cards as a delivery channel. The products are marketed under the Age Secure brand and include micro-loans, insurance and food parcels. Age Secure has only been implemented in the KwaZulu-Natal province and has approximately 85,000 clients. Going forward, Aplitec plans to grow and develop the Age Secure business by launching new products and into provinces where it administers social welfare grants.

Following initial start-up losses, Age Secure grew rapidly and is now profitable and cash generative with a net debtors book of ZAR 33.0 million (\$4.84 million). The growth in Age Secure s client base demonstrates that Aplitec s technology can be used to effectively manage the credit and collection risks inherent in the micro-lending industry.

Technology Sales and Outsourcing

Aplitec has developed a range of technological competencies to service the company s internal needs, including the development of the UEPS to provide services directly to smart card holders, and to provide the link between Aplitec and its client enterprises. Technology sales refer to the supply of the hardware and software required to implement Aplitec s UEPS systems. Aplitec has to date implemented systems on behalf of Net 1 and Net 1 Holdings in Malawi, Ghana, Burundi, Rwanda, Mozambique and the Commonwealth of Independent States or CIS.

The Malawi contract was significant breakthrough for Aplitec because it was the first time that an African central bank selected a smart card program for use with a national payment system. It was also the first use of the UEPS technology in a national switching environment (i.e. a system that allows for

100

Table of Contents

country-wide settlement of financial transactions between participating individuals and a central banking system) using the biometric finger print identification methodology. The system provides solutions for both the banked and un-banked market segments of Malawi. To date, six financial institutions and British Petroleum (BP), a bulk fuel supplier, have joined the system. A total of 200,000 smart cards, seven automated teller machines, or ATMs, and 350 POS terminals have been purchased and the issuance of smart cards has commenced. The BP Application was launched in April 2003 and is currently being deployed throughout Malawi. A total of 54 BP service stations have been equipped with the necessary POS equipment. The government of Malawi recently committed to pay the salaries of 150,000 government employees through the use of Net 1 smart cards.

When a system is implemented in a country, Aplitec provides the hardware required to receive, allocate and forward transactions to the correct financial institution, customizes the UEPS software for the network (UEPS management system, ATM integrations, POS integration), customizes the applications suite for the client specific requirements (e.g. banking, retail, wage payment) and supplies the smart cards and terminals. All technology sales include an element of support services as programmers and technicians need to adapt or tailor interfaces to the client s existing systems. Ongoing services including maintaining smart card equipment, consulting and support services, and software development are provided to these clients.

The division continues to pursue opportunities to implement UEPS technologies internationally. Aplitec have been awarded a tender in Kenya to install a UEPS-based national health system requiring two million cards. The implementation of the tender has however been delayed due to the change of government in Kenya.

The outsourcing aspect of the division refers to the services Aplitec provides to Nedcor. Aplitec has a rolling contract with Nedcor relating to the outsourcing of its entire terminal management system, Stratus switching modules, software development, smart cards and terminal maintenance. Aplitec also supplies hardware to Nedcor in the form of POS terminals and card readers.

Properties

Aplitec does not own any properties. Aplitec leases certain premises under operating leases. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, lease payments totaled ZAR 19.6 million (\$2.87 million). Aplitec s principal offices are located at 4th Floor, President Place, 148 Jan Smuts Avenue, Rosebank 2128 South Africa.

Legal Proceedings

Aplitec is not involved in, nor is it aware of, any significant legal or arbitration proceedings which are pending or threatened and which may have, or have had in the twelve-month period preceding this proxy statement/ prospectus, a material effect upon the financial position of Aplitec and its subsidiaries or affiliates.

THE COMBINED COMPANY

The proposed transactions will combine the worldwide rights to the FTS patents and UEPS technology into a single entity along with the unique implementation skills, business models and applications for UEPS systems developed by Aplitec. In addition, they will raise sufficient capital to implement Net 1 s international expansion business plan.

If the proposed transactions are consummated, Net 1 intends to focus on implementing the business plan described below. However, we can give no assurance that the transactions will be consummated as planned, or that we will be successful in meeting the business plan objectives in the future.

101

Table of Contents

Market Focus

In an effort to efficiently allocate Net 1 s resources, we have identified two distinct markets for Net 1 s products, based on the benefits that cardholders, merchant cardholders and others would find desirable from the payment system. Each of these markets will require different marketing strategies.

The first and primary set of markets for the technology is the less developed markets , which are characterized by a lack of reliable, extensive and inexpensive telecommunications and related infrastructure systems. These markets have relatively little penetration of credit or debit cards, and a large portion of the population does

not have access to traditional banking services. Aplitec has substantial experience in developing and tailoring UEPS applications to meet the specific needs of potential clients in these environments. Net 1 intends to leverage Aplitec s experience to secure new contracts in other less developed markets.

The second set of markets is the more developed markets. These markets have reliable, extensive and inexpensive telecommunications networks, a considerable penetration of credit and debit card services, and the vast majority of their populations have access to banking products.

Less Developed Markets. Net 1 s present competition in the less developed markets is principally cash. In addition, other companies are developing smart-card based systems for these markets, some of which may become competitive. The less developed markets comprise the great majority of the world s population, and there is generally no alternative to cash in these markets. Due to their lack of infrastructure, these markets have not been particularly attractive to alternative payment systems such as debit and credit cards. Net 1 believes that its product is particularly well suited for these markets, and while individual transactions may be smaller than in developed markets, the volume of these transactions is potentially much greater, representing a significant opportunity for attaining licensing fees and joint ventures.

Net 1 s goal in these markets is to provide a payment system to the population as an alternative to cash. Cash is expensive to handle in terms of the costs associated with administering a cash float and is particularly prone to theft. Moreover, since people in less developed markets do not have access to traditional banking products, they therefore do not deposit their money in secure savings accounts on which they earn interest. The Net 1 UEPS system can enhance the lives of the populations of these developing markets by affording them much greater security with respect to their money and making available banking products such as interest bearing savings accounts. In addition, by simplifying the administrative burden and removing the costs associated with handling cash, Net 1 s system will result in significant savings to employers, governments and merchants. A significant focus of Net 1 in these markets, therefore, is to identify local licensees and/or joint venture partners that it believes will be in a position to effectively market the payment system to employers and governments.

Net 1 s general strategy is to market the UEPS system to those who presently transfer money to others, like employee wages or government benefits. These entities would enter into arrangements with a card issuer, who would then issue cards to their employees or beneficiaries. The wages or benefits for these cardholders would then be loaded onto their cards, thus avoiding the need for the distribution of cash or checks. The funds loaded onto the cards could then be used at local merchants that accept the card for purchases of goods and services. Cash could also be obtained from the card at local banks or retail establishments. The goal is to develop a large installed cardholder base in the most efficient manner. Once a region has a sufficient number of cardholders, additional merchants can be solicited and the payment system expanded. As the cardholder base grows, additional benefits inherent in the UEPS will become recognized and the system will continue to grow. Net 1 is also exploring initiatives in these markets to utilize the UEPS in connection with public transportation, taxis and prepaid utility services such as telephones, electricity and water.

The proposed transactions will allow Net 1 to leverage Aplitec s experience and skills to develop, customize and implement the UEPS in other parts of the world. Over the last five years, Aplitec has successfully implemented systems in South Africa, Malawi, Ghana, Burundi, Mozambique and Rwanda in

102

Table of Contents

applications ranging from the distribution of social welfare grants to integrated national switching systems. Net 1 intends to actively pursue opportunities in less developed markets after completion of the proposed transactions.

The Developed Markets. Our principal competition in the developed markets is the existing base of credit and traditional debit cards, as well as cash, checks and other forms of payment. In addition, several other companies are developing smart card-based payment systems. In order to effectively compete in this market, an alternative payment system must offer some identifiable benefit to the cardholder and the merchant cardholder. We believe that our product offers substantial benefits over existing payment systems in connection with payments for goods and services over the Internet and other selected environments.

One significant impediment to the growth of commerce over the Internet is the reluctance of consumers to broadcast sensitive credit or debit account information. Moreover, Internet transactions settled by credit card are not generally verified, resulting in increased costs for the on-line merchant. There is a need in this market for a payment system which can provide on-line merchants with instant, verified transfers of payments from customers, while not requiring the customer to transmit any information over the Internet which can identify the customer s payment account. We believe that the Net 1 FTS/UEPS payment system can meet these objectives as well as provide additional benefits to on-line consumers and merchants.

We envision a system in which consumers can use their existing account at a financial institution to load their cards with funds. This procedure will be able to operate in many different ways, depending on the relationship between Net 1 and the specific financial institution. If no relationship exists, a simple debit or stop order could be used to allow the cardholder to load his or her UEPS smart card through a simple Internet application, utilizing any personal computer equipped with a smart card reader. In the case where the financial institution is a licensee of Net 1, the debit or stop order would not be required to achieve the above mentioned result. Interest rates and other incentives could be offered to cardholders as an incentive to maintain higher balances on their UEPS smart cards. Internet merchants would then be able to accept guaranteed payments for the goods or services they offer over the Internet. Merchants and service providers would be able to deposit these payments in any financial institution on a daily basis. Cardholders would be protected against the unauthorized use of their card and would always maintain a full audit trail of all their transactions.

Our Internet payment solution is similar to our standard off-line POS transaction. Our ability to readily adapt UEPS to Internet transactions is due to the patented end-to-end security protocol that ensures that any active communication can only be interpreted by the cardholder and the merchant cardholders. We believe that the risk of fraud, repudiation or non-payment is less than competing systems.

Net 1 intends to have a system that can provide payment functionality in pay-as-you-use services. These services include, for example, access to databases or other information systems, professional advice or advanced software or special application systems. There are other competing systems that have been proposed for these markets. Our continuous debit function could ensure that payment is made while the service is being used. This same functionality can be used in applications such as fuel dispensing and telephonic communication.

We intend to market this product to on-line retailers and service providers and will develop a final product based on the specifications for the system required by these entities. Once there is a sufficient installed base of cards, Net 1 will then broaden its focus to conventional banking and retail applications in these markets.

Identified Sources of Revenue

Net 1 has identified several potential general sources of revenue, including:	
manufacture licensing;	
software licensing;	
103	

Table of Contents

usage licensing;

joint ventures; and

hardware sales.

In 2002, Net 1 s revenue consisted of license fees collected by Net 1 Holdings (see below) from UEPS system users in Burundi, Latvia, Ghana, CIS and Malawi, as well as license usage fees from Visa International Service Association. While none of the other sources of revenue have yet been developed, the proposed transactions will:

provide Net 1 with sufficient capital to actively market the technology and secure new business;

provide Net 1 with a history of successful UEPS implementations as proof of the concept; and

allow Net 1 to leverage Aplitec s experience and skills to design and implement financially viable UEPS systems.

Manufacture Licensing. As part of our business plan, Net 1 will license manufacturers to produce UEPS smart cards. We will collect a licensing fee for each card manufactured, and we will further generate fees for access to product information and workshop materials.

Manufacturers of POS terminals and prepaid utility meter terminals who wish to produce terminals capable of supporting FTS based applications will be licensed by Net 1. It is anticipated that these manufacturer licenses will be based on a variety of payment systems, including annual payments, per-terminal payments or transaction fees. Generally, the terminals used in connection with the FTS/ UEPS-based payment system, unlike other payment systems, do not require a great deal of technology as the security process used by the payment system is managed in its entirety by the two smart cards transacting at the time. Manufacturers, therefore, can mass-produce low cost terminals for the Net 1 FTS/UEPS payment systems. These potential revenues have now been limited to U.S.-based manufacturers, as the European FTS patent has been revoked. The proposed transactions will extend this potential revenue stream to manufacturers in South Africa and its surrounding territories.

Neither Net 1 nor Aplitec currently has any material manufacturing licenses in place. Aplitec s smartcards are currently manufactured in France by Gemplus and Sagem, and in the United States by Atmel, and its terminals are manufactured in France by Sagem Monetel and Xiring.

Software Licensing. Net 1 will require that all ultimate users of the software supporting the UEPS smart cards receive a license, for which Net 1 will charge a fee. It is anticipated that this software license will include an annual fee as well as a transaction-based fee.

Usage Licensing. We will license entities that will operate specific applications that use FTS intellectual property or the combined FTS/ UEPS payment system. We anticipate that the license fees for these licenses will include a combination of annual fees as well as transaction fees.

The proposed transactions will consolidate the ownership of and rights to the technology under Net 1. Using Aplitec s track record of successful UEPS implementations and its skills in developing and modifying the UEPS to meet client specific needs, Net 1 will be able to effectively market the UEPS payment system to potential customers across the world.

Joint Ventures. We will explore opportunities to form joint ventures with entities within particular geographic territories. The joint venture partner will act as a system operator in that territory. Under this scenario, we will act as a licensor and may have an equity interest or other participation in the licensee. It is contemplated that we will enter into technology and know-how transfer agreements in exchange for our interest in the joint venture and the other joint venture partner or partners will contribute capital and other expertise necessary to exploit the technology in the given territory. Joint ventures will create ongoing revenue streams resulting from the profits of the joint venture and ongoing license fees referred to above.

To date, Net 1 has had no experience in implementing UEPS systems, which necessitated the Distribution Agreement with Aplitec. As a result, these joint venture opportunities have not arisen. Should

104

Table of Contents

the proposed transactions be consummated, there will be significant scope for Net 1 to enter into these joint venture arrangements in territories in which Aplitec has either implemented UEPS systems or has been awarded contracts to implement these systems.

Neither Net 1 nor Aplitec currently has any joint ventures in place.

Hardware Sales. We will pursue arrangements with smart card and terminal manufacturers, which will enable us to purchase these items in volumes at preferential prices. Aplitec does not currently have any manufacturing facilities, but rather outsources hardware manufacturing to third parties. Aplitec then licenses this hardware within South Africa and its surrounding territories. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, Aplitec generated UEPS related hardware sales of ZAR 61.4 million (\$9.0 million). Similarly, we contemplate selling these items to our licensees, passing along a portion of the price savings.

Competition

In addition to competition that we face from the use of cash, checks, credit and debit cards and other existing payment systems, we have identified a number of other products currently being produced that use smart card technology in connection with a fund transfer system. These include Mondex, Proton and EMV, which represent products from Visa, MasterCard and Europay. We believe that the UEPS technology can be distinguished from these competitors in a number of significant ways.

The most significant advantages of Net 1 s products are the following:

Lower Manufacturing Costs. Since the terminals required for UEPS transactions act only as a power supply and communication channel for smart cards, thus requiring a minimal amount of processing capacity and memory, they can be manufactured at a fraction of the cost of other similar terminals, which generally require sophisticated security and communication hardware components. Furthermore, the UEPS terminals do not require specialized technical expertise to be installed as these terminals can be bought off the shelf and installed by the vendor by following a few simple steps;

Flexibility. Net 1 s terminal network stores all of the relevant information required to perform a financial transaction on a holder s smart card, and thus can operate off-line (i.e. without the need for a data communication session to be active during the transaction) or on line through the use of any communications infrastructure, including satellite, microwave, radio, landlines or any other distribution channel. By contrast, the terminals utilized by our competitors store all relevant information on a host computer and therefore must operate on line;

Increased Security. Each transaction utilizes a unique sequencing algorithm that allows verifiable auditing of the transaction creating a loss tolerant system. This enables the detection and subsequent elimination of fraudulent activity and an ability to replace lost or stolen cards. In addition, UEPS supports pin code and biometric verification of the cardholder at the time of transacting, thus reducing the risks of fraud; and

Ease of Transferring Funds. The encryption security protocols enable cardholders to receive fund-loading instructions from a third party through any unsecured communications channel such as word of mouth, telephone, newspaper or any analogue or digital network. Such loading instructions consist of ten-digit codes that the cardholder enters into any UEPS-enabled terminal. The code, along with the amount to be transferred, the cardholder s PIN or biometric identifier and the smart card s unique serial number (which is encrypted on the card) is then verified by the card and the requested financial transaction is processed.

In addition, the UEPS technology includes functionality that allows:

transparent and automatic recovery in the event of transaction failure resulting from terminal hardware or software problems;

105

Table of Contents

the smart card itself can be used as proof of purchase, replacing the need for a separate ticket and ticketing system, for example, on buses, trains or the lottery;

continuous debiting of value off the smart card, which in turn allows for simultaneous vending and debiting in unattended environments such as fuel dispensing and telephony;

speed of processing that is mandatory in applications such as transportation and access control; and

open or restricted purses that are required to implement certain applications such as pension and welfare distribution and specific funding initiatives.

106

Table of Contents

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following are the managements—discussions and analyses of the financial condition and results of operations of Net 1 and Aplitec, respectively. The following discussions and analyses should be read in conjunction with the financial statements of Net 1 and Aplitec and the notes thereto and the pro forma combined financial information appearing elsewhere in this proxy statement/ prospectus.

NET 1

Selected Historical Financial Data of Net 1

Year Ended December 31,

	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003
	(In US\$, except number of shares)				
Income Statement					
Revenue				\$ 157,565	\$ 41,017
Administrative expenses	\$ 267,161	\$ 336,685	\$ 677,879	324,615	322,907
Financing costs		(475)	(284)	(108)	(21)
(Loss)/ Profit from					
operations	(267,161)	(336,210)	(677,595)	(166,942)	(281,869)
Basic EPS	(0.02)	(0.03)	(0.04)	(0.01)	(0.02)
Diluted EPS	(0.02)	(0.03)	(0.04)	(0.01)	(0.02)
Cash dividends paid					
Balance Sheet					
Total assets	87,470	795,623	90,902	114,039	12,754
Total liabilities	145,720	185,353	158,227	348,306	528,920
Shareholders equity	(58,250)	610,270	(67,325)	(234,267)	(516,136)
Shares outstanding at					
year-end	10,873,244	15,852,856	15,852,856	15,852,856	15,852,856

Net 1 is a development stage company, has a limited operating and financial history and is subject to the risks, uncertainties and problems frequently encountered by companies in early stages of operation. Net 1 s historical results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected in the future.

Introduction to Results of Operations

Net Revenues

Net 1 has identified several potential general sources of revenue including:

manufacture licensing,

usage licensing,

joint ventures, and

hardware sales.

Net 1 Holdings has received license usage fees during 2003 from Visa International Service Association and FTS licensees for Latvia, Burundi, Malawi, Rwanda and Nigeria.

None of the other sources of revenue has yet been developed and there can be no assurance that any will develop.

107

Table of Contents

Manufacture Licensing

Licenses will be required by all manufacturers that produce smart cards that incorporate into their embedded computer chip applications that utilize the FTS patents. Net 1 intends to charge a fee to smart card manufacturers for each smart card produced by such manufacturer that includes the FTS application. In addition, it is anticipated that a yearly fee will also be charged which will entitle the manufacturers to product information and workshop materials from Net 1.

Manufacturers of POS terminals and prepaid utility meter terminals who wish to produce terminals capable of supporting FTS based applications will be licensed by Net 1. It is anticipated that these manufacturer licenses will be based on a variety of payment systems including, for example, annual payments, per-terminal payments or transaction fees, depending upon the particular circumstances. Generally, the terminals used in connection with the FTS/ UEPS based payment system, unlike other payment systems, do not require a great deal of technology as the security process used by the payment system is managed in its entirety by the two smart cards transacting at the time. Manufacturers, therefore, can mass-produce low cost terminals for the Net 1 FTS/ UEPS payment systems. These potential revenues have now been limited to manufacturers that are U.S.-based as the European FTS patent has been revoked.

Usage Licensing

We will license to entities that will operate specific applications that use the FTS patent or the UEPS technology. We anticipate that the license fees for these licenses will include a combination of annual fees as well as transaction fees.

Net 1 receives revenue from Net 1 Holdings from all sales of licenses equal to Net 1 Holdings annual net profit before amortization. Net 1 will recognize the revenue in the period when the financial statements of Net 1 Holdings become available and will report the revenue on a net basis as Net 1 is acting as an agent for Net 1 Holdings under the Patent and Technology Agreement dated May 3, 2000.

Net 1 Holdings has received license usage fees during 2003 from Visa International Service Association and FTS licensees for Latvia, Burundi, Malawi, Rwanda and Nigeria.

In 2003, Net 1 recorded revenues of \$41,017 from Net 1 Holdings.

Joint Ventures

We will explore opportunities to form joint ventures with entities within particular geographic territories. The joint venturer would then act as a system operator in that territory. Under this scenario we will act as a licensor and may have an equity interest or other participation in the licensee. It is contemplated that we will enter into technology and know-how transfer agreements in exchange for our interest in the joint venture and the other joint venture partner or partners will contribute capital and other expertise necessary to exploit the technology in the given territory.

Hardware Sales

Net 1 will pursue arrangements with smart card and terminal manufacturers which will enable us to purchase these items of hardware in volumes at preferential prices. We contemplate selling these items to our licensees, passing along a portion of the price savings. These revenues will only become possible if we are able to raise the funds we require to operate Net 1 as per the business plan.

Operating Expenses

Net 1 s operating expenses consist primarily of statutory expenses, administrative expenses, business development expenses and travel expenses. In addition, Net 1 historically has incurred operating expenses related to its outsourcing agreements and a consulting agreement with Claude Guerard, its Chief Executive Officer.

108

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002

Management continues to be actively involved in negotiations to secure sufficient equity and/or debt financing to fund Net 1 s business plan.

On April 30, 2003, Net 1 retained the Brait Group to provide advisory services and assistance in order to raise equity and/or debt funding for Net 1. On October 24, 2003, the Company announced that it was completing financial arrangements to secure approximately \$150 million, including amounts to be raised from the Brait Consortium. The financing would comprise sales of Net 1 common stock to the Brait Consortium for \$0.50 per share, or a total capital contribution of approximately \$53 million, and a share issuance, in connection with the reinvestment option, of approximately \$97 million. The \$53 million raised from the Brait Consortium will enable Net 1 to make an offer to acquire Aplitec, as well as providing working capital to enable Net 1 to expand its operations and develop its internal infrastructure on an international basis. The share issuance will consist of shares of Net 1 special convertible preferred stock issued for the benefit of Aplitec shareholders who elect the reinvestment option and Brait with respect to those shareholders who do not elect the reinvestment option. The \$97 million is calculated based on the number of Aplitec ordinary shares outstanding (236,977,187) multiplied by the price per share that the Brait Consortium will pay in respect of its investment in Net 1 (ZAR 2.85) and divided by ZAR 7.00, which is the exchange rate at which the reinvestment option has been set. This amount is not impacted by the number of Aplitec shareholders who elect the reinvestment option since the consideration either is received from the Brait Group or by way of the Aplitec shareholders electing to reinvest rather than opting for cash.

Net 1, through the Brait Group, has provided the board of directors of Aplitec with an offer to acquire substantially all the assets and all of the liabilities of Aplitec (excluding ZAR 300 million of cash plus enough cash as is necessary to pay holders of Aplitec shares an additional amount equal to ZAR 0.25 (\$0.04) for each ordinary Aplitec share for which such Aplitec shareholder elects the cash option) for approximately \$129 million through a combination of cash and a share exchange offer to Aplitec shareholders also at a purchase price per share of \$0.50. Aplitec is engaged in the sales, maintenance and development of UEPS smart card based products in South Africa and its surrounding territories with revenues of approximately \$100 million. Aplitec has approximately 2,100 employees. Completion of the financing is subject to compliance with regulatory requirements in South Africa and in the United States, including an increase in the authorized capitalization of Net 1 to permit the shares to be issued.

In the short term, management has continued the suspension of various expenses, including payments pursuant to its consulting agreement with its chief executive officer, Claude Guerard.

Management continues to be actively involved in negotiations with potential clients in view of reaching two main targets:

To establish partnership agreements with IT services and financial services entities, which would provide the total technical support required by Net 1 s licensees to launch and develop their own applications based on the FTS and the related UEPS technology and service.

To develop Net 1 s licensee network on a worldwide basis. We have granted licenses in Latvia, Burundi, Ghana, Rwanda and Malawi, and are currently in negotiations with potential licensees in other countries of Africa. An Australian organization has approached Net 1 for an FTS license for Australia and New Zealand. Negotiations continue regarding the possible grant of licenses for territories in the Pacific Rim

Revenue

Net 1 received revenue from Net 1 Holdings from all sales of licenses equal to Net 1 Holdings annual net profit before amortization. Net 1 recognized the revenue in the period when the financial statements of Net 1 Holdings become available and will report the revenue on a net basis as Net 1 is

109

Table of Contents

acting as an agent for Net 1 Holdings pursuant to a Patent and Technology Agreement dated May 3, 2000. Effective July 1, 2002, Net 1 entered into a new Distribution Agreement with Net 1 (Pty), which replaced a previous agreement. Under this Agreement, Net 1 (Pty) markets, sells and implements UEPS systems on behalf of Net 1. Any license fees arising from sales by Net 1 (Pty) are paid to Net 1 via Net 1 Holdings, for which Net 1 (Pty) receives a commission of 9.5% of all license fees paid by the customer for the duration of the license s existence. This fee is only applicable for new licenses and upgrades of existing licenses. As a result of the revocation of the European FTS patent, Net 1 will be unable to collect any patent royalties in the European Union. However, Net 1 s business plan does not consider such royalties to be a major source of revenue because the key to Net 1 s business operations in Europe is the UEPS technology rather than the FTS patent.

Net 1 s revenue decreased by \$116,548 in 2003 from \$157,565 to \$41,017. This is due to a decrease in license fees and an increase in related expenses, as shown in the following chart:

	Year Ended December 31, 2002 (Included in Net 1 Fiscal 2003)	Year Ended December 31, 2001 (Included in Net 1 Fiscal 2002)	Increase/ (Decrease) in Net 1 Revenue
		(In US\$)	
Revenue License fees			
Latvia	0	50,000	(50,000)
Burundi	5,000	5,000	
Malawi	61,532	61,308	224
Rwanda	5,000	5,000	
CIS States	0	68,123	(68,123)
VISA	2,000	0	2,000
Multichoice Nigeria	10,000	0	10,000
Total Revenue	83,532	189,431	(105,899)
General and administrative expenses	25,239	15,866	(9,373)
Taxation	17,276	16,000	(1,276)
Profit before amortization; attributable to Net 1	41,017	157,565	(116,548)

The loss of license fees from the CIS States is due to a dispute with the local system operator, BGS Smart Card Systems AG (BGS), who claims that the revocation of the European FTS patent relieves it from the obligation to pay licensee fees to Net 1. Net 1 believes that the licensing fees due from BGS relate to its use of the UEPS technology, not the FTS patent and, therefore, Net 1 is currently evaluating its options on this matter. The loss of license fees from Latvia relates to the issuing of a credit note during Net 1 Holdings fiscal 2002 for an invoice raised during Net 1 Holdings fiscal 2001 for \$50,000 as a result of a dispute between Net 1 and the system operator in Latvia, Netcard. The parties agreed to waive the license fees raised by Net 1 Holdings during fiscal 2001 and that an invoice for license fees totaling \$50,000 for fiscal 2002 should be raised. The net effect of the credit note and the new invoice raised is therefore zero.

The increase in general and administrative expenses was due to payments totaling \$3,325 to Net 1 (Pty) under the Distribution Agreement, as well as costs related to Net 1 s patent registrations.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased in 2003 from \$324,507 to \$322,886. This was due to the following:

Professional fees increased by \$101,632 in connection with the independent fairness opinion obtained from Stenton Leigh Capital Corp., as well as legal fees related to the proposed transactions;

110

Table of Contents

Subcontract fees decreased from \$75,047 to zero due to the cancellation of the Outsourcing Agreement with Net 1 (Pty); and

Travel expenses decreased by \$24,530 due to management s efforts to minimize operating expenses.

Net Loss

The significant decrease in revenue combined with the slight reduction in administrative expenses resulted in a net loss of \$281,869 in 2003. This compares with a net loss of \$166,942 for 2002. The potential benefits of income tax losses, amounting to \$95,880 in 2003 and \$56,541 in 2002, have not yet been recognized, and there is significant uncertainty as to whether we will realize these benefits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash used for operating activities in 2003 was \$136,399, compared to \$54,468 in 2002. This increase was primarily due to higher operating losses, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities due to the postponement of the payment of consulting fees to our Chief Executive Officer.

Cash from financing activities was \$127,802 in 2003, compared to cash used in financing activities of \$91,703 in 2002. This reversal is due to the cash flow constraints experienced by Net 1 during 2003 and the subsequent payment of \$36,099 of Net 1 s administrative expenses by Net 1 Holdings, which Net 1 now owes to Net 1 Holdings. This amount does not accrue interest and is due on demand.

The primary source of Net 1 s cash has been through the sale of equity. Net 1 anticipates raising \$52.8 million from the sale of 105,661,428 shares of Net 1 common stock to the Brait Consortium during the current fiscal year. Currently, Net 1 does not have available any established lines of credit with banking institutions.

Net 1 believes that its current cash position, as well as payments due from Net 1 Holdings, are not sufficient to meet its cash needs on a short-term basis or to implement any part of its business plan. Additionally, Net 1 s management believes that it is currently unable to meet its long-term liquidity needs. Should the proposed transactions not be completed, Net 1 expects that it will be forced to cease all business operations by the end of the second quarter of 2004.

Net 1 s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the Company s ability in the near future to (i) raise additional funds through equity financings involving affiliates, controlling shareholders, and unrelated parties, and (ii) further develop markets for its products.

Contingent Liabilities, Commitments and Contractual Obligations

Net 1 does not have any capital commitments. Net 1 s only contractual obligations and contingent liabilities arise from its appointment of an affiliate of the Brait Group as its financial advisor in connection with the Aplitec acquisition. For its services, the Brait Group will receive a fee based on a percentage of the capital raised to finance the Aplitec acquisition, in addition to a corporate finance fee of ZAR 1.15 million (\$168,498). If the proposed transactions are consummated, the Brait Group will be paid a fee of approximately \$3.9 million. The Brait Group has the option of applying up to \$2.5 million of its capital raising fee to purchase 5 million shares of Net 1 common stock at a purchase price of \$0.50 per share.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

During 2002, management was actively involved in negotiations to secure sufficient equity and/or debt financing to fund Net 1 s business plans. On October 23, 2002, Net 1 retained Investec Limited (Investec), an international merchant banking group, to provide corporate finance services and assistance in order to raise equity and/or debt funding for Net 1. Subsequently, on February 12, 2003, Investec and Net 1 mutually agreed to terminate the engagement. During 2002, Net 1 continued to pursue various

111

Table of Contents

negotiations to secure necessary funding either through equity/debt financing or a joint venture arrangement to develop its business.

In the short term, management has postponed various expenses including the consulting agreement with Claude Guerard and its outsourcing agreement with Net 1 (Pty).

In October 2002, Net 1 cancelled its Outsourcing Agreement with Net 1 (Pty) and both companies entered into a Distribution Agreement with an effective date of July 1, 2002. Net 1 (Pty), at its entire discretion and when it deems appropriate and under the terms and conditions as stipulated in the Distribution Agreement, will provide Net 1, with marketing, sales, administrative and technical support as an accredited UEPS integrator for any country in the world other than South Africa, Namibia, Botswana, Lesotho, Swaziland, Mozambique and Zimbabwe. Net 1 will pay Net 1 (Pty) an amount equal to 9.5% of the license fee paid by the customer for the duration of the license s existence. This fee is only applicable for new licenses and upgrades of existing licenses. Net 1 also settled its indebtedness to Net 1 (Pty) for services rendered up to July 2002 for an amount of \$50,000.

Management continues to be actively involved in negotiations in view of reaching two main targets:

To establish a partnership agreement with IT services and financial services entities that would provide the total technical support required by Net 1 s licensees to launch and develop their own applications based on the FTS patent and the related UEPS technologies and services. Net 1 s first partnership agreement was the Distribution Agreement which became effective July 1, 2002 with Net 1 (Pty), for any country in the world expect South Africa and its surrounding territories.

To develop Net 1 s licensee network on a worldwide basis. We have granted licenses in Latvia, Burundi, Ghana, Rwanda and Malawi, and are currently in negotiations with potential licensees in several countries of Africa. An Australian organization has approached Net 1 for an FTS license for Australia and New Zealand. Negotiations continue regarding the possible grant of licenses for territories in the Pacific Rim.

Revenue

Net 1 is still in its development stage, and principal activities have produced revenues of \$157,673, which represent license fees collected by Net 1 Holdings during 2001. License fees collected by Net 1 Holdings, during calendar year 2002 total \$41,017 and have been accounted for during Net 1 s 2003 fiscal year.

Net 1 receives revenue from Net 1 Holdings from all sales of licenses equal to Net 1 Holdings annual net profit before amortization as certified by its auditors in its annual financial statement. Net 1 recognized the revenue in the period when the audited financial statements of Net 1 Holdings become available and will report the revenue on a net basis as Net 1 acts as an agent for Net 1 Holdings under the Patent and Technology Agreement dated May 3, 2000.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses have decreased \$353,088 from \$677,595 in the year 2001 to \$324,507 during the year 2002. This decrease resulted primarily from a reduction in business development expenses and travel costs, as well as the cancellation of the above-referenced Outsourcing Agreement with Net 1 (Pty). The fees paid under this Agreement reduced from \$356,938 in 2001 to \$75,047 in 2002 (prior to its cancellation). Management intends to keep operating expenses at the lowest possible level by developing outsourcing policies.

Other

Management continues its efforts to secure the funding required to exploit the FTS/ UEPS technology on a worldwide basis. During 2002, Net 1 held meetings with Jones Gable Securities, Gruntal Securities

112

Table of Contents

and Thompson Kernaghan to explore possible funding opportunities. None of these meetings were successful.

Strategic alliances, joint ventures and/or investments in companies having expertise in IT services, financial services and proven market penetration are currently being explored.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary source of Net 1 s cash has been through the sale of equity. As of December 31, 2002, Net 1 did not have available any established lines of credit with banking facilities.

Net 1 recognized revenue of \$157,673 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 from license fees collected through December 31, 2001 by Net 1 Holdings. For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003, Net 1 expects to receive \$41,017 from sales of licenses.

Net 1 s cash position decreased \$37,235 from \$57,289 at December 31, 2001 to \$20,054 at December 31, 2002. The cash was used to fund operating expenses.

Net 1 anticipates raising additional funds from the sale of equity during 2003 and 2004. To the extent raised, such capital will be used for working capital.

Net 1 believes that its current available cash position and revenues due from Net 1 Holdings is sufficient to meet its cash needs on a short-term basis, but Net 1 will need a substantial amount of additional capital to pursue its business plans in any meaningful manner.

Net 1 s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon Net 1 s ability in the near future to (i) raise additional funds through equity financings, loans or joint venture agreements, involving affiliates, controlling shareholders, and related or unrelated parties, and (ii) further develop markets for its products.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk generally represents the risk of loss that may result from the potential change in value of a financial instrument as a result of fluctuations in interest rates and market prices. We have not traded or otherwise transacted in derivatives nor do we expect to do so in the future. We have established policies and internal processes related to the management of market risks, which we will use in the normal course of our business operations.

Interest Rate Risk

The fair value of long-term debt is subject to interest rate risk. As we currently do not have any long-term debt, and do not anticipate incurring such, we believe a change in interest rates would not have a material impact on our financial condition, future results of operations or cash flows.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Our revenues to date have been from Net 1 Holdings and have been denominated in U.S. dollars. In the future and as our business develops, our results of operations may be impacted by the fluctuating exchange rates of foreign currencies. Unfavorable changes in the exchange rate of a foreign currency against the U.S. dollar will result in lower revenue when translated into U.S. dollars. If in the future, currency fluctuations were to become significant, we would engage in hedging activities to deduce our foreign currency exposure, including the possible use of foreign exchange contracts.

113

Table of Contents

APLITEC

Selected Historical Financial Data of Aplitec

Year Ended June 30,

			Tour Enc	teu June 50,		
	1999	2000	2001	2002	2003	2003
		(In thousands o	f ZAR, except share a	and per share data)		(In thousands of US\$)
Income Statement						
Amounts in accordance with South African GAAP						
Revenue	ZAR 241,665	ZAR 436,860	ZAR 557,445	ZAR 525,585	ZAR 691,484	\$101,316
Profit from operations	32,703	79,243	125,756	135,000	175,868	25,768
Net profit for the year	29,774	59,558	93,187	104,033	126,187	18,439
Basic earnings per						
share	0.16	0.30	0.41	0.45	0.53	0.08
Diluted earnings per						
share	0.16	0.30	0.41	0.45	0.53	0.08
Cash dividend per common share	0.02				0.11	0.02
Amounts in						
accordance with United States GAAP						
Profit from						
continuing operations			ZAR 61,405	ZAR 86,443	ZAR 108,106	\$ 15,840
Net profit for the year			61,404	86,444	118,803	17,407
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in						
accounting principle			0.27	0.38	0.46	0.07
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in						
accounting principle			0.27	0.37	0.46	0.07
Basic earnings per share after extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in						
accounting principle			0.27	0.38	0.50	0.07
Diluted earnings per share after extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in			0.27	0.37	0.50	0.07
accounting principle Balance Sheet			0.27	0.57	0.30	0.07
Amounts in accordance with South African GAAP						
Total assets	224,476	266,453	392,255	510,717	682,528	\$100,004

Total liabilities	110,754	110,910	83,180	92,262	158,408	23,210
Capital and reserves	113,722	155,543	309,075	418,455	524,120	76,794
Shares in issue (000s)	178,565	198,599	229,814	233,464	236,977	
Amounts in						
accordance with						
United States GAAP						
Total assets			ZAR 479,790	ZAR 587,853	ZAR 767,473	\$112,450
Total liabilities			117,111	155,161	215,132	31,521
Shareholders equity			362,679	432,692	552,341	80,929
			114			
			111			

Table of Contents

You should read the following discussion and analysis together Aplitec s annual financial statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this proxy statement/ prospectus. Certain information contained in the discussion and analysis below includes forward-looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties.

Aplitec has prepared its primary financial statements historically in South African GAAP (or SA GAAP) which differ in material respects from U.S. GAAP. The discussion represented below is on the basis of SA GAAP. Please see Note 23 to Apliteces financial statements for a discussion of the material differences between SA and U.S. GAAP. For purposes of convenience, Aplitece has provided certain amounts in both South African Rand (ZAR) and U.S. dollars. Unless otherwise noted, the rate of exchange used in determining these U.S. dollar amounts was ZAR 6.825 = \$1.00, which was the noon buying rate for customs purposes of the Rand as reported by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on May 5, 2004.

Introduction

For the purposes of financial segment reporting, Aplitec s business is organized into three divisions: Transaction-based activities, Technology Sales and Outsourcing and Financial Services.

Transaction-based Activities

This division consists primarily of Aplitec s contracts to distribute social welfare payments in South Africa through CPS, its primary operating subsidiary. CPS utilizes the UEPS technology to administer and distribute social welfare grants in five of South Africa s nine provinces. South African social welfare grants consist of eight different grant types, including social security, child support and disability grants. Provincial contracts are typically awarded for a period of three years, with an option by the provincial government to extend the contract for an additional two years. The current status of these contracts is:

Province	Contract Expiration Date (Including Extensions Granted)	Further Possible Extensions	Number of Beneficiaries Paid by CPS (as of December 2003)
Eastern Cape	November 05	2 years	438,687
KwaZulu-Natal	December 04	Negotiable	1,150,390
Limpopo	November 06	2 years	813,564
Northern Cape	December 05		118,012
North West	June 05		263,441
Total			2,478,094

Aplitec currently has a 45% market share in South Africa for the distribution of social welfare grants (including grants distributed by the South African Post Office and through electronic funds transfer).

A smart card-based biometric (fingerprint) identification system is used to verify beneficiaries and effect payments of social welfare grants onto individual smart cards. The beneficiary then has the choice of either converting the electronic value to cash using automated cash dispensers or effecting electronic payments through the smart card for a range of services such as the purchase of goods, loan repayments and insurance premium payments.

The system s biometric verification and audit capabilities effectively combat the risks of fraud and theft traditionally associated with cash.

Due to the limited number of services currently available, almost all of the beneficiaries download the value onto their smart cards and then immediately withdraw the full amount as cash. Aplitec s revenue is therefore currently limited to fees earned on the loading and redemption of value on the cards as well as the registration of beneficiaries rather than the provision of services. The direct costs associated with this business are primarily cash handling costs such as security, transport of cash, banking fees and insurance. Fixed costs consist of salaries and property rental.

115

Table of Contents

Technology Sales and Outsourcing

Aplitec has developed a range of technological competencies to service its internal needs and to provide links with its client enterprises. Technology sales refer to the supply of the hardware and software required to implement Aplitec s UEPS systems. Aplitec has, to date, implemented UEPS systems on behalf of Net 1 and Net 1 Holdings in Malawi, Ghana, Burundi, Rwanda, Mozambique and Latvia.

When a UEPS system is implemented in a country, Aplitec normally provides the hardware for the back-end switching, customizes the UEPS software for the network (UEPS management system, ATM integrations, POS integration), customizes the applications suite for the client s specific requirements (e.g. banking, retail, wage payment) and supplies the smart cards and terminals. All technology sales include an element of support services as programmers and technicians need to adapt or tailor interfaces to the client s existing systems. Ongoing ad hoc services, including maintaining smart card equipment, consulting and support services, and software development are provided to these clients who pay for these services as and when delivered.

A major local customer serviced by this division is Nedcor, South Africa s largest bank by asset size. Aplitec has an arrangement with Nedcor relating to the outsourcing of its entire terminal management system, Stratus switching modules, software development, smart cards and terminal maintenance. Aplitec also supplies hardware to Nedcor in the form of POS terminals and card readers.

Financial Services

Traditional Micro-lending. Aplitec operates a traditional micro-finance business, with more than 100 branches throughout South Africa, under the New World Finance and Moneyline brand names. These branches extend short-term loans for periods ranging from 30 days up to 3 months, with the majority of loans being 30-day loans.

These businesses operate on Aplitec s Milpay Pay System, or MPS, which is also marketed to third party micro-lenders. The system is unique in that it enables the micro-lender to set up a salary budget account, or SBA, for the client into which the employer deposits its employees net salary. The SBA can be either a traditional bank account with any banking institution or a smart card. The SBA allows a loan deduction, which is pre-authorized by the client, to be electronically transferred to the authorized party. This ensures that loan repayments are made every month and substantially lowers the risk of bad debts. The remaining sum can then be retained in the bank account or smart card, or transferred to another account.

The MPS includes a credit-vetting module that is linked to the National Loans Register. This ensures that loans are not granted to people with existing loans. In addition, payment slips are checked for other deductions before an affordability (i.e. loan as a percentage of net income) and lifestyle score are given to the potential customer. Based on these scores, the decision to grant a loan is made at the branch level.

Age Secure. Towards the end of fiscal 2001, Aplitec developed a suite of financial services targeted at social welfare beneficiaries, utilizing Aplitec s issued base of smart cards as a delivery channel. The products are marketed under the Age Secure brand and include micro-loans, insurance and food parcels. Age Secure has been implemented in the KwaZulu-Natal and Northern Cape provinces and has approximately 85,000 clients. Aplitec plans to grow and develop the Age Secure business by launching new products into provinces where it administers social welfare grants.

Results of Operations

Six Months Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Six Months Ended December 31, 2002

Revenue and Operating Profit

Revenue comprises sales to customers, fees and interest earned on loans granted. For the six months ended December, 31 2003, revenue increased by 25.7% from ZAR 310.8 million (\$45.5 million) to ZAR 390.7 million (\$57.2 million), primarily due to higher volumes in our transaction-based activities.

Table of Contents 42

116

Table of Contents

Operating profit takes into account cost of goods sold and selling, general and administrative expenses. For the six months ended December 31, 2003, operating profit increased by 40.9% from ZAR 74.7 million (\$10.9 million) to ZAR 105.2 million (\$15.4 million), which increased operating profit margins from 24.0% to 26.9%. Employee costs, Apliteces largest single expense, increased marginally compared to the same period in 2002 from ZAR 71.2 million (\$10.4 million) to ZAR 72.4 million (\$10.6 million).

The relative growth in revenue, and the contributions of Aplitec s business divisions to operating profit, are illustrated below:

Six Months Ended December 31,

		2003			2002	2002	
Business Division	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% of Consolidated Total	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% of Consolidated Total	
Consolidated revenue:							
Transaction-based activities	312,998	45,861	80.1	214,648	31,450	69.1	
Technology sales and outsourcing	21,078	3,088	5.4	35,683	5,228	11.5	
Financial services	56,666	8,303	14.5	60,503	8,865	19.5	
Total consolidated revenue	390,742	57,252	100.0	310,834	45,543	100.0	
Consolidated operating profit:							
Transaction-based activities	72,945	10,688	69.3	58,529	8,576	78.3	
Technology sales and outsourcing	8,108	1,188	7.7	3,367	493	4.5	
Financial services	24,182	3,543	23.6	18,159	2,661	24.3	
Other	(0)	(0)	(0)	(5,349)	(784)	(7.2)	
							
Total consolidated operating							
profit	105,237	15,419	100.0	74,706	10,946	100.0	

Transaction-based activities

Revenue from transaction-based activities increased by 45.8% to ZAR 312.9 million (\$45.8 million) for the six month period ended December 31, 2003. This was due to the following key drivers in Aplitec s social welfare grant payments business:

Full operation of Eastern Cape contract: The implementation of Aplitec s social welfare grant payment system in the Eastern Cape Province became fully operational in 2003, which dramatically increased the number of benefits processed in the six-month period ended December 31, 2003 to 1,918,415 persons, compared with 149,519 in the prior six month period.

Significantly higher volumes in existing contracts: Aplitec experienced significant growth in most of the other provinces where it administers payments of social welfare grants. This growth is mainly due to new qualifying criteria announced in 2003 by the South African government that increased the eligibility for child support grants. In total, the volume of payments processed during the interim period to December 31, 2003 increased by 32.0% to 14,657,256 compared to the same period in 2002.

Annual price increase adjustments: Under its Service Level Agreements with provincial governments, Aplitec is entitled to annual price increases based upon factors such as average grant size, volumes and the South African Consumer Price Index, or CPI rates.

117

Table of Contents

The higher volumes in existing contracts, as well as the price increases relative to the six months ended December 31, 2002, are detailed below:

Six Months Ended December 31.

				•		
	Number of	Payments	Avo	erage Price	per Paymen	t
Province	2003	2002	2003 (ZAR)	2003 (US\$)	2002 (ZAR)	2002 (US\$)
KwaZulu-Natal	6,092,307	5,390,324	23.26	3.4	19.32	2.8
Limpopo	4,426,359	3,545,333	19.00	2.8	16.14	2.4
North West	1,542,715	1,446,561	21.60	3.2	20.99	3.1
Northern Cape	677,460	571,505	26.47	3.9	23.58	3.5
Eastern Cape	1,918,415	149,519	22.13	3.2	22.13	3.2
Total	14,657,256	11,103,242				

The operating profit margin of Aplitec s transaction-based activities for the six months ended on December 31, 2003 declined to 23.3% from 28.0% in the same period in 2002. This decline is due to costs incurred in connection with the conversion in November 2003 of the Limpopo province to a full, smart card-based payment system. Aplitec also incurred increased costs in connection with the process of optimizing the logistics of the Eastern Cape implementation (i.e., number of vehicles, number of payment points and number of beneficiaries at each payment point), while maintaining service levels. As capital expenditures in the Limpopo and Eastern Cape provinces get depreciated and the logistical planning in the Eastern Cape is improved, Aplitec expects its operating profit margins from transaction-based activities to improve.

Technology Sales and Outsourcing

Revenue from the technology sales and outsourcing division for the six months ended December 31, 2003 declined by 40.9% compared to the corresponding period in 2002. This business division has limited annuity-based revenues and is dependent on signing new contracts to sustain its revenues.

This revenue decrease was expected due to a significant change in the division sproduct mix, from low margin hardware sales to high margin software sales. As a result, the operating profit for the division improved by 40.8% to ZAR 8.1 million (\$1.2 million) and the margin increased to 38.5% from 8.2% in the same period in 2002.

A significant local customer serviced by this division is Nedcor, which outsources certain processing and development services to Aplitec. The Nedcor business remained fairly static during the six months ended December 31, 2003.

118

Table of Contents

Financial Services

Revenue from the financial services division declined by 6.3% for the six months ended December 31, 2003 compared to the same period in 2002, due to a strategic decision by Aplitec not to aggressively grow its traditional micro-lending businesses. The revenue of the Age Secure businesses improved as a result of strong growth in our loan portfolio, which increased 15.8% to ZAR 33.1 million (\$4.8 million) at December 31, 2003. By contrast, the loan portfolio of the traditional micro-lending businesses declined by 26.1% to ZAR 28.1 million (\$4.1 million) at December 31, 2003. The key indicators of these businesses are illustrated below:

Six Months at December 31.

	2003 ZAR 000	2003 US\$ 000	2002 ZAR 000	2002 US\$ 000	% Increase/ (Decrease)
					
Debtors book: Age Secure net and gross (i.e. no provisions)	33,034	4,840	28,517	4,178	15.8
Debtors book: Moneyline and New					
World Finance gross	78,191	11,457	84,635	12,401	(7.6)
Provisions	(50,133)	(7,345)	(46,675)	(6,839)	7.4
Debtors book: Moneyline and New World Finance net of provisions	28,058	4,111	37,968	5,562	(26.1)

Operating profit margin for the financial services division increased during this period to 42.7%, compared to 30.0% in the prior year, primarily due to the change in the mix of the debtors book from the lower margin and higher risk traditional micro-lending to the higher margin and lower risk Age Secure business. At December 31, 2003, the Age Secure net debtors book comprised 54.1% of the total net debtors book compared with 42.9% at December 31, 2002.

Other

The results for the six months ended December 31, 2002 include a loss related to unexercised share options issued to empowerment groups at the time of Aplitec s listing, which expired on December 31, 2002. An aggregate amount of ZAR 5.3 million (\$0.8 million) was paid to holders of these options.

Interest Received and Finance Costs

Interest received consists of interest received on surplus cash, while finance costs consists of interest paid on short-term borrowings. Aplitec has a unique cash flow cycle due to its obligations to pre-fund the payments of social welfare grants in the KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape provinces. Aplitec provides the funds required for the grant payments on behalf of these provincial governments from its own cash resources and is reimbursed within two weeks by the KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape governments, thus exposing it to these provinces credit risk. These obligations result in a peak funding requirement, on a monthly basis, of approximately ZAR 200 million (\$29.3 million) for the KwaZulu-Natal contract and ZAR 180 million (\$26.4 million) for the Eastern Cape contract. The funding requirements are at peak levels for the first two weeks of every month during the year. The significantly higher payment volumes in KwaZulu-Natal during the period, as well as full operational implementation of the Eastern Cape contract, increased Aplitec s pre-funding requirements that resulted in an increase in finance costs from ZAR 13.9 million (\$2.0 million) to ZAR 39.4 million (\$5.8 million).

Interest on surplus cash increased for the six months ended December 31, 2003 from ZAR 27.4 million (\$4.0 million) to ZAR 50.5 million (\$7.4 million), primarily due to an increase of ZAR 178.1 million (\$26.1 million) in cash on hand compared with December 31, 2002. Surplus cash is invested in overnight call accounts in the South African money market.

119

Table of Contents

Taxation

Total tax expense for the six months ended December 31, 2003 increased from ZAR 31.3 million (\$4.6 million) in the comparable period in 2002 to ZAR 42.7 million (\$6.3 million), mainly due to Aplitec s increased profitability and the larger STC payment as a result of the larger dividend of ZAR 0.15 per share (\$0.02) declared in fiscal 2003, compared with ZAR 0.11 per share (\$0.02) in fiscal 2002.

Minority Interests

No income was attributable to minority interests in the six months ended December 31, 2003, as Aplitec acquired all of its minority interests during 2002.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Revenue and Operating Profit

Revenue increased in fiscal 2003 by 31.6% from ZAR 525.6 million (\$77.0 million) in fiscal 2002 to ZAR 691.5 million (\$101.3 million), mainly due to higher volumes in our transaction-based activities. Operating profit increased by 30.3% from ZAR 135.0 million (\$19.8 million) in fiscal 2002 to ZAR 175.9 million (\$25.8 million) and operating profit margin decreased from 25.69% in fiscal 2002 to 25.43%. Employee costs, Aplitec s largest single expense, increased 6.94% in fiscal 2003 from ZAR 129.3 million (\$18.9 million) to ZAR 138.3 million (\$20.3 million), following a 7.5% annual inflation adjustment to employees salaries in October 2002.

The relative growth in revenue, and the contributions of our business divisions to operating profit, are illustrated below:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

		2003				
Business Division	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% of Consolidated Revenue	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% of Consolidated Revenue
Consolidated revenue:						
Transaction-based activities	523,550	76,711	75.7	363,164	53,211	69.1
Technology sales and outsourcing	46,509	6,815	6.7	56,224	8,238	10.7
Financial services	121,426	17,791	17.6	106,197	15,560	20.2
					<u> </u>	
Total consolidated revenue	691,485	101,316	100.0	525,585	77,009	100.0
Consolidated operating profit:						
Transaction-based activities	138,222	20,252	78.6	95,583	14,005	70.8
Technology sales and outsourcing	8,344	1,223	4.7	22,763	3,335	16.9
Financial services	34,651	5,077	19.7	16,654	2,440	12.3
Other	(5,349)	(784)	(3.0)			
Total consolidated operating	175,868	25 769	100.0	135,000	19,780	100.0
profit	1/3,808	25,768	100.0	155,000	19,780	100.0

Transaction-based Activities

The increase in revenue in the transaction-based activities division during fiscal 2003 is due to the following key drivers in Aplitec s social welfare grant payments business:

New Eastern Cape contract: In November 2002, Aplitec commenced the implementation of a social welfare grant payment system in the Eastern Cape Province. At year-end, Aplitec processed

120

Table of Contents

benefits for 469,918 beneficiaries. The Eastern Cape contract generated revenue of ZAR 47.1 million (\$6.9 million) in the last eight months in fiscal 2003.

Significantly higher volumes in existing contracts: Aplitec experienced significant growth in most of the other provinces where it administers payments of social welfare grants. This growth is mainly due to new qualifying criteria announced by the South African government aimed at increasing the number of citizens eligible for social welfare grants.

Annual price increase adjustments: Under its Service Level Agreements with provincial governments, Aplitec is entitled to annual price increases based upon factors such as average grant size, volumes and the South African Consumer Price Index, or CPI rates.

The higher volumes in our existing contracts, as well as the fiscal 2003 price increases, are detailed below:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

	Number of	Number of Payments			Average Price Per Payment			
Province	2003	2002	2003 (ZAR)	2003 (US\$)	2002 (ZAR)	2002 (US\$)		
KwaZulu-Natal	11,125,544	8,834,917	20.82	3.1	16.98	2.5		
Limpopo	7,613,864	6,025,866	17.64	2.6	15.32	2.2		
North West	3,008,165	2,992,402	20.99	3.1	19.93	2.9		
Northern Cape	1,138,967	1,005,813	25.07	3.7	23.16	3.4		
•								
Total	22,886,540	18,858,998						

The operating profit margin of our transaction-based activities improved marginally in fiscal 2003 to 26.40% from 26.32% in fiscal 2002.

Aplitec incurred significant costs in connection with the commencement of the Eastern Cape social welfare payment system. This is typical for businesses that have significant up-front implementation costs but cannot begin collecting revenue until implementation is complete. This business model exerts pressure on Aplitec s operating profit margin during the early stages of a new contract. Efficiency and profitability will increase over time as more customers are converted to Aplitec s payment system. Aplitec expects the conversion period in the Eastern Cape to take 14 months to complete.

The losses experienced in the Eastern Cape were offset by the improved profitability of Aplitec s social welfare payment contracts in other provinces. As these contracts are now well beyond their establishment phases, Aplitec continues to improve the efficiencies of these systems through strict cost control measures and improved logistical planning. Aplitec tries to keep any increases in operational, selling, general and administrative expenses below the total annual price increase rates under these contracts. A further positive effect on this division s operating profit margin is the fact that Aplitec s selling, general and administrative expenses remained predominantly fixed in fiscal 2003, while its revenue from these contracts benefited from the significant increase in volumes.

Technology Sales and Outsourcing

Revenue from the technology sales and outsourcing division in fiscal 2003 declined 17.3% compared to fiscal 2002. This decrease was expected given the very successful UEPS implementation in Malawi in 2002. While Aplitec successfully implemented systems in Mozambique and Latvia in 2003, these were much smaller than the Malawi system. The implementation of the Malawi system resulted in some additional revenue in fiscal 2003 as Aplitec continues to provide smart cards and related equipment to that system.

Nedcor, a significant local customer serviced by this division, outsources certain processing and development services to Aplitec. The Nedcor business remained fairly static during fiscal 2003.

121

Table of Contents

Operating profit margin of this division declined from 40.49% in fiscal 2002 to 17.94% in fiscal 2003, mainly due to a significant change in our product mix. The implementation of the national UEPS-based payment system in Malawi, which dominated the 2002 results for this division, yielded significantly high margin revenue for that year. During fiscal 2003, systems were implemented in Latvia and Mozambique, but these were much smaller than the Malawi system. As a result, our low-margin products such as hardware sales and our outsourcing business with Nedcor, which remained fairly static during the year, had a significant impact on the margins reported for fiscal 2003.

Financial Services

Revenue from the financial services business division grew 14.3% during fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002, mainly due to the inclusion of the Age Secure initiative for a full financial year. The revenue of the traditional micro-lending businesses remained fairly static as the result of a conscious decision by Aplitec not to aggressively grow these businesses. The most important key indicators of these businesses are illustrated below:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

	2003 ZAR 000	2003 US\$ 000	2002 ZAR 000	2002 US\$ 000	% Increase/ (Decrease)
Debtors book: Age Secure net and gross (i.e. no					
provisions)	23,861	3,496	20,174	2,956	18.3
Debtors book: Moneyline and New World Finance					
gross	81,890	11,999	82,664	12,112	(0.9)
Provisions	(48,771)	(7,146)	(42,102)	(6,169)	16.8
Debtors book: Moneyline and New World Finance					
net of provisions	33,119	4,853	40,563	5,943	(18.3)

Operating profit margin for the financial services division increased significantly to 28.54% in fiscal 2003 from 15.68% in fiscal 2002, primarily due to the following:

The Age Secure initiative was profitable, on a monthly basis, for the entire 2003 fiscal year. During the first half of fiscal 2002, this business was in the start-up stage and therefore incurred significant costs. Accordingly, the operating profit margin of this initiative improved significantly from the break-even result achieved during fiscal 2002.

The traditional micro-lending businesses exhibited significant improvements in operating profit margins following a management change in the latter part of fiscal 2002. This new management focused heavily on cost controls and managing bad debt. A dedicated collection department was also established, which produced significant cost savings for this division during fiscal 2003 as the amount of doubtful accounts written off and provisions for doubtful debts (calculated on the same basis as in previous years) was significantly reduced, while meaningful progress was made with the recovery of debts written-off in prior fiscal periods. The cost of running an internal department is also considerably less than our previous practice of outsourcing this function.

Other

The outstanding share options issued to empowerment groups at the time of Aplitec s listing, which expired on December 31, 2002, were not exercised. As a result, an aggregate of ZAR 5.3 million (\$0.8 million) was paid to holders of these options.

Interest Received and Finance Costs

The significantly higher payment volumes in KwaZulu-Natal during fiscal 2003, as well as the implementation of the Eastern Cape contract, increased Aplitec s pre-funding requirements, which resulted

122

Table of Contents

in an increase in finance costs in fiscal 2003 from ZAR 19 million (\$2.8 million) to ZAR 49.5 million (\$7.3 million).

Interest on surplus cash increased in fiscal 2003 from ZAR 33.1 million (\$4.8 million) to ZAR 73.1 million (\$10.7 million), primarily due to an increase of ZAR 106 million (\$15.5 million) in cash on hand, as well as significantly higher interest rates earned on deposits. Aplitec also maximized its interest income through the commencement in fiscal 2002 of a cash management system, which allows for the overnight set-off of all cash balances and overdrafts across all of Aplitec s subsidiaries except for micro-lending subsidiaries. Any cash balances related to unpaid social welfare grants received from provincial governments where Aplitec does not pre-fund such grants (i.e. North West Province, Northern Cape Province and Limpopo) are excluded from the Aplitec cash management system and overnight set-off, as the ownership of these accounts remains with the provincial governments. The surplus cash as determined by the cash management system is automatically invested into an overnight call account, as discussed above. Although interest is calculated on Aplitec s net cash balance, the interest cost of the overdraft pre-funding accounts for the KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape contracts are calculated as part of the set-off calculation and disclosed as finance costs in our financial statements. The full benefit of this cash management arrangement was realized in fiscal 2003.

Taxation

Total taxes paid in fiscal 2003 increased from ZAR 43.3 million (\$6.3 million) to ZAR 69.1 million (\$10.1 million), mainly due to Aplitec s increased profitability.

Aplitec s effective tax rates for fiscal years 2002 and 2003 were 29.1% and 34.7%, respectively, compared to the standard South African corporate tax rate of 30%. The increase in the effective tax rate for fiscal 2003 was mainly due to the following:

The payment of ZAR 3.2 million (\$0.5 million) Secondary Taxation on Companies or STC on dividends declared and paid during that year. Since no dividends were declared in fiscal 2002, no STC was owed that year.

Non-deductible expenses of ZAR 10.2 million (\$1.5 million), including ZAR 5.3 million (\$0.8 million) due to the settlement of share options.

Minority Interests

Income attributable to minority interests increased in fiscal 2003 from ZAR 1.7 million (\$0.2 million) to ZAR 4.1 million (\$0.6 million), due to the increased profitability of four subsidiaries that are involved in the social welfare payment business with outside shareholders. During the 2003 fiscal year, the minority interests in three of these subsidiaries were acquired for a total consideration of ZAR 12.4 million (\$1.8 million), which should lead to a significant reduction in income attributable to minority interests in fiscal 2004.

Results of Operations

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Revenue and Operating Profit

In fiscal 2002, revenue decreased by 5.7% from ZAR 557.4 million (\$81.7 million) in fiscal 2001 to ZAR 525.6 million (\$77.0 million), mainly due to the loss of a material hardware sales contract.

In fiscal 2002, operating profit increased by 7.4% from ZAR 125.8 million (\$18.4 million) in fiscal 2001 to ZAR 135.0 million (\$19.8 million) and operating profit margin increased from 22.56% in fiscal 2001 to 25.69%. Employee costs decreased by 3.5% from ZAR 134 million (\$19.6 million) in fiscal 2001 to ZAR 129.3 million (\$18.9 million), mainly due to decrease in staff from 2,392 to 1,884 employees in connection with the sale of our security guarding business, offset by a 6% annual inflation adjustment to salaries in October 2001.

123

Table of Contents

The relative growth in revenue, and the contributions of our business divisions to operating profit, are illustrated below:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

		2002		_	2001	
Business Division	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% of Consolidated	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% of Consolidated
Consolidated revenue:						
Transaction-based activities	363,164	53,211	69.1	366,538	53,705	65.8
Technology sales and						
Outsourcing	56,224	8,238	10.7	98,993	14,504	17.8
Financial services	106,197	15,560	20.2	91,914	13,467	16.4
Total consolidated						
revenue	525,585	77,009	100.0	557,445	81,677	100.0
Consolidated operating profit:						
Transaction-based activities	95,583	14,005	70.8	77,314	11,328	61.5
Technology sales and						
Outsourcing	22,763	3,335	16.9	33,749	4,945	26.8
Financial services	16,654	2,440	12.3	14,693	2,153	11.7
Total consolidated						
operating profit	135,000	19,780	100.0	125,756	18,426	100.0

Transaction-based Activities

The slight decrease in revenue in the transaction-based activities division during fiscal 2002 is due to the following key drivers in our social welfare grant payments business:

Loss of contracts: During fiscal 2001, contracts totaling ZAR 29.7 million (\$4.4 million) expired in the Gauteng and Mpumalanga provinces (see table below).

Price and contract deviation payments: During fiscal 2001, contracts in Limpopo, North West and KwaZulu-Natal generated unusual, one-time price adjustments and contract deviations worth ZAR 46.5 million (\$6.8 million).

Higher volumes in existing contracts: Aplitec experienced significant growth in most of the other provinces where it renders social welfare grant payment services. This growth, together with the price increases detailed below and one-time payments referenced above, partially offset the loss in revenue from the termination of the Mpumalanga and Gauteng contracts.

Annual price increase adjustments: Under its Service Level Agreements with provincial governments, Aplitec is entitled to annual price increases based on factors such as average grant size, volumes and the South African CPI rates.

124

Table of Contents

The higher volumes in Aplitec s existing contracts, as well as the fiscal 2002 price increases, are detailed below:

	Number of Payments			Average Price Per Payment				
Province	2002	2001	2002 ZAR	2002 US\$	2001 ZAR	2001 US\$		
KwaZulu-Natal	8,834,917	5,400,044	16.98	2.5	16.69	2.4		
Limpopo	6,025,866	5,351,519	15.32	2.2	14.62	2.1		
North West	2,992,402	2,790,518	19.93	2.9	18.76	2.7		
Northern Cape	1,005,813	1,016,658	23.16	3.4	21.68	3.2		
Gauteng		736,667			17.86	2.6		
Mpumalanga		592,709			11.03	1.6		
								
Total	18,858,998	15,888,115						

^{*} Excludes the special price adjustments and contract deviation payments received during fiscal 2001.

Technology Sales and Outsourcing

Revenue from technology sales and outsourcing declined 43.2% during fiscal 2002. This business division has limited annuity-based revenues and is dependent on signing new contracts to sustain its revenues.

This decrease in revenue is primarily due to extraordinary revenue in fiscal 2001 from the sale of POS terminals to Nedcor. These terminals are replaced every five to ten years, and during fiscal 2000 and 2001, Aplitec replaced all of Nedcor s POS terminals. The major component of this division s revenue for fiscal 2002 was the implementation of a national UEPS-based payment system in Malawi, which contributed ZAR 20 million (\$2.9 million) to revenue.

The outsourcing by Nedcor of certain processing and development services to Aplitec remained fairly static during fiscal 2002.

Operating profit margin increased in fiscal 2002 from 34.09% in fiscal 2001 to 40.49%, mainly due to a significant change in the division s product mix. The sale of POS terminals to Nedcor during fiscal 2001 was a high-volume, low-margin project, as is generally the case with IT-related hardware. By contrast, the implementation of the national UEPS-based payment system in Malawi, which dominated the 2002 results for this division, yielded significant high-margin revenue as most of the costs associated with the research and development of the core UEPS software had been expensed in prior years.

Financial Services

Revenue from this division increased 15.5% in fiscal 2002, mainly due to the commencement in fiscal 2002 of the Age Secure initiative. The revenue of the traditional micro-lending businesses in fiscal 2002 declined by 9.5% from the prior fiscal year, due to a decision by Aplitec not to aggressively grow these

125

Table of Contents

businesses and to discontinue its medium-term loan products. The most important key indicators of these businesses are illustrated below:

Fiscal Year at June 30.

	2002		200		
	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	ZAR 000	US\$ 000	% Increase/ (Decrease)
Debtors book: Age Secure net and gross (i.e.					
no provisions)	20,174	2,956			100.0
Debtors book: Moneyline and New World					
Finance gross	82,664	12,112	74,744	10,952	10.6
Provisions	(42,102)	(6,169)	(27,316)	(4,002)	61.5
Debtors book: Moneyline and New World	40,563	5,943	47,428	6,949	14.5
Finance net of provisions	40,303	5,945	47,420	0,949	14.3

Operating profit margin decreased marginally to 15.68% in fiscal 2002 from 15.99% in fiscal 2001, mainly due to the following:

The Age Secure initiative had a break-even year following the commencement of operations during fiscal 2002; and

There was no significant improvement in the operating profit margin of the traditional micro-lending businesses, as these businesses continued to battle sluggish demand conditions in an over-traded market and suffered from inadequate operational management. As in fiscal 2001, these conditions resulted in significant provisions for doubtful debts and bad debt write-offs.

Interest Received and Finance Costs

Interest on surplus cash increased in fiscal 2002 from ZAR 11.9 million (\$1.7 million) in fiscal 2002 to ZAR 33.1 million (\$4.8 million), primarily due to the increase of ZAR 120.9 million (\$17.7 million) in cash on hand, as well as higher interest rates earned on deposits. Aplitec also successfully started a cash management system to allow for the overnight set-off of balances across Aplitec subsidiaries.

The effect of Aplitec s 2002 pre-funding obligations under the KwaZulu-Natal contract, together with significantly higher payment volumes in KwaZulu-Natal and higher interest rates, resulted in the increase in 2002 finance costs from ZAR 1 million (\$0.1 million) in fiscal 2001 to ZAR 19.1 million (\$2.8 million).

Taxation

Tax paid increased from ZAR 42.5 million (\$6.2 million) in fiscal 2001 to ZAR 43.3 million (\$6.3 million) in fiscal 2002, mainly due to Aplitec s increased profitability.

Aplitec s effective tax rates were 30.5% and 29% for fiscal 2001 and 2002, respectively, compared to the standard South African corporate tax rate of 30%. The decrease in 2002 is mainly due to the inclusion of ZAR 5 million (\$0.7 million) of tax-exempted income.

Minority Interests

Income attributable to minority interests increased from ZAR 1.1 million in fiscal 2001 (\$0.2 million) to ZAR 1.7 million (\$0.2 million) in fiscal 2002, due to the increased profitability of four subsidiaries involved in the social welfare payment business that had outside shareholders.

126

Table of Contents

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operations

Cash flows from operating activities in fiscal 2003 totaled ZAR 172 million (\$25.2 million), compared to ZAR 124.5 million (\$18.2 million) in fiscal 2002. This increase is primarily due to higher levels of operating profit, a decrease in working capital (decreased inventory and increased payables, partially offset by increased receivables) and an increase in net interest earned, partially offset by higher taxes and the payment of dividends during fiscal 2003. The decrease in inventory was due to the write-off of specifically identified slow moving items. The increase in receivables was due to the inclusion of the Eastern Cape contract, which resulted in amounts owing to Aplitec at year end by the Eastern Cape government, as well as higher pre-payments for smart cards bought for the Eastern Cape contract, which are paid for monthly, as part of the service fee, over the duration of the contract period. The Eastern Cape contract also increased payables in fiscal 2003 as the accruals for insurance, staff-related costs and equipment/services were included for the first time.

Investing

Cash for investing activities in fiscal years 2003 and 2002 was ZAR 70.4 million (\$10.3 million) and ZAR 8.9 million (\$1.3 million), respectively. This increase was due to the following:

A ZAR 56.9 million (\$8.3 million) capital expenditure in fiscal 2002 related to start-up costs on the Eastern Cape contract; and

The purchase of minority interests in three subsidiaries for a total consideration of ZAR 12.4 million (\$1.8 million). These purchases resulted in ZAR 5.1 million (\$0.7 million) of goodwill, which will be amortized over the remaining lifespan of the government contracts being carried out in each subsidiary. As a result of these acquisitions, the minority interests liability on Aplitec s balance sheet reduced from ZAR 3.3 million (\$0.5 million) in fiscal 2002 to zero in fiscal 2003.

Financing

Net cash from financing activities was ZAR 5.2 million (\$0.8 million) in fiscal 2003, compared with ZAR 5.3 million (\$0.8 million) in fiscal 2002. These amounts were due to the issuance in fiscal 2003 of ordinary shares under the Aplitec employee share incentive scheme at a share price of ZAR 1.475 (\$0.2) per share. The slight decrease from fiscal 2002 to fiscal 2003 was due to fewer participants in the scheme in fiscal 2003, as certain employees resigned before their shares vested.

Since Aplitec is highly cash generative and maintains large cash reserves (ZAR 321.8 million (\$47.2 million) at the end of fiscal 2002, ZAR 428.5 million (\$62.8 million) at the end of fiscal 2003 and ZAR 492.8 million (\$72.2 million) at the end of the six month period ended December 31, 2003), it finances all operations, research and development, working capital, capital expenditure and acquisitions through its internally generated cash reserves. It has no debt to service and only requires external funding when its pre-funding requirements in the KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape provinces exceed the available cash on hand. Aplitec has various debt facilities, including a ZAR 450 million (\$65.9 million) revolving credit facility (which it did not utilize in fiscal 2003).

Aplitec has access to capital from a range of external sources, including share issuances and debt facilities. Aplitec takes the following factors into account when considering external financing:

cost of capital;
cost of financing;
opportunity cost of utilizing surplus cash; and
availability of tax efficient structures to moderate financing costs.

Table of Contents

The significant increase in social welfare grant beneficiaries in the KwaZulu-Natal and Eastern Cape provinces may require external financing in the medium to long-term for the pre-funding of these grant payments. Aplitec is confident that its cash reserves, current overdraft facilities and access to external financing will be sufficient to fund its medium to long-term activities and expansion plans.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

Aplitec has entered into certain finance arrangements that are not included in its annual financial statements under SA GAAP. These off-balance sheet arrangements relate to the existence of an insurance cell captive under the management of Mutual & Federal Limited. Aplitec utilizes the cell captive as part of its strategy to insure certain risks for which commercial insurance is not readily available. These risks relate mainly to cash losses suffered as a result of cash-in-transit heists and robberies at our depots. At the end of fiscal 2003, the cell captive had a cash balance of ZAR 10.7 million (\$1.6 million).

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2003 ZAR 000	2003 US\$ 000	2002 ZAR 000	2002 US\$ 000	2001 ZAR 000	2001 US\$ 000
59,696	8,747	11,078	1,623	20,385	2,987
135	20	99	15	159	23
960	141	8,295	1,215	1,412	207
			<u> </u>		
60,791	8,907	19,472	2,853	21,956	3,217
	59,696 135 960	ZAR 000 US\$ 000 59,696 8,747 135 20 960 141	ZAR 000 US\$ 000 ZAR 000 59,696 8,747 11,078 135 20 99 960 141 8,295	ZAR 000 US\$ 000 ZAR 000 US\$ 000 59,696 8,747 11,078 1,623 135 20 99 15 960 141 8,295 1,215	ZAR 000 US\$ 000 ZAR 000 US\$ 000 ZAR 000 59,696 8,747 11,078 1,623 20,385 135 20 99 15 159 960 141 8,295 1,215 1,412

Aplitec operates in an environment where its contracts for the payment of social welfare grants require substantial capital investment to establish its operational infrastructure when a contract commences. Further capital investment is required when the number of beneficiaries increase to the point where the maximum capacity of the original infrastructure is exceeded.

Aplitec s fiscal 2003 spending was mainly due to start-up costs in the Eastern Cape Province. Its 2002 and 2001 spending was mainly due to expansion in the KwaZulu-Natal and Limpopo provinces, where Aplitec experienced significant growth in the number of customers it had to service

Aplitec s other business divisions require relatively little capital investment. The most notable exception was the capital expenditure incurred to establish the Age Secure initiative within the financial services division during fiscal 2002.

All of Aplitec s capital expenditures for the past three fiscal years were funded through internally generated funds.

Aplitec had no outstanding capital commitments at the end of fiscal 2003.

Capital spending for fiscal 2004 is expected to be incurred primarily in connection with start-up costs related to Aplitec s new social welfare grant program in the Limpopo province. The renewal of Aplitec s contract in that province will require substantial investment to modernize its existing infrastructure. Aplitec estimates that capital expenditures for this project will be ZAR 35 million (\$5.1 million) through the fiscal year ended 2005. This capital spending is expected to be funded through internally generated funds. For the six months ended December 31, 2003, Aplitec incurred capital spending of ZAR 13.7 million (\$2.0 million).

128

Table of Contents

Contingent Liabilities, Commitments and Contractual Obligations

Aplitec leases certain premises under operating leases. The minimum future commitments of Aplitec for lease premises are as follows:

Payments Due by Period, as of June 30, 2003 (in 000s)

	Less Than 1 Year	1-3 Years	3-5 Years	Beyond 5 Years	Total
Contractual Obligations	0	0	0	0	0
Long Term Debt Obligations	0	0	0	0	0
Capital Lease Obligations	0	0	0	0	0
Operating Lease Obligations (ZAR)	7,967	5,505	81	81	13,634
Operating Lease Obligations (US\$)	1,167	807	12	12	1,998
Purchase Obligations	0	0	0	0	0

Aplitec s outstanding capital commitments at the end of fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 are ZAR 0, 12,643 and 3,200. These commitments will be funded from cash generated from operations. There are no other purchase commitments, obligations or specific capital commitments for the next three years.

Dividends

Aplitec s dividend policy is to declare regular annual dividend payments of between 25% to 33% earnings. Aplitec declared a dividend of ZAR 0.15 (\$0.02) per share in fiscal 2003 and ZAR 0.11 (\$0.02) per share in fiscal 2002.

Pursuant to Excon s approval of the Aplitec acquisition, dividends may be declared by the New Aplitec board of directors only if (i) such declaration is approved by a majority of the holders of New Aplitec B class preference shares, (ii) all loan accounts have been paid by New Aplitec and (iii) such dividends do not exceed 50% of New Aplitec s annual earnings. However, because the New Aplitec board will be appointed by Net 1, Net 1 will ultimately determine whether any dividends are declared by New Aplitec, subject to the above conditions. Any dividends declared by New Aplitec will be distributed to the holders of A class and B class preference shareholders *pro rata* in accordance with their respective ownership interests in New Aplitec.

Acquisitions and Dispositions

Acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings: On July 15, 2000, Aplitec announced the acquisition of Net 1 Holdings in consideration for the issuance of 9.75 million Aplitec ordinary shares with a market value of ZAR 19.5 million (\$2.9 million). The effect of this acquisition was that Aplitec acquired the FTS patent for South Africa and its surrounding territories.

Disposal of security guarding business: During January 2002, Aplitec sold the assets and liabilities of its security guarding business for a total cash consideration of ZAR 4.913 million (\$0.7 million).

Acquisition of remaining CPS interests: During January 2003, Aplitec acquired the minority interests in CPS (KwaZulu-Natal), CPS (Northern Cape) and CPS (Northern). These acquisitions consolidated Aplitec s social welfare payment businesses under a single holding company, thus improving operating and tax efficiency. Profits (attributable to the minority interests acquired) were recognized and consolidated from January 1, 2003.

129

Table of Contents

Employee Benefits

Aplitec does not provide health or retirement benefits to any of its employees.

Insurance

Aplitec annually assesses its risk exposure. During fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001, all risks were adequately covered by third party insurers, except where the cost of insurance coverage was considered excessive in relation to the probability and extent of loss. This is true with respect to Aplitec s cash and cash-in-transit risks, which has become virtually impossible to procure from local and international underwriters. Aplitec self-insures its cash and cash-in transit risks through a cell captive structure, administered and managed by Mutual & Federal Limited. The periodic contributions to the cell captive are calculated by the group s independent insurance consultant. At the end of fiscal 2003, the cell captive had a value of ZAR 10.7 million (\$1.6 million).

The main categories of Aplitec's insurance are:

loss of/damage to vehicles, electronic equipment and other assets;

business interruption;

motor vehicle third party claims;

group personal accident;

employment practices liability; and

directors and officers liability.

Critical Accounting Policies

Aplitec s annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African GAAP, which requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with absolute certainty, the determination of estimates requires management s judgment based on a variety of assumptions and other determinants such as historical experience, current and expected market conditions and certain scientific evaluation techniques. Management believes that the following accounting policies are critical due to the degree of estimation required and the impact of these policies on the understanding of the results of our operations.

Deferred Taxation

Aplitec estimates its tax liability through the calculations done for the determination of its current tax liability when tax returns are filed, together with assessing temporary differences resulting from the different treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which are disclosed on Aplitec s balance sheet. Management then has to assess the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. To the extent that Aplitec believes recovery is likely, a valuation reserve will be created. The carrying value of Aplitec s net deferred tax assets assumes that it will be able to generate sufficient future taxable income, based on estimates and assumptions. Management has considered future taxable income and ongoing feasible tax strategies in determining the need for the valuation allowance, but in the event that Aplitec was to determine that it would be able to realize deferred tax assets in the future, a valuation allowance may not be required which would reduce net income in the period that such determination is made.

Accounts Receivable and Provision for Doubtful Debts

Aplitec maintains a provision for doubtful debts in its micro-lending business resulting from the inability of certain of its clients to make the required payments. Aplitec s current policy is to provide for the full outstanding amount for all debts which are outstanding for 150 days and longer which as of

Table of Contents 58

130

Table of Contents

December 31, 2003 totaled ZAR 50.1 million (\$7.3 million), which is a 2.8% increase over the amount outstanding at June 30, 2003 (ZAR 48.8 million or \$7.1 million) and a 19.1% increase over the amount outstanding at June 30, 2002 (ZAR 42.1 million or \$6.2 million). Aplitec considers this policy to be appropriate taking into account factors such as historical bad debts, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment patterns. Should the ability of Aplitec s clients to make payments when due deteriorate in the future, additional provisions may be required. A significant amount of judgment is required to assess the ultimate recoverability of these receivables, including on-going evaluation of the creditworthiness of each client.

Research and Development

Aplitec s business activities and product offerings depend on its proprietary UEPS software. As a result, Aplitec has a large group of software engineers and developers who are constantly revising and improving the core UEPS software. Aplitec accounts for the development cost of software intended for sale in accordance with SFAS No. 86, Accounting for Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed. SFAS 86 requires product development costs to be charged to expenses as incurred until technological feasibility is attained. Technological feasibility is attained when our software has completed system testing and has been determined viable for its intended use. The time between the attainment of technological feasibility and completion of software development has been short with immaterial amounts of development costs incurred during this period. Accordingly, Aplitec did not capitalize any development costs in fiscal 2003 or fiscal 2002, particularly because the main part of our development is the enhancement and upgrading of existing products.

A significant amount of judgment is required to separate research costs, new development costs and ongoing development costs based as the transition between these stages. A multitude of factors need to be considered by management, including an assessment of the state of readiness of the software and the existence of markets for the software. The possibility of capitalizing development costs in the future, within the criteria set by SFAS 86, may have a material impact on the group s profitability in the period when the costs are capitalized, and in subsequent periods when the capitalized costs are amortized.

Qualitative and Quantitative Risk Factors

Financial Instruments

Aplitec seeks to reduce its foreign currency exposure through a policy of matching, to the extent possible, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. In addition, Aplitec uses financial instruments in order to economically hedge its exposure to exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations arising from its operations. As discussed in the notes to Aplitec s financial statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement/ prospectus, Aplitec had elected to account for these instruments as hedging arrangements. Aplitec is also exposed to credit risks.

All risks described above and how Aplitec seeks to protect itself is discussed below.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Aplitec has used forward contracts in order to limit its exposure to the ZAR/ USD and ZAR/ EUR exchange rate fluctuations from foreign currency transactions. As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the outstanding foreign exchange contracts are as follows:

	Fiscal 20	003 Fiscal 2002
Forward purchase contracts		(FX Rate 1:10.9943)
Notional amount		USD 1,150,000
Strike price		ZAR 12,643,445
Maturity		08/01/2003
•		
	131	

Table of Contents

Interest Rate Risk

As a result of its normal borrowing and leasing activities, Aplitec s operating results are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates, which Aplitec manages primarily through its regular financing activities. Aplitec generally maintains limited investment in cash equivalents and has occasionally invested in marketable securities. Typically, for every 1% increase in the South African Reserve Bank s REPO rate, Aplitec s interest expense on pre-funding social welfare grants in the KwaZulu Natal and Eastern Cape provinces increases by ZAR 110,000 (\$16,117) per month, while interest earned per month on any surplus cash increases by ZAR 83,333 per ZAR 100 million (or \$12,210 per \$14.7 million).

Credit Risk

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that Aplitec would incur as a result of non-performance by counterparties. Aplitec maintains credit risk policies with regard to its counterparties to minimize overall credit risk. These policies include an evaluation of a potential counterparty s financial condition, credit rating, and other credit criteria and risk mitigation tools as deemed appropriate.

In regards to credit risk on financial instruments, Aplitec maintains the policy to enter into such transactions only with South African and European financial institutions that have a credit rating of BBB or better, as determined by Standard & Poor s.

Microlending Credit Risk

Aplitec is exposed to credit risk in its microlending business, which provides unsecured short-term loans to qualifying customers. Aplitec manages this risk by assigning each prospective customer a creditworthiness score, which takes into account a variety of factors such as employment status, salary earned, other debts and total expenditures on normal household and lifestyle expenses.

132

Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF NET 1 S CAPITAL STOCK

The following is a description of the material terms of Net 1 s capital stock under its proposed articles of amendment to its articles of incorporation. Because the terms of Net 1 s articles of amendment are more detailed than the information contained in this summary, you should carefully consider the provisions contained in the articles of amendment, a copy of which is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement/prospectus.

Share Capital

The articles of incorporation of Net 1 currently provide for one class of common stock consisting of 100,000,000 shares with a par value of \$0.001 per share and one class of preferred stock consisting of 3,000,000 shares with a par value of \$0.10 per share. Assuming the amendment to Net 1 s articles of incorporation is approved, the authorized shares of Net 1 will consist of:

500,000,000 common shares, par value \$0.001 per share; and

300,000,000 preferred shares, par value \$0.001 per share.

As of the completion of the proposed transactions, Net 1 will have outstanding and issued approximately 138,956,156 shares of common stock and 192,967,138 shares of special convertible preferred stock convertible into 192,967,138 shares of common stock, which have been reserved for issuance. The Brait Group has the option to purchase up to 5 million additional shares of Net 1 common stock, which will increase the number of shares outstanding.

Common Stock

Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote per share for the election of directors and for all other matters to be voted on by shareholders. Holders of common stock may not cumulate their votes in the election of directors, and are entitled to share equally and ratably in the dividends that may be declared by the board of directors, but only after payment of dividends required to be paid on outstanding shares of preferred stock according to its terms. Holders of shares of Net 1 common stock do not have preferential, subscriptive or preemptive rights with respect to any securities of Net 1 or any conversion rights. The shares of Net 1 common stock are not subject to redemption.

Holders of shares of Net 1 common stock are entitled to receive dividends and other distributions when declared by Net 1 s board of directors out of funds available. Payment of dividends and distributions is subject to certain restrictions of Florida law, including the requirement that after making any distribution the corporation must be able to meet its debts as they become due in the usual course of its business.

Upon voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Net 1, holders of common stock share ratably in the assets remaining after payments to creditors and provision for the preference of any preferred stock according to its terms. There are no preemptive or other subscription rights, conversion rights or redemption or scheduled installment payment provisions relating to shares of common stock. All of the outstanding shares of common stock are fully paid and nonassessable.

The rights of holders of Net 1 s common stock may be adversely affected by the rights of holders of preferred stock that is outstanding or that may be issued in the future. See Preferred Stock below.

The transfer agent and registrar for Net 1 s common stock is Florida Atlantic Stock Transfer Inc. Its common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board.

Director Qualifications

The Net 1 articles of incorporation provide that the Net 1 board of directors shall consist of not less than three directors. Net 1 s bylaws provide that the members of the board of directors may not be more than nine but give authority to amend the bylaws and increase or decrease the number of directors to the

133

Table of Contents

board of directors. Neither Florida law nor Net 1 s articles of incorporation require that directors be residents of Florida nor that they be shareholders of Net 1 to qualify to serve as directors. Net 1 s shareholders have the right to elect all of the members of the Net 1 board of directors.

Removal of Directors

Under Florida law and Net 1 s articles of incorporation, a director may be removed from the board, with or without cause, by the affirmative vote of a majority of Net 1 s shareholders at a meeting of shareholders at which a quorum is present. Vacancies on the board of directors, including vacancies that result from an increase in the number of directors, may be filled by the affirmative vote of the remaining directors or by shareholders at a meeting held during the existence of such vacancy. Directors who are so appointed or elected serve until the next election of directors and until a successor has been appointed.

Meetings of Shareholders

Florida law requires corporations to hold an annual meeting for the election of directors and the transaction of any other business. The annual meeting must be convened and held in accordance with the corporation s bylaws. Net 1 s bylaws do not fix a time or method for convening an annual meeting.

Special Meetings

Under Florida law, a special meeting of shareholders of a Florida corporation may be called by the board of directors, by persons authorized in the corporation s articles of incorporation or bylaws, or by holders of not less than 10% of all shares entitled to vote at the meeting unless a different percentage, that does not exceed 50%, is specified in the articles of incorporation. Net 1 s bylaws provide that special meetings of shareholders may be called by majority vote of the Net 1 board of directors, the president of the board of directors or by at least 10% of the Net 1 shares of common stock entitled to vote at the meeting.

Notice of Shareholder Meetings

Under Florida law and Net 1 s articles of incorporation, notice of shareholder meetings must be provided to shareholders of record not less than ten days nor more than 60 days prior to the date set for such meeting. The Net 1 bylaws provide that a matter may be properly considered before the annual meeting of shareholders only if (i) the matter is included in the notice of meeting provided to shareholders at the direction of the board of directors, (ii) the matter is otherwise properly brought before the meeting by the Net 1 board of directors or (iii) the matter is properly brought before the meeting by a Net 1 shareholder. In order to properly bring any business before the annual meeting, a shareholder must provide a notice to the secretary of the Net 1 board of directors containing certain required information not less than 15 and not more than 70 days prior to the annual meeting.

Amendment of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws

Under Florida law and subject to certain limitations, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the votes of shareholders cast at a meeting is required to approve an amendment to a corporation s articles of incorporation. However, shareholder approval generally is not required for non-material amendments.

Under Net 1 s articles of incorporation, any amendments to the Net 1 bylaws is effective if approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of Net 1 s board of directors.

Preferred Stock

Net 1 s board of directors may authorize the issuance of new classes or series of preferred stock from time to time, each of which class or series will have those voting powers, preferences and relative,

134

Table of Contents

participating, optional or other special rights and qualifications, limitations or restrictions as shall be specified by the board of directors.

The board of directors may cause shares of preferred stock to be issued in public or private transactions for any proper corporate purpose.

Special Convertible Preferred Stock

The proposed articles of amendment will establish a class of special convertible preferred stock. This class shall consist of 192,967,138 shares, par value \$0.001 per share, and it will rank:

on parity, without preference and priority, with Net 1 s common stock with respect to dividend rights (except as described below) or rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Net 1; and

junior in preference and priority to each other class or series of preferred stock or other equity security of Net 1 under terms that may be determined by the board of directors to expressly provide that such other security will rank senior in preference or priority to the special convertible preferred stock with respect to dividend rights or rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Net 1.

Dividends

Provided that shares of special convertible preferred stock are outstanding, Net 1 s board will determine immediately prior to the declaration of any dividend or distribution (i) the portion, if any, of Net 1 s assets available for such dividend or distribution that is attributable to funds or assets from New Aplitec, regardless of the manner received (the South African Amount), and (ii) the portion of such funds or assets that is not from New Aplitec (the Non-South African Amount). The South African Amount will not include amounts received from New Aplitec due to its liquidation, distribution or dividend after an insolvency or winding up.

Provided that shares of special convertible preferred stock are outstanding, (i) any dividends or distributions by Net 1 s board of Non-South African Amounts must be paid *pro rata* to all holders of common stock and special convertible preferred stock, and (ii) any dividends or distributions by Net 1 s board of South African Amounts can be paid only to holders of common stock. Net 1 s board has complete discretion to declare a dividend or distribution with respect to South African Amounts or Non-South African Amounts.

Liquidation, Dissolution and Winding Up

In the event of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, distribution of assets or winding-up of Net 1, all outstanding shares of special convertible preferred stock will automatically convert and holders of such stock will be entitled to receive *pari passu* with holders of common stock, any assets of Net 1 distributed for the benefit of its shareholders.

Voting Rights

Holders of special convertible preferred stock have the right to receive notice of, attend, speak and vote at general meetings of Net 1, and are entitled to vote on all matters on which holders of common stock are entitled to vote. Holders of special convertible preferred stock will vote together with the holders of common stock as a single class. Each holder of special convertible preferred stock present in person, or the person representing such holder, is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock that would be issued upon conversion of the special convertible preferred stock held by such holder on the record date.

135

Table of Contents

Net 1 may not take any of the following actions without the prior vote or written consent of holders representing at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of special convertible preferred stock, voting together as a separate class:

any increase (including by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise) in the total number of authorized or issued shares of special convertible preferred stock; or

any amendment, alteration or change to the powers, designations, preferences, rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions of the special convertible preferred stock in the articles of incorporation in any manner that adversely affects the holders of such stock.

Conversion

Special convertible preferred stock is convertible into shares of common stock on a one-for-one basis upon the occurrence of a trigger event, which is defined as any one of the following events: (i) notification by the reinvesting Aplitec shareholder of the intention to convert some or all of such holder s units in the South African Trust; (ii) the abolition or relaxation of Excon regulations such that South African residents would be permitted to directly hold shares of non-South African companies; or (iii) the liquidation, insolvency or other winding up of either New Aplitec or Net 1. With each converted share of special convertible preferred stock that is to be converted, Net 1 will receive:

1.228070 New Aplitec B class preference shares; and

such holder s interest in the New Aplitec B loan accounts, which is equal to (A) the aggregate principal amount of New Aplitec B loans, plus any accrued interest, minus any repayment or previous transfer of New Aplitec B loans to Net 1, divided by (B) the number of the shares of special convertible preferred stock outstanding at such time.

No fractional shares of common stock shall be issued upon conversion of the special convertible preferred stock, unless Net 1 s board of directors shall otherwise determine to issue fractional shares. In lieu of fractional shares, Net 1 will pay cash equal to such fractional amount multiplied by the fair market value per share of common stock on the date of conversion. If more than one share of special convertible preferred stock is being converted at one time by the same holder, then the number of full shares issuable upon conversion will be calculated on the basis of the aggregate number of shares converted at that time.

Net 1 will reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of common stock the full number of shares of common stock deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding special convertible preferred stock.

Upon conversion, all rights with respect to shares for special convertible preferred stock will cease. Converted shares will be cancelled and have the status of authorized but unissued preferred stock, without designation as to series until such shares are once more designated as part of a particular series by the board of directors.

Transfer Restrictions

Special convertible preferred stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, or encumbered, except to Net 1 upon conversion into shares of Net 1 common stock. The shares of special convertible preferred stock may not be held by any person other than the Cayman Trust for the benefit of the South African Trust and indirectly for the benefit of reinvesting shareholders of Aplitec or the Brait Group, or directly by the South African Trust for the benefit of reinvesting shareholders of Aplitec or the Brait Group in connection with a conversion into Net 1 common stock.

136

Table of Contents

MANAGEMENT OF NET 1 AFTER THE PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

Board of Directors of Net 1

Net 1 s board of directors currently consists of two directors: Dr. Serge Belamant and Claude Guerard.

Pursuant to the Common Stock Purchase Agreement, Net 1 will increase the size of its board of directors to 10 members. Net 1 has currently identified five members of its board of directors after the closing of the proposed transactions: Serge Belamant, Claude Guerard, Herman Kotze, Anthony Ball and Chad Smart. Mr. Kotze is currently the financial director of Aplitec, and Messrs. Ball and Smart will serve as the Brait Consortium s representatives to the Net 1 board. Pursuant to the Common Stock Purchase Agreement, the Brait Consortium has the right to designate a third person to the Net 1 board of directors. However, it has not yet decided whether to name such designee. Even if the Brait Consortium nominates a third designee to the Net 1 board of directors, it will not exercise control of the board immediately following the proposed transactions. Future vacancies of independent directors between annual meetings will be filled by a majority vote of Net 1 s board of directors. In the event of a tie vote, the board of directors will continue to deliberate on any matter subject to a tie until a majority of the board votes either to approve or reject such matter or, if the tie persists, determines not to proceed.

Directors and Executive Officers of Net 1

The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of each person who is currently expected to serve as a director or executive officer of Net 1 upon completion of the proposed transactions.

Name	Age	Position
Dr. Serge Belamant	50	Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
Claude Guerard	62	Director
Anthony Charles Ball	45	Director
Chad Leonard Smart	31	Director
Herman Gideon Kotze	34	Chief Financial Officer and Director
Brenda Stewart	46	Senior Vice President Marketing and Sales
Nitin Soma	37	Senior Vice President Information Technology

Executive officers are appointed by, and serve at the discretion of, Net 1 s board of directors.

Biographical Information

Dr. Serge Belamant has been a director of Net 1 since its inception in May 1997, and was its chief executive officer until October 2000. From June 1997 to present, Dr. Belamant has also served as chief executive officer and a director of Aplitec. From 1996 to 1997, Dr. Belamant served as a consultant in the development of COPAC (Chip Off-Line Pre-Authorized Card), a product currently being marketed internationally by Visa International. From October 1989 to September 1995, Dr. Belamant served as the managing director of Net 1 (Pty), a privately owned South African company specializing in the development of advanced technologies in the field of transaction processing and payment systems. Dr. Belamant also serves on the board of a number of other companies that are closely related to the smart card business. Dr. Belamant spent ten years working as a computer scientist for Control Data Corporation where he won a number of international awards. Later, he was responsible for the design, development, implementation and operation of the Saswitch ATM network in South Africa that rates today as the third largest ATM switching system in the world. Dr. Belamant has patented a number of inventions besides the FTS ranging from biometrics to gaming related inventions. Dr. Belamant has more than twenty years of experience in the fields of operations research, security, biometrics, artificial intelligence and on-line and off-line transaction processing systems.

137

Table of Contents

Claude Guerard has served as a director of Net 1 since August 1998 and as CEO since October 2000. From December 1996 to October 1999, Mr. Guerard served as Vice President of Gemplus S.C.A., a company in the smart card industry. During this period, Mr. Guerard also served as the Chief Executive Officer of Gemplus South African division, Chief Executive Officer of Gemplus Gmbh, and general manager of Gemplus Central and Eastern Europe division. From 1990 to 1996, Mr. Guerard was Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of AM International France, a subsidiary of AM International Corp., a Chicago-based multinational graphics and printing company. Mr. Guerard also has sales and management experience in computer/technology and related industries having worked for 13 years at IBM and 8 years with Nashua Corp., a company engaged in the sales and service of office equipment.

Anthony Charles Ball has been the chief executive of the Brait Group since March 2000. In this capacity, he led the raising and governance of the Brait Group's private equity funds and is responsible for a number of the Brait Group's private equity investments. Prior to assuming this current position, Mr. Ball served as joint Deputy Chairman of the Brait Group from 1998 to March 2000. Prior to joining Brait, Mr. Ball was the chief executive of Capital Partners, which was the predecessor company to Brait and which pioneered the private equity market in South Africa, from 1991 to 1998. Mr. Ball began his career with Deloitte & Touche Consulting (1986-1991), where he co-founded its Strategy Group.

Mr. Ball is a member of the board of Brait S.A., Brait South Africa Limited, New Aplitec, Afgri Limited, the Reclamation Group (Pty) Limited and Shoe City (Pty) Limited.

Chad Leonard Smart has been a principal of Brait s Private Equity Funds, where he has been involved in numerous private equity transactions. Mr. Smart joined Brait Private Equity in 1998. Prior to assuming his current position, Mr. Smart was a Manager at Pricewaterhouse from 1995 to June 1998, where he covered a full spectrum of financial services activities including mergers and acquisitions. Mr. Smart is qualified in South Africa as a Chartered Accountant and is also a Chartered Financial Analyst. He is a member of the board of Brait South Africa Limited, New Aplitec and the Reclamation Group (Pty) Limited.

Herman Gideon Kotze is currently the financial director of Aplitec and a member of the Aplitec executive committee. Mr. Kotze is a Chartered Accountant who joined Aplitec in December 1998 as a strategic financial analyst. He was appointed to the board as Group Financial Director in January 2000. Mr. Kotze served his articles from 1993 to 1997 at KPMG in Pretoria, where he was the audit manager for several major corporations in the manufacturing, mining, retail and financial services industries. During 1998, he joined the Industrial Development Corporation of South Africa Limited (IDC) as a business analyst. His main duties at the IDC were the evaluation and investigation of ventures requiring funding from the IDC, from small manufacturing concerns to huge multinational projects, as well as the structuring and implementation of loan and equity products for these concerns.

Brenda Stewart is currently a director of Net 1 Investment Holdings and Net 1 Holdings. She is also a member of the Aplitec executive committee. Mrs. Stewart joined Aplitec in 1997 and has worked for the last 20 years with Dr. Belamant while at Volkskas Industrial Bank, SASWITCH, Net 1 Southern Africa, Net 1 Solutions and Net 1 (Pty). Her primary function is to manage all marketing and sales activities for the Aplitec Group. Her secondary function is to oversee implementation and operation of country-wide projects, such as Malawi and Mozambique, as well as pension and welfare systems. Her skills involve in-depth knowledge of marketing sales, project management, operations, implementation, maintenance/repair, customer support, financial management, administration and tax, as well as a vast understanding of the UEPS technology.

Nitin Soma is a member of the Aplitec executive committee. Mr. Soma joined Aplitec in 1997, specializing in transaction switching and interbank settlements. He has represented Nedcor Bank in the development of technical specifications for the South African Interbank Standards. He is also responsible for the ATM settlement process to balance ATMs with the host as well as other card users. Mr. Soma designed the Stratus Back-End System for Aplitec.

138

Table of Contents

Committees of the Board of Directors

Net 1 s board intends to form standing audit and compensation committees soon after the consummation of the proposed transactions. The audit committee will have the following functions:

make recommendations to the board of directors regarding the selection of independent auditors;

review the results and scope of the audit and other services provided by Net 1 s independent auditors;

review Net 1 s financial statements; and

review and evaluate Net 1 s internal control functions.

It is currently anticipated that the members of the audit committee will be independent directors, meaning that they will not be affiliates of Net 1 and will not accept any compensatory fees from Net 1 or its subsidiaries. None of our current or designated directors are considered independent directors for purposes of serving on our audit committee. Following the consummation of the proposed transactions, our board of directors will consider whether it will appoint independent directors to serve on its audit committee.

Net 1 s compensation committee will consist of a majority of independent directors. The compensation committee will make recommendations to the board of directors regarding the following matters:

executive compensation;

salaries and incentive compensation for Net 1 s employees and consultants; and

the administration of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Net 1 expects that directors who are also full-time employees of Net 1 will not receive additional compensation for their service as directors. Each non-employee director of Net 1 will receive compensation for service on Net 1 s board of directors as determined by the board of directors.

In connection with the proposed transactions, Net 1 and New Aplitec will enter into employment agreements with each of Dr. Belamant, Herman Kotze, Brenda Stewart and Nitin Soma, which agreements will set forth certain terms and conditions of these individuals employment, including the amount and form of their compensation. Otherwise, the form and amount of compensation that Net 1 will pay to each of its executive officers in any future period will be determined by the compensation committee of the Net 1 board of directors.

Our executive officers did not receive any compensation for the year ended December 31, 2003. Net 1 did not set aside or accrue any amounts for pension, retirement or similar benefits, as it did not provide such benefits for its executive officers.

139

Table of Contents

2004 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Net 1 plans to adopt, subject to the approval of its shareholders, the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan will permit Net 1 to grant to our employees, directors and consultants incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance-based awards and other awards based on our common stock. The following description summarizes the material terms of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, but is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, which is set forth as Annex B to this proxy statement/ prospectus.

Administration

The board of directors of Net 1 (or its delegate) will administer the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, and is referred to below as the committee. The committee may delegate its authority under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan in whole or in part as it determines, but will consist, unless otherwise determined by the board of directors, (1) during any period that Net 1 is subject to Section 16 of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, solely of at least two non-employee directors, and (2) during any period that Net 1 is subject to Section 162(m) of the Code, solely of at least two outside directors. The committee will determine who will receive awards under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as well as the form of the awards, the number of shares underlying the awards, and the terms and conditions of the award consistent with the terms of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The committee is authorized to interpret the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, to establish, amend and rescind any rules and regulations relating to the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, and to make any other determinations that it deems necessary or desirable for the administration of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. The committee also may correct any defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan in the manner and to the extent that the committee deems it necessary or desirable.

Term

No awards may be granted under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan after the tenth anniversary of the effective date of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, but awards granted before such tenth anniversary may extend beyond that date.

Shares Reserved for Awards and Limits on Awards

The total number of shares of Net 1 common stock available under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan initially will be 17,441,872, of which 8,720,936 shares may be used with respect to stock options, and 8,720,936 shares may be used in respect of other stock-based awards, which may include grants of restricted shares. The maximum number of shares for which stock options and stock appreciation rights, or for which other stock-based awards may be granted during a calendar year to any participant is 2,616,281, which is approximately 30% of the total number of shares that may be used with respect to stock options or stock-based awards under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan. Net 1 will issue stock-based awards in the form of restricted shares in respect of all 8,720,936 shares available for such awards to certain key employees upon completion of the proposed transactions.

The number and kind of shares of Net 1 common stock issued or reserved pursuant to the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan or outstanding awards, the maximum number of shares issuable pursuant to awards, the exercise price for awards, and other affected terms of awards, are subject to adjustment on account of stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations, mergers, consolidations, spin-offs and other corporate events. Shares covered by awards that expire, terminate or lapse without payment will again be available for the grant of awards under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, as well as shares that are used by the holder to pay withholding taxes or as payment for the exercise price of an award, if permitted by the committee.

In the event of certain corporate events, including stock sales, mergers, and sales of substantial assets, the committee may, but shall not be obligated to, cancel outstanding awards for fair value, waive vesting requirements, provide for the issuance of substitute awards, and/or provide that, for a period of time prior

140

Table of Contents

to such corporate event, options will be exercisable for all shares subject to the option and that upon the occurrence of the corporate event the options will terminate.

Stock Options

The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan will permit the committee to grant employees incentive stock options, which qualify for special tax treatment in the United States, and will permit the committee to grant employees, directors and consultants nonqualified stock options. The committee will establish the duration of each option at the time it is granted. The maximum duration of an incentive stock option is ten years after the date of grant. The committee will establish the exercise price of each option at the time it is granted. Initial grants of nonqualified stock options to certain members of management may be made at an exercise price of \$0.50 per share, which is based on the price per share of Net 1 common stock being issued to the Brait Consortium. The exercise price of an incentive stock option may not be less than the fair market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The committee may establish vesting and performance requirements that must be met prior to the exercise of options. Unless otherwise determined by the committee, stock options will vest ratably, on an annual basis, over a period of five years, commencing with the first anniversary of the grant date.

The exercise price of stock options may be paid in cash by the holder. Stock option grants may include provisions that permit the option holder, to the extent permitted by the committee, to exercise all or part of the holder s vested options, or to satisfy withholding tax liabilities, by tendering mature shares of our common stock already owned by the option holder for at least six months (or another period consistent with the applicable accounting rules) with a fair market value equal to the exercise price. Stock option grants also may include provisions that permit the option holder, to the extent permitted by the committee and only if there is a public market for the shares, to exercise all or part of the holder s vested options through a cashless exercise procedure, which requires the delivery of irrevocable instructions to a broker to sell the shares obtained upon exercise of the option and deliver promptly to Net 1 the proceeds of the sale equal to the exercise price of the common stock being purchased.

Stock Appreciation Rights

The committee also may grant stock appreciation rights, either singly or in tandem with underlying stock options. Stock appreciation rights entitle the holder upon exercise to receive an amount in any combination of cash or shares of our common stock (as determined by the committee) equal in value to the excess of the fair market value of the shares covered by the right over the grant price.

Other Stock-Based Awards

The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan also will permit the committee to grant awards that are valued by reference to, or otherwise based on the fair market value of, our common stock. These awards will be in such form and subject to such conditions, as the committee may determine, including the satisfaction of performance goals, the completion of periods of service or the occurrence of events.

Net 1 will issue stock-based awards in the form of restricted shares in respect of all 8,720,936 shares available for such awards to Dr. Belamant, Herman Kotze, Brenda Stewart and Nitin Soma upon completion of the proposed transactions. These will be grants of restricted common stock for no cash consideration, which will be subject to such risks of forfeiture and other restrictions as may be set forth in the individuals employment agreements or determined by the committee at the time of grant. These restricted stock awards will vest ratably, on an annual basis, over a period of four years, commencing with the grant date.

Performance Standards and Section 162(m)

Performance criteria for performance-based awards under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan may relate to any combination of the total corporation, a subsidiary, and/or any business unit. Performance targets may be set at a specific level or may be expressed relative to measures at comparison companies or a defined index. The committee will establish specific targets for recipients.

141

Table of Contents

In general, Section 162(m) of the Code prevents the deductibility for U.S. income tax purposes of compensation in excess of one million dollars paid in any taxable year to an individual who on the last day of that year is the company schief executive officer or is among its four other most highly compensated executive officers, except that a deduction may be taken for compensation that qualifies as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m). Options granted at fair market value ordinarily satisfy the performance-based requirements of Section 162(m), if shareholder disclosure and approval requirements are met. If restricted stock or performance-based awards are intended to satisfy Section 162(m) deductibility requirements, payments under such awards must be conditioned on attainment of pre-established objective performance measures that have been established and certified by a committee of outside directors and approved by shareholders. The performance criteria under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan include: consolidated earnings before or after taxes, net income, operating income, earnings per share, book value per share, return on shareholder s equity, expense management, return on investment, improvements in capital structure, profitability, profit margins, stock price, market share, revenues, costs, cash flow, working capital, and return on assets.

Transferability

Unless otherwise determined by the committee, awards may not be transferred or assigned by the holder otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

Amendment

Our board may amend the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan at any time, provided that no amendment will be made without the consent of the affected holder that diminishes the rights of the holder of any award, and except that the board may amend the plan in such manner as it deems necessary to permit awards to meet the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code or other applicable laws. No amendment to the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan by our Board may be made without the approval of shareholders if it would increase the total number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan or change the maximum number of shares for which awards may be granted to participants, except for such changes in accordance with the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan s adjustment provisions described above.

United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following discussion of the United States federal income tax consequences relating to the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan is based on present United States federal tax laws and regulations and does not purport to be a complete description of the United States federal tax laws. Participants may also be subject to certain U.S. state and local taxes and non-U.S. taxes, which are not described below.

When a non-qualified stock option is granted, there are generally no U.S. income tax consequences for the option holder or Net 1. When a non-qualified stock option is exercised, in general, the option holder recognizes compensation equal to the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the underlying class of common stock on the date of exercise over the exercise price. Net 1 is entitled to a deduction equal to the compensation recognized by the option holder.

When an incentive stock option is granted, there are no U.S. income tax consequences for the option holder or Net 1. When an incentive stock option is exercised, the option holder does not recognize income and Net 1 does not receive a deduction. The option holder, however, must treat the excess, if any, of the fair market value of the underlying class of common stock on the date of exercise over the exercise price as an item of adjustment for purposes of the alternative minimum tax. If the option holder disposes of the shares after the option holder has held them for at least two years after the incentive stock option was granted and one year after the incentive stock option was exercised, the amount the option holder receives upon the disposition over the exercise price is treated as long-term capital gain to the option holder. Net 1 is not entitled to a deduction. If the option holder makes a disqualifying disposition of the stock by disposing of the stock before the stock has been held for the holding period described above, the option holder generally recognizes compensation income equal to the excess, if any, of (1) the fair market value of the stock on the date of exercise, or, if less, the amount received on the disposition, over (2) the exercise price. Net 1 is entitled to a deduction equal to the compensation recognized by the option holder.

142

Table of Contents

When a stock appreciation right is granted, there are no U.S. income tax consequences for the participant or Net 1. When a stock appreciation right is exercised, in general, the participant recognizes compensation equal to the cash and/or the fair market value of the stock received on exercise. Net 1 is entitled to a deduction equal to the compensation recognized by the participant.

In general, other types of awards that may be issued under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan are taxable to the holder upon receipt, except that awards of restricted stock are taxable to the holder on the date the shares vest, or on the date of receipt if the individual makes an election under Section 83(b) of the Code.

143

Table of Contents

PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS AFTER THE PROPOSED TRANSACTIONS

The following table presents, as of the date of completion of the proposed transactions, the anticipated beneficial ownership of shares of Net 1 common stock and special convertible preferred stock by:

each person or entity which, to our knowledge, will own beneficially more than 5% of the outstanding shares of Net 1 common stock or special convertible preferred stock;

each of our current and expected future directors and executive officers; and

all of our current and expected future directors and executive officers as a group.

Unless otherwise indicated, to Net 1 s knowledge, all persons listed below have sole voting and investment power with respect to their shares, except to the extent applicable law gives spouses shared authority.

Beneficial Owner	Number of Shares of Common Stock	Percentage of Shares of Common Stock	Number of Shares of Special Convertible Preferred Stock	Percentage of Shares of Special Convertible Preferred Stock	Ownership of Shares of Net 1 Common Stock on a Fully Diluted Basis
Net 1 Holdings	8,520,578	6.13			2.57
Nedbank Ltd.			56,524,278	29.29	17.03
Allan Gray Inv. Mgmt.			42,914,210	22.24	12.93
Brait Consortium(1)	105,661,428	76.04			31.83
Serge Belamant	8,520,578(2)	6.13	11,593,671	6.01	6.06
Claude Guerard	608,511(3)	*			0.18
Herman Kotze					
Brenda Stewart					
Nitin Soma			271,429(4)	*	*
All directors and executive					
officers as a group	8,520,578	6.13	11,865,100	6.15	6.14

^{*} Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1% of the shares of Net 1 common stock on a fully diluted basis.

- (1) Assumes that 100% of Aplitec's current shareholders elect the reinvestment option. The Brait Group, which is a member of the Brait Consortium, has committed, subject to certain limitations, to acquire all of the interests in New Aplitec not taken up by Aplitec's shareholders, which could result in the Brait Consortium beneficially owning up to 69.90% of Net 1. Assumes further that the Brait Group does not apply any portion of its capital raising fee due from Net 1 to purchase shares of Net 1 common stock. If the Brait Group elects to purchase 5 million shares of Net 1 common stock (the maximum allowable under this option), then its percentage ownership of shares of Net 1 common stock would increase to 76.87% and its percentage ownership on a fully diluted basis would increase to 32.84%. Anthony Ball, who is expected to be a member of Net 1 s board of directors, is chief executive of the Brait Group, which is a member of the Brait Consortium. Chad Smart, who is also expected to be a member of the Net 1 board of directors, is a principal of Brait s Private Equity Funds, which is an affiliate of the Brait Group. Messrs. Ball and Smart each disclaims beneficial ownership of any shares of Net 1 common stock or special convertible preferred stock to be held by the Brait Consortium or the Brait Group.
- (2) Dr. Belamant is deemed to be the beneficial owner of 8,520,578 shares of Net 1 common stock owned by Net 1 Holdings because, as the chief executive of Net 1 Holdings, Dr. Belamant has the right to vote these shares.

144

Table of Contents

- (3) It is expected that Mr. Guerard will receive 608,511 shares of Net 1 common stock that is currently owned by Net 1 Holdings soon after the completion of the proposed transactions. See Proposed Transactions Interests of Certain Persons in the Proposed Transactions.
- (4) Assumes that Nitin Soma, who owns shares of Aplitec, elects the reinvestment option.

For reference, the following table shows the same information as of February 28, 2004. This table also appears in Net 1 s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Name	Shares	Beneficially Owned
Net 1 Holdings S.a.r.l.	8,520,578	53.75%
Gemplus SCA(1)	1,521,278	9.59%
Serge Belamant(2)	8,520,578	53.75%
Claude Guerard(3)	608,511	3.83%
David Anthony	0	0%
All Officers and Directors	9,129,089	57.58%

- (1) Gemplus SCA is a French corporation whose address is Avenue du Pic De Bertagne, 13884 Gemenos, France. Mr. Claude Guerard served as an executive officer of Gemplus from December 1996 to October 1999.
- (2) Dr. Belamant, as Chief Executive Officer of Net 1 Holdings, exercises voting control over all of the shares of Net 1 common stock owned by Net 1 Holdings.
- (3) In September 1998, Serge Belamant, as Chief Executive of Net 1 Holdings, agreed verbally to grant to Claude Guerard 608,511 shares of Net 1 Common Stock owned by Net 1 Holdings with the condition precedent that the shares would only be transferred from Net 1 Holdings to Mr. Guerard if Net 1 raised sufficient funds to be in a position to implement its business plan. On consummation of the proposed transactions, Mr. Guerard will have the right to receive these shares of Net 1 Common Stock.

The following table presents information concerning total compensation paid in 2003 to each of the four executive officers of Aplitec that will serve as executive officers of Net 1 after completion of the proposed transactions:

	2	2003 (ZAR 000s)			2003 (\$ 000s)		
	Basic Salary	Bonus	Total	Basic Salary	Bonus	Total	
Serge Belamant	1,431	400	1831	210	59	269	
Herman Kotze	863	180	1043	126	26	152	
Brenda Stewart	720	130	855	106	19	125	
Nitin Soma	670	120	790	98	18	116	
	145						

Table of Contents

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Net 1

On October 1, 1999, Net 1 entered into a consulting agreement with Claude Guerard, pursuant to which Mr. Guerard was retained in part to advise Net 1 on a possible corporate restructuring and the implementation of a worldwide partnership network for the UEPS technology. Under this agreement, Mr. Guerard was also given the title of Chief Executive Officer of Net 1. Total fees paid to Mr. Guerard under this agreement were \$150,000 in 2001 and \$12,500 in 2002. Additionally, Net 1 still owes Mr. Guerard \$287,500 under this agreement. The parties have no formal agreement regarding the payment of this amount, but Net 1 intends to pay Mr. Guerard when it improves its liquidity position.

On February 26, 2001, Net 1 signed a one-year agreement effective January 1, 2001, with Net 1 (Pty) to provide Net 1 with marketing, sales, administrative, financial reporting and technical support services at a rate of \$30,000 per month. On January 29, 2002, pursuant to a resolution of Net 1 s board of directors, the payment of these consulting fees was postponed until Net 1 has sufficient funds to cover operating expenses. To date, Net 1 has not made any payment under this agreement.

In 2002, Net 1 recorded realized revenue of \$157,653 from Net 1 Holdings pursuant to the Patent and Technology Agreement. See Business Net 1 s Business History.

On April 30, 2003, Net 1 retained an affiliate of the Brait Group as its financial advisor to develop the structure and implementation of a possible acquisition of Aplitec, including the raising of funds necessary to finance such acquisition and obtaining the necessary approvals of South African regulatory authorities. Amendments to this agreement were signed on January 30, 2004, March 12, 2004 and March 26, 2004. This arrangement is described under The Proposed Transactions Background to the Proposed Transactions.

On January 30, 2004, Net 1 executed the Common Stock Purchase Agreement with SAPEF III International G.P. Limited. Net 1 and SAPEF III International G.P. Limited are also parties to the Umbrella Agreement and the South African Trust Deed. These agreements are described on pages 66 and 68, respectively, of this proxy statement/ prospectus, and copies of the agreements were filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this proxy statement/ prospectus is a part.

Aplitec

Light & Livingstone Financial Services CC (L&L), of which Mr. J.C. Livingstone is a member, performs administrative services for Aplitec. Fees paid to L&L totaled ZAR 23,681 (\$3,470) and ZAR 14,525 (\$2,128) in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Mr. Livingstone is currently a non-executive director of Aplitec.

146

Table of Contents

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Net 1 as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003 included in this proxy statement/ prospectus have been audited by Manning Elliott, chartered accountants, as stated in their report appearing herein and is included in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of Aplitec as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 and for each of the fiscal years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2003 included in this proxy statement/ prospectus have been audited by Fisher Hoffman PKF (Jhb) Inc., chartered accountants, as stated in their report appearing herein and is included in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

If the proposed transactions are not approved, Net 1 will hold an annual meeting of shareholders in 2004. If you are a Net 1 shareholder and want to have a shareholder proposal considered for inclusion in the proxy statement for that meeting, you must submit the proposal in writing to the secretary of Net 1 at Suite 325-744 West Hastings Street, Vancouver, British Columbia Canada V6C 1A5 on or before the date set forth in the proxy statement distributed in advance of that meeting. Any shareholder proposal that is not submitted as described above will be subject to the discretionary authority of the persons named on the proxy for Net 1 s 2004 annual meeting of shareholders.

LEGAL MATTERS

The legality of the Net 1 securities offered hereby will be passed upon for Net 1 by Schneider Weinberger LLP.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

Net 1 has filed a registration statement on Form S-4 to register with the SEC the shares of common stock to be delivered in connection with the transactions. This proxy statement/ prospectus is a part of that registration statement and constitutes a prospectus of Net 1 in connection with the issuance of the Net 1 securities in the Aplitec acquisition, in addition to being a proxy statement of Net 1 for the meeting of its stockholders. As allowed by SEC rules, this proxy statement/ prospectus does not contain all the information you can find in the registration statement or the exhibits to the registration statement.

Net 1 is subject to the information reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the Exchange Act) and, under the Exchange Act, files reports and other information with the SEC. Net 1 files annual and current reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy these reports and other information at the SEC s Public Reference Rooms at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20549 at prescribed rates. You may also request copies of these documents, upon payment of the duplicating fee, by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the SEC s Public Reference Rooms. Net 1 s SEC filings are, and Net 1 s future filings will also be, available to the public on the SEC s Internet site (http://www.sec.gov).

Net 1 has not authorized anyone to give any information or make any representation about the transactions that is different from, or in addition to, that contained in this proxy statement/ prospectus or in any of the materials that are incorporated by reference into this proxy statement/ prospectus. Therefore, if anyone does give you information of this sort, you should not rely on it. If you are in a jurisdiction where offers to exchange or sell, or solicitations of offers to exchange or purchase, the securities offered by this proxy statement/ prospectus are unlawful, or if you are a person to whom it is unlawful to direct these types of activities, then the offer presented in this proxy statement/ prospectus does not extend to you. The information contained in this proxy statement/ prospectus speaks only as of the date of this document unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.

147

Table of Contents

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements of Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc.	F-2
Financial Statements of Net I Applied Technology Holdings Limited for	
the three years ended June 30, 2003	F-13
Financial Statements of Net 1 Applied Technology Holdings Limited for	
the six month period ended December 31, 2003 (unaudited)	F-50

F-1

Table of Contents

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

of Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. (A Development Stage Company)

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. (A Development Stage Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the related statements of operations, shareholders equity and cash flows for the period from May 8, 1997 (Inception) to December 31, 2003 and the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. (A Development Stage Company), as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period from May 8, 1997 (Inception) to December 31, 2003 and the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has not generated any revenues or profitable operations since inception. Although the initial absence of revenues or profitable operations is normal for companies in the development stage, these factors raise substantial doubt about the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result due to going concern uncertainties.

Chartered Accountants Vancouver, Canada February 18, 2004

F-2

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS

	December 31,		
	2003	2002	
ASSETS			
Current Assets			
Cash	\$ 11,457	\$ 20,054	
Due from related party (Note 6(d))		91,703	
Total Current Assets	11,457	111,757	
Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 3)	,	9	
Intangible Assets (Note 4)	1,327	2,273	
Total Assets	\$ 12,784	\$ 114,039	
	,,	, 55,,,,,	
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHO	I DERS DEFICIT		
Current Liabilities	LDERS DEFICIT		
Accounts payable (Note 6(b))	\$ 488,321	\$ 337,503	
Accrued liabilities	4,500	10,803	
Due to related party (Note 6(e))	36,099	10,003	
2 de to related party (riote o(e))			
Total Current Liabilities	528,920	348,306	
Stockholders Deficit	320,920	340,300	
Share capital			
Authorized			
3,000,000 preferred shares with \$0.10 par value			
100,000,000 common shares with \$0.001 par			
value			
Issued			
15,852,856 common shares	15,853	15,853	
Additional paid-in capital	1,991,519	1,991,519	
Deficit accumulated during the development stage	(2,523,508)	(2,241,639)	
ę			
Total Stockholders Deficit	(516,136)	(234,267)	
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Deficit	\$ 12,784	\$ 114,039	

See accompanying notes

F-3

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

		Accumulation from May 8, 1997 (Inception) to December 31,		
	2003	2002	2001	2003
Revenue from a Related Party (Note 6(d))	\$ 41,017	\$ 157,565	\$	\$ 198,582
Expenses				
Amortization	955	1,331	2,396	10,155
Bank charges	1,644	822	2,906	9,325
Consulting (Note 6(a))	186,000	191,000	186,000	1,206,433
Foreign exchange				8,098
Investor relations			612	61,093
Office, rent and telephone	9,764	6,880	4,514	145,923
Professional fees	125,561	23,929	49,148	497,469
Subcontract (Note 6(c))		75,047	356,938	455,972
Transfer agent and regulatory fees	(2,093)		378	23,014
Travel	1,076	25,606	74,987	305,496
Less interest income	(21)	(108)	(284)	(888)
Total Expenses	322,886	324,507	677,595	2,722,090
Net Loss	\$ (281,869)	\$ (166,942)	\$ (677,595)	\$(2,523,508)
Net Loss Per Share	\$ (0.02)	\$ (0.01)	\$ (0.04)	
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding	15,853,000	15,853,000	15,853,000	
<u> </u>				

(Diluted loss per share has not been presented as the result is anti-dilutive)

See accompanying notes

F-4

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock

	Number of Shares	Amount	Additional Paid-In Capital	Deficit Accumulated During the Development Stage	Total
Initial capitalization (May 8,					
1997)					
Stock issued for license to					
specific technology (Notes 1 &					
4)	2,706,122	\$ 2,706	\$	\$	\$ 2,706
Stock issued to change					
license to exclusive					
(Note 1 & 4)	2,364,806	2,365			2,365
Less cancelled in a					
subsequent year	(438,694)	(439)			(439)
Stock issued for cash:					
at \$0.0576 per share	2,600,000	2,600	147,160		149,760
at \$6.50 per share	130,500	131	848,119		848,250
Net (loss) for the period				(134,729)	(134,729)
					
Balance December 31, 1997	7,362,734	7,363	995,279	(134,729)	867,913
Stock issued for stock split					
net of shares cancelled	3,510,510	3,510	(3,510)		
Net (loss) for the year				(659,002)	(659,002)
·					
Balance December 31, 1998	10,873,244	10,873	991,769	(793,731)	208,911
Net (loss) for the year	10,073,211	10,075	<i>>></i> 1,707	(267,161)	(267,161)
rece (1035) for the year				(207,101)	(207,101)
D.1 D. 1 21 1000	10.072.244	10.072	001.760	(1.060.802)	(50.250)
Balance December 31, 1999	10,873,244	10,873	991,769	(1,060,892)	(58,250)
Stock issued for cash:	250,000	250	000.750		1 000 000
at \$4.00 per share	250,000	250	999,750		1,000,000
Stock issued for license	4 720 612	4.720			4.720
(Notes 1 and 4)	4,729,612	4,730		(336,210)	4,730
Net (loss) for the year				(330,210)	(336,210)
					
Balance December 31, 2000	15,852,856	15,853	1,991,519	(1,397,102)	610,270
Net (loss) for the year				(677,595)	(677,595)
					
Balance December 31, 2001	15,852,856	15,853	1,991,519	(2,074,697)	(67,325)
Net (loss) for the year				(166,942)	(166,942)
Balance December 31, 2002	15,852,856	15,853	1,991,519	(2,241,639)	(234,267)
Net (loss) for the year	10,002,000	10,000	1,,,,1,01,	(281,869)	(281,869)
(1000) 101 all Jour				(201,007)	(201,007)
Polongo Docomb - 21 2002	15 050 056	¢ 15 952	¢1 001 510	\$(2,523,508)	¢ (516-126)
Balance December 31, 2003	15,852,856	\$15,853	\$1,991,519	\$(2,323,308)	\$ (516,136)

See accompanying notes

F-5

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Accumulation

	Years Ended December 31,			from May 8, 1997 (Inception) to December 31,	
	2003	2002	2001	2003	
Cash Flows From Operating Activities					
Net Loss	\$(281,869)	\$(166,942)	\$(677,595)	\$(2,523,508)	
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash					
Amortization	955	1,331	2,396	10,155	
Changes in non-cash working capital items Increase in accounts payable and accrued					
liabilities	144,515	190,079	(27,125)	492,823	
Decrease in prepaid expenses	111,515	30,000	(30,000)	172,023	
_ coording on profession					
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating					
Activities	(136,399)	(54,468)	(732,324)	(2,020,530)	
	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	``	
Cash Flows from Financing Activities					
Proceeds from issuance of common stock				1,998,010	
Advances to (from) related party	127,802	(91,703)		36,099	
					
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing					
Activities	127,802	(91,703)		2,034,109	
					
Cash Flows to Investing Activities					
(Increase) in property, plant and equipment				(2,122)	
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities				(2,122)	
Increase (Decrease) in Cash in the Period	(8,597)	(37,235)	(732,324)	11,457	
Cash Beginning of Period	20,054	57,289	789,613		
					
Cash End of Period	\$ 11,457	\$ 20,054	\$ 57,289	\$ 11,457	
Non-Cash Financing Activities					
9,361,846 shares issued for a license (Note 4)	\$	\$	\$	\$ 9,362	
Supplementary Disclosure					
Interest paid	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Income tax paid					

See accompanying notes

F-6

Table of Contents

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Development Stage Company

Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. herein (the Company) was incorporated in the State of Florida on May 8, 1997. The Company is a development stage company engaged in the business of commercializing the smart card technology based Universal Electronic Payment System (UEPS) and Funds Transfer System (FTS) through the development of strategic alliances with national and international bank and card service organizations. The FTS patents were first filed by Serge Belamant and the late Andre Mansvelt in 1989. The patents in South Africa and surrounding territories were subsequently assigned to Net 1 Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd. or Net 1 (Pty), a company which was acquired by Aplitec in July 2000. The patents in Europe and the United States were assigned to Net 1 Holdings S.a.r.l. or Net 1 Holdings. See Note 4 for a discussion on the FTS European patent being revoked.

The Company entered into a license agreement, dated May 19, 1997 (the License Agreement), with Net 1 Holdings, Net 1 Operations S.a.r.1. and Net 1 Pty (collectively, the Licensors), where the licensors granted a non-exclusive license to the Company for the UEPS technology for the issuance of 5,412,244 shares at a fair market value of \$0.001 per share. On October 1, 1997 an Amendment to the License Agreement was signed that provided for the transfer of the ownership of the UEPS technology and FTS and for the assignment of the Technology License Agreement between VISA International Service Association and Net 1 Holdings, dated July 31, 1997 (the Visa Agreement) to the Company in consideration of 4,729,612 shares. The assignment of the Visa Agreement and the transfer of the ownership of the UEPS technology and FTS patents to the Company were never consummated because certain conditions precedent were never satisfied.

On May 3, 2000 an agreement entitled Patent and Technology Agreement was entered into between the Company and Net 1 Holdings that granted the Company licensing rights in respect of the U.S. and European patents. No conditions precedent were stipulated. The 4,729,612 shares of the Company previously issued into trust in consideration for the Amendment to the License Agreement were thus released to Net 1 Holdings. Effective July 1, 2002, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with Net 1 (Pty), which replaced the previous Outsourcing Agreement. As a condition of this agreement, Net 1 (Pty) received \$50,000 in full settlement of \$154,953 of fees due as at June 30, 2002. The Company wrote off the remaining \$104,953 of the debt as a reduction of subcontract costs in that year. Net 1 Holdings as at December 31, 2003 owns 8,520,578 common shares of 15,852,856 issued and outstanding common shares, or 53.75%. The Company is a subsidiary of Net 1 Holdings.

In a development stage company, management devotes most of its activities to establishing a new business primarily, the development of a detailed business plan, marketing strategy and the raising of funds required to develop and operate the business successfully. Planned principal activities have not yet produced revenues and the Company has suffered recurring operating losses as is normal in development stage companies. These factors raise doubt about the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to emerge from the development stage with respect to its planned principal business activity is dependent upon its successful efforts to raise additional equity financing, receive funding from affiliates and controlling shareholders, and develop a market for its products.

In order to meet expenses over the next twelve months the Company is actively searching for additional equity financing. For fiscal 2003, the Company recorded as revenues \$41,017 from sales of licenses (2002 \$157,565) in accordance with the Company s revenue recognition policy. For fiscal 2004, the Company will be recording as revenues and receiving \$18,612 from sales of licenses during 2003, in accordance with the Company s revenue recognition policy.

See Note 5 regarding future financing and related acquisition of Net 1 Applied Technology Holdings Limited.

F-7

Table of Contents

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for the reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components in the financial statements. As at October 31, 2002, the Company has no items that represent comprehensive income and, therefore, has not included a schedule of comprehensive income in the financial statements.

(b) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB has issued SFAS No. 147, 148 and 149 but they will not have any relationship to the operations of the Company therefore a description of each and their respective impact on the Company s operations have not been disclosed.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150 Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity . SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). The requirements of SFAS No. 150 apply to issuers classification and measurement of freestanding financial instruments, including those that comprise more than one option or forward contract. SFAS No. 150 does not apply to features that are embedded in a financial instrument that is not a derivative in its entirety. SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, except for mandatory redeemable financial instruments of non-public entities. It is to be implemented by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an accounting principal for financial instruments created before the issuance date of SFAS No. 150 and still existing at the beginning of the interim period of adoption. Restatement is not permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material effect on the Company s results of operations or financial position.

(c) Property, Plant and Equipment

Computer equipment is amortized over five years on a straight-line basis.

(d) Long-Lived Assets

Costs to acquire exclusive license rights to specific technology are considered. Long-Lived assets and are capitalized as incurred. These costs are being amortized on a straight line basis over five years. Intangible assets are evaluated in each reporting period to determine if there were events or circumstances which would indicate a possible inability to recover the carrying amount. Such evaluation is based on various analyses including assessing the Company s ability to bring the commercial applications to market, related profitability projections and undiscounted cash flows relating to each application which necessarily involves significant management judgment.

(e) Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) per Share

The Company computes net income (loss) per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128, Earnings per Share (SFAS 128). SFAS 128 requires presentation of both basic and diluted earnings per shares (EPS) on the face of the income statement. Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss) available to common shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding (denominator) during the period. Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period including stock options, using the treasury stock method, and

F-8

Table of Contents

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

convertible preferred stock, using the if-converted method. In computing Diluted EPS, the average stock price for the period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock options or warrants. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential common shares if their effect is antidilutive.

(f) Foreign Currency Transactions/ Balances

Transactions in currencies other than the U.S. dollar are translated at the rate in effect on the transaction date. Any balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollars using the rate in effect on the balance sheet date.

(h) Financial Instruments

The Company s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts payable, accrued liabilities and advances from a related party. Unless otherwise noted, it is management s opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and advances from a related party approximates their carrying value due to immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

(i) Tax Accounting

Potential benefits of income tax losses are not recognized in the accounts until realization is more likely than not.

The Company has adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 (SFAS 109) as of its inception. The Company has incurred net operating losses as scheduled below:

Year of Loss	Amount	Year of Expiration
1997	\$ 135,000	2012
1998	659,000	2013
1999	267,000	2014
2000	336,000	2015
2001	674,000	2016
2002	166,000	2017
2003	282,000	2018
	\$2,519,000	

Pursuant to SFAS 109 the Company is required to compute tax asset benefits for net operating losses carried forward. Potential benefit of net operating losses have not been recognized in these financial statements because the Company cannot be assured it is more likely than not it will utilize the net operating losses carried forward in future years.

F-9

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The components of the net deferred tax asset at the end of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the statutory tax rate, the effective tax rate and the elected amount of the valuation allowance are scheduled below:

	2003	2002 \$	2001 \$
Net Operating Loss	282,000	166,297	673,575
Statutory	34%	34%	34%
Effective Tax Rate			
Deferred Tax Asset	95,880	56,541	229,022
Valuation Allowance	(95,880)	(56,541)	(229,022)
Net Deferred Tax Asset			

(j) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (SAB 101), Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements. Revenue is recognized only when the price is fixed or determinable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the service is performed, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company had applied, up until June 30, 2002, Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 99-19 (EITF 99-19), Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent . The Company sold licenses on behalf of Net 1 Holdings, and acting as an agent recorded revenue on a net basis in accordance with EITF 99-19. Revenue, up to June 30, 2002, was equal to Net 1 Holdings prior year annual after tax net profit before amortization as certified by its independent auditors.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.

		December 31, 2003		December 31, 2002
	Cost	Accumulated Depreciation	Net Book Value	Net Book Value
Computer equipment and software	\$2,181	\$2,181	\$	\$ 9

4. Intangible Assets

C

	December 31, 2002		
Cost	Accumulated Depreciation	Net Book Value	Net Book Value

Exclusive License \$9,361 \$8,034 \$1,327 \$2,273

See Note 1 for description of the license.

The Funds Transfer System patents were first filed in 1989. The European patent was granted on December 28, 1994, with effect in Austria, Belgium, Switzerland, Germany, Denmark, Spain, France, Great Britain, Greece, Italy, Liechtenstein, Luxembourg, Netherlands and Sweden. The European Patent Convention provides for an opposition period immediately following the grant of a European patent, and six parties filed an opposition to the grant of the patent on the grounds that the invention was not patentable. The case was heard before a Board of the Opposition Division in March 1998, when the patent

F-10

Table of Contents

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

was upheld. Following the issue of the formal decision, a number of the original opponents filed an appeal. The appeal proceedings were heard on October 10, 2002 and the appeal board reversed its earlier decision. Consequently, the European patent has been revoked and there is no possibility of any further appeal. As a result, the Company will be unable to collect royalties or fees for patent infringement in Europe.

The U.S. patent was first issued on May 17, 1991, and it is set to expire on May 11, 2011.

5. Proposed Business Acquisition

The Company is completing financial arrangements for the securing of approximately US\$150 million through Brait SA (Brait) on behalf of funds under its management. The financing, comprising the capital raising of US\$53 million and a share exchange of US\$97 million, will enable Net 1 to make an offer to acquire Net 1 Applied Technology Holdings Limited (Aplitec), a public Johannesburg Stock Exchange (JSE) listed company, as well as providing working capital to enable Net 1 to expand its operations and develop its internal infrastructure on an international basis. The Company, through Brait, will raise the capital through sales of its common stock at US\$0.50 per common share.

The Company, through Brait, has provided the Board of Directors of Aplitec with an offer to acquire all the assets and liabilities of Aplitec (excluding approximately ZAR 300 million of cash) for approximately US\$129 million through a combination of cash and share exchange offer to Aplitec shareholders also at a purchase price of US\$0.50. Aplitec is engaged in the sales, maintenance and development of UEPS smart card based products in South Africa and its surrounding territories with revenues of approximately US\$100 million. Aplitec has approximately 2,200 employees. Completion of the financing is subject to compliance with regulatory requirements in South Africa and in the United States, including an increase in the authorized capitalization of the Company to permit the common shares to be issued.

6. Related Party Transactions

- (a) Consulting fees include \$150,000 (2002 \$150,000, 2001 \$150,000) paid or payable to the CEO of the Company.
- (b) Pursuant to a Directors Resolution of January 29, 2002, \$287,500 (2002 \$137,500) of consulting fees have been postponed until the Company has sufficient funds.
- (c) Pursuant to the distribution section of the previous Patent and Technology Agreement, subcontract costs include \$nil (2002 \$75,047, 2001 \$356,938) paid to Net 1 (Pty), a company with a common director.

Effective July 1, 2002, the Company entered into a distribution agreement with Net 1 (Pty), which replaced the previous distribution section contained within the previous Patent and Technology Agreement. Subcontract costs will now be determined based on a fixed rate of 9.5% of the license fees received of which there were none for fiscal 2003. As a condition of this agreement, Net 1 (Pty) received \$50,000 in full settlement of \$154,953 of fees due as at June 30, 2002. The Company wrote off the remaining \$104,953 of the debt as a reduction of subcontract costs in the year.

- (d) Under the terms of the previous distribution agreement with Patent and Technology Agreement dated May 3, 2000, the Company recorded revenues of \$41,017 (2002 \$157,565, 2001 \$nil) from Net 1 Holdings for sales made during the previous year. A total of \$nil (2002 \$91,703, 2001 \$nil) remains receivable without interest and is due on demand.
- (e) During the year Net 1 Holdings made payments on the Company s behalf. A total of \$36,099 remains outstanding without interest and is due on demand.

F-11

Table of Contents

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Subsequent Events

On February 3, 2004, the Company initially filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) a registration statement on Form S-4. In connection with its review of the registration statement, the staff of the SEC advised the Company that certain Aplitec announcements in South Africa in October and November 2003 as well as the Aplitec shareholder vote approving the sale of assets on December 9, 2003, may not have complied with Section 5 under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933. In light of the SEC s position, the Company is offering to all Aplitec shareholders who are shareholders on record at a certain date, the opportunity to rescind any acceptance of Net 1 securities that may have been offered to them on or prior to the December 9 vote (the rescission offer). If the holders of a majority of the outstanding Aplitec ordinary shares accept the recission offer, the proposed transactions will not be consummated as a result of the failure of certain conditions precedent to the consummation of the Aplitec acquisition is subject.

The staff of the SEC has taken the position that, as a result of the possible failure to comply with Section 5 under the U.S. Securities Act, the right of recission granted to Aplitec shareholders who affirmatively reject the rescission offer or who make no election in respect of the recission offer may continue for a period of one year. The SEC staff has also taken the position that any rights of rescission under the U.S. Securities Act of any Aplitec shareholder may survive and not be barred by the Company making the rescission offer.

F-12

Table of Contents

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (A Development Stage Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the members of Net 1 Applied Technology Holdings Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Net 1 Applied Technology Holdings Ltd and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in Shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003 set out on pages F-14 to F-17. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

Scope

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in South Africa and the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit includes:

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management;

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Audit Opinion

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the companies as of June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in South Africa.

US GAAP Reconciliation

Accounting principles generally accepted in South Africa vary in significant respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management has disclosed the effect of the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America on results of operations for each of the three years ended June 30, 2003 and the determination of shareholders equity at June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, to the extent summarised in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, which note has been audited by us as detailed above.

FISHER HOFFMAN PKF (JHB) INC.

Chartered Accountants (S.A.)
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Johannesburg, South Africa

August 15, 2003 excluding note 23 which was audited on November 30, 2003

Table of Contents

BALANCE SHEETS

At June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

	Notes	2003	2002	2001
		(In thousands of Rands)		
	ASSETS			
Non-current assets		R 96,050	R 62,512	R 74,289
Property, plant and equipment	2	65,075	33,192	39,751
Intangible assets	3	12,043	18,284	24,298
Deferred tax	4	18,932	11,036	10,240
Current assets		586,478	448,205	317,966
Inventory	5	6,437	15,521	16,611
Trade and other receivables	6	151,492	110,870	100,474
Cash and cash equivalents		428,549	321,814	200,881
Total assets		682,528	510,717	392,255
2 0 1112 1135 115				
	EQUITY AND LIAB	ILITIES		
Capital and reserves		524,120	418,455	309,075
Share capital	7	237	233	230
Share premium		134,497	129,342	123,998
Accumulated profit		389,386	288,880	184,847
Minority interests			3,275	1,580
Current liabilities		158,408	88,987	81,600
Trade and other payables	8	107,474	58,591	52,805
Tax		50,934	30,396	28,795
				
Total equity and liabilities		R 682,528	R 510,717	R 392,255

F-14

Table of Contents

INCOME STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

	Notes	2003	2002	2001	
		(In thousands of Rands)			
Revenue	9	R 691,484	R 525,585	R 557,445	
Cost of sales		234,885	143,795	167,312	
Gross profit		456,599	381,790	390,133	
Other operating income		3,743	1,872	1,215	
Operating expenses		284,474	248,662	265,592	
Distribution costs		6,155	2,797	2,583	
Administration expenses		70,895	57,551	73,493	
Other operating expenses		207,424	188,314	189,516	
Profit/(Loss) from operations	10	175,868	135,000	125,756	
Interest received		73,086	33,086	11,940	
Finance cost		(49,540)	(19,072)	(954)	
					
Profit/(Loss) before tax		199,414	149,014	136,742	
Income tax expense	12	69,132	43,286	42,471	
Profit/(Loss) after tax		130,282	105,728	94,271	
Minority interests		4,095	1,695	1,084	
		<u> </u>			
Net profit/(Loss) for year		R 126,187	R 104,033	R 93,187	
Earnings per share (Rands)	13	0.53	0.45	0.41	
					

F-15

Table of Contents

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

	Share Capital	Share Premium	Accumulated Profit	Total
		(In tho	usands of Rands)	
Balance at June 30, 2000	R 199	R 63,684	R 91,660	R 155,543
Issue of share capital	31	60,495		60,526
Share issue cost written-off against share premium		(181)		(181)
Net profit for year			93,187	93,187
				
Balance at June 30, 2001	230	123,998	184,847	309,075
Issue of share capital	3	5,380		5,383
Share issue cost written-off against share premium		(36)		(36)
Net profit for year			104,033	104,033
Balance at June 30, 2002	233	129,342	288,880	418,455
Issue of share capital	4	5,179		5,183
Share issue cost written-off against share premium		(24)		(24)
Net profit for year			126,187	126,187
Dividends paid to shareholders			(25,681)	(25,681)
				<u> </u>
Balance at June 30, 2003	237	134,497	389,386	524,120
			<u> </u>	
	F-16			

Table of Contents

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

	Notes	2003	2002	2001
			(In thousands of Rands)	
Cash flows from operating activities		R 171,958	R 124,512	R 136,468
Cash receipts from customers		665,211	503,476	594,094
Cash paid to suppliers and employees		(434,627)	(350,497)	(429,869)
Cash generated from/(utilised by) operations	18	230,584	152,979	164,225
Interest received		73,086	33,086	11,940
Finance cost		(49,540)	(19,072)	(954)
Tax paid	19	(56,491)	(42,481)	(38,743)
Dividends paid		(25,681)		
Cash flows from investing activities		(70,382)	(8,926)	(27,702)
Additions to property, plant and equipment		(60,791)	(19,472)	(21,956)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and				
equipment		2,841	6,335	282
Cash inflow from disposal of business	20		4,211	(66)
Acquisition of minority interests/subsidiaries	21	(12,432)		(5,962)
Cash flows from financing activities		5,159	5,347	36,691
Proceeds from issue of share capital		5,159	5,347	40,845
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings				(4,154)
				
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		106,735	120,933	145,457
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		321,814	200,881	55,424
				
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year		R 428,549	R 321,814	R 200,881

F-17

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (In thousands of Rands)

1. Accounting Policies

The principal policies are set out below and are consistent in all material respects with those which were applied in the previous year:

1.1 Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Group are prepared in conformity with Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice on the historical cost basis, except where otherwise stated.

1.2 Basis of Consolidation and Goodwill

The consolidated financial statements include those of the holding company and its subsidiaries. The results of subsidiaries are included from the effective dates of their acquisition until the effective dates of their disposal. Goodwill represents the excess of cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group s share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is capitalised as an intangible asset and amortised on the straight-line basis over the period of the expected benefit, which is estimated at 10 years. Inter-company transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. Separate disclosure is made of minority interests.

1.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis at rates which are estimated to amortise the assets to their anticipated residual values over their useful lives. Within the following asset classifications, the expected economic lives are approximately:

Computer equipment	3 years
Office equipment	3 years
Vehicles	4 to 5 years
Furniture and fittings	5 to 10 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

1.4 Leasehold Improvement Costs

Costs incurred in the adaptation of leased properties to serve the requirements of the Company are capitalised and amortised over the shorter of the term of the lease and the contract for which the lease has been entered into. Where the Company is required to restore a property to its original condition upon termination of a lease, the related costs are expensed as incurred.

1.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are shown at cost less accumulated amortisation and are amortised over their useful lives, which is estimated at five years.

1.6 Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided at current rates on the comprehensive allocation basis, using the liability method. Deferred tax assets are raised to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against which deductible temporary differences and accumulated tax losses can be utilised.

F-18

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.7 Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and includes transport and handling costs.

1.8 Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the transaction. Initial measurements are at cost, which includes transaction costs subsequent to initial recognition. These instruments are measured as set out below:

1.8.1 Trade and Other Receivables:

Trade and other receivables originated by the Group are stated at cost less provision for doubtful debts.

1.8.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at the bank statement balances.

1.8.3 Trade and Other Payables:

Trade and other payables are carried at their estimated fair value.

1.8.4 The company uses derivative financial instruments including currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. It is the policy of the group not to trade in derivative financial instruments. The company is also exposed to credit risk.

1.8.4.1 Foreign Exchange Risk

The company has used forward contracts in order to limit its exposure to the ZAR/USD and ZAR/EUR exchange rate fluctuations from foreign currency transactions. As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, the outstanding foreign exchange contracts are as follows:

	2003	2002	2001
Forward purchase contracts			
National amount		USD 1.150	
Strike price		ZAR 12.643	
Maturity		January 8, 2003	

1.8.4.2 Interest Rate Risk

As a result of its normal borrowing activities, the Company s operating results are exposed to fluctuations in interest rates, which the Company manages primarily through its regular financing activities. The Company generally maintains investment in cash equivalents.

1.8.4.3 Credit Risk

Credit risk relates to the risk of loss that the Company would incur as a result of non-performance by counterparties. The Company maintains credit risk policies with regard to its counterparties to minimize overall credit risk. These policies include an evaluation of a potential

counterparty s financial condition, credit rating, and other credit criteria and risk mitigation tools as deemed appropriate.

F-19

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In regards to credit risk on financial instruments, the Company maintains the policy to enter into such transactions only with highly rated financial institutions.

1.9 Foreign Exchange Transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are translated at the spot rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary items are translated at the closing spot rate at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences occurring on the settlement of monetary items or on the reporting of outstanding monetary items, are brought into account as income for the period. Non-monetary items are translated at the spot rate at the date of the transaction or the spot rate on the valuation date if carried at fair value.

1.10 Revenue Recognition

Fees and Commissions

The Company provides a State pension and welfare benefit distribution service to provincial governments in South Africa. Fees are computed based on the number of beneficiaries included in the Government payfile. Fee income received for these services is recognised in the income statement when distributions have been made.

The Company provides an automated payment collection service to third parties, for which it charges monthly fees. These fees are recognised in the income statement as the collections are made.

Interest Income

Interest income earned from micro-lending activities is recognised in the income statement as it falls due, using the effective interest rate method by reference to the constant interest rate stated in each loan agreement. Interest receivable over the term of a loan is recognised as a receivable on inception of the loan and a corresponding amount recorded as deferred income.

For loans in arrears where recovery is determined to be doubtful, an expense is recorded for amounts of interest previously recognised in the income statement that have not been collected. An expense is also charged for future interest recorded as a receivable on the balance sheet. Subsequently, interest income is recorded in the income statement as it falls due under the original terms of the loan agreement.

Systems Implementation Projects

The Company undertakes smart card system implementation projects. The hardware and software installed in these projects are in the form of customised systems, which ordinarily involve modification to meet the customer s specifications. Software delivered under such arrangements is available to the customer permanently, subject to the payment of annual license fees. Revenue for such arrangements is recognised under the completed contract method, no income and profit being recognised until the contract is completed, save for annual license fees, which are recognised in the period to which they relate. Up-front and interim payments received are recorded as client deposits until customer acceptance.

Other Income

Revenue from service and maintenance activities is charged to customers on a time-and-materials basis and is recognised in the income statement as services are delivered to customers.

1.11 Research and Development Expenditure

Research expenditure is written-off in the period in which it is incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised until the operation to which it relates commences trading. The expenditure is then written-off

F-20

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

on the straight-line basis over the life of the product, which is estimated at no longer than four years. Where the project is terminated, the related development expenditure is written-off immediately.

1.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a part event and it is probable that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

1.13 Cost Deferrals

The cost of purchasing and initialising smart cards is capitalised and amortised over the term of the benefits distribution contract, subject to a limit of there being probable future revenues to match the costs deferred.

1.14 Loan Provisions

A specific provision is established for all loans where it is considered likely that some of the capital will not be repaid by the borrower. Where the loan capital is insured, the amount due to be recovered from the insurer is recorded as a receivable. Default is taken to be likely after a specified period of repayment default, which is generally taken to be not more than 150 days. This assessment is made based on previous experience and on management judgement of economic conditions.

	2003	2002	2001
2. Property, Plant and Equipment			
Cost			
Computer equipment	R 85,482	R 54,075	R 49,436
Furniture and office equipment	17,983	20,715	19,240
Motor vehicles	59,606	35,236	71,524
			
	163,071	110,026	140,200
	100,071		
Accumulated depreciation			
Computer equipment	59,535	38,095	29,746
Furniture and office equipment	9,229	13,743	11,753
Motor vehicles	29,232	24,996	58,950
	97,996	76,834	100,449
Comming amount			
Carrying amount Computer equipment	25,947	15,980	19,690
Furniture and office equipment	8,754	6,972	7,487
Motor vehicles	30,374	10,240	12,574
Wiotor venicles			12,574
	65.075	22 102	20.751
	65,075	33,192	39,751
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment can be reconciled as follows:			
Carrying amount at beginning of year	33,192	39,751	38,915
Additions	60,791	19,472	22,412
Disposals	(2,642)	(5,656)	(30)
Depreciation	(26,266)	(20,375)	(21,546)
Depreciation	(20,200)	(20,575)	(21,570)

Carrying amount at end of year

R 65,075

R 33,192

R 39,751

F-21

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	2003	2002	2001
3. Intangible Assets			
Cost			
Capitalised development costs	R 15,076	R 15,076	R 15,076
Trademarks		2,718	2,718
Goodwill	23,093	18,031	18,031
	38,169	35,825	35,825
Accumulated amortization			
Capitalised development costs	15,076	12,797	9,081
Trademarks		1,088	544
Goodwill	11,050	3,656	1,902
	26,126	17,541	11,527
			
Carrying amount			
Capitalised development costs		2,279	5,995
Trademarks	40.040	1,630	2,174
Goodwill	12,043	14,375	16,129
	R 12,043	R 18,284	R 24,298
The carrying amount of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:			
Carrying amount at beginning of year Acquisition of minority interests/subsidiaries Disposal of trademark	R 18,284 5,062 (1,630)	R 24,299	R 12,020 18,676
Amortisation	(9,673)	(6,015)	(6,398)
Tinorusation	(2,073)	(0,013)	(0,370)
Carrying amount at end of year	R 12,043	R 18,284	R 24,298
4. Deferred Tax			
Balance at the beginning of year	R 11,036	R 10,240	R 8,630
Acquisition of subsidiaries			(193)
Movement during year attributable to temporary differences	7,896	796	1,803
Balance at the end of year	18,932	11,036	10,240
Deferred tax on temporary differences arising from:			
Assessed losses	8,496	8,468	16,909
Capitalised development costs	990	990	(125)
Provisions and accruals	16,764	4,048	1,869
Pre-paid expenses	(8,099)	(3,251)	(8,625)
Property, plant and equipment	582	582	13
Other	199	199	199
	R 18,932	R 11,036	R 10,240

5. Inventory				
Merchandise		R 6,437	R 15,521	R 16,611
		R 6,437	R 15,521	R 16,611
				
	F-22			

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	2003	2002	2001
6. Trade and Other Receivables			
Trade and other receivables are stated net of the			
	D 50.770	D 42 442	D 05 174
following provisions for non-recoverable loans	R 50,770 42,442	R 42,442	R 25,174 10,616
Balance of provision at beginning of year		25,174	
Additional provisions charged to the income statement Amounts utilized	8,383	19,275	15,142
Amounts utilized	(55)	(2,007)	(584)
7. Share Capital			
Authorised:			
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each	R 500	R 500	R 500
500,000,000 N ordinary shares of 0,001 cent each	5	5	5
Issued:			
236,977,187 (2002: 233,463,846) ordinary shares of 0,1			
cent each	R 237	R 233	R 230
Share options			
Unexercised at beginning of year	3,550	7,250	11,025
Cancelled during year	(37)	(50)	(150)
Exercised during year	(3,513)	(3,650)	(3,625)
Unexercised at end of year		3,550	7,250
•			
8. Trade and Other Payables			
m	D 47.000	D 22 402	D 25 205
Trade payables	R 47,233	R 23,403	R 27,305
Accruals	32,897	18,657	5,189
Value-added tax payable	4,938	3,632	5,579
Other payables	3,160	2,444	153
Provisions	19,246	10,455	14,579
Balance at beginning of year	10,455	14,579	17,803
Additional provisions charged to the income statement	12,040	6,171	12,868
Unused amounts credited to the income statement	(882)	(2,338)	(7,694)
Utilised in year	(2,367)	(7,957)	(8,398)
	R 107,474	R 58,591	R 52,805

Provisions consist of the following:

	Bonus	Leave Pay	Other	Total
				
Balance at beginning of year	R 564	R 6,514	R 3,377	R 10,455
Additional provisions charged to the income statement	6,926	3,738	1,376	12,040
Unused amounts credited to the income statement	(32)	(850)		(882)
Utilised in year	(988)	(1,379)		(2,367)
				
	R 6,470	R 8,023	R 4,753	R 19,246

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	2003	2002	2001
9. Revenue			
Sale of goods	R 72,259	R 63,082	R 98,993
Services rendered	619,225	462,503	458,452
			
	R 691,484	R 525,585	R 557,445
10. Profit/(Loss) from Operations			
Total (2000) II om o portunous			
Profit/(Loss) from operations is stated after:			
Auditor s remuneration:	R 991	R 930	R 632
Audit fees	603	615	600
Other services	388	315	32
Depreciation and amortization:	35,939	26,390	27,944
Amortisation capitalised development costs	2,279	3,716	3,953
Amortisation trademarks		545	543
Amortisation goodwill	7,394	1,754	1,902
Depreciation computer equipment	15,569	10,487	7,908
Depreciation furniture and office equipment	2,833	3,298	2,056
Depreciation motor vehicles	7,864	6,590	11,582
Directors emoluments:	2,949	2,023	1,855
For services as directors	75	100	25
For managerial and other services	2,874	1,923	1,830
Employee costs	138,287	129,315	134,002
Operating lease rentals leased premises	20,315	19,627	19,555
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment	200	679	252
Profit on disposal of business	1,086	2,713	
Loss on disposal of joint venture			188
Other costs:	10,224		
Settlement of share options	5,349		
Provision for loss on loan	4,875		

11. Directors Emoluments

		2001			2003			2002	
	Bonus	Total	Basic Salaries	Bonus	Total	Basic Salaries	Bonus	Total	Basic Salaries
Fees and salaries									
Paid to executive directors	R 2,294	R 580	R 2,874	R 1,873	R 50	R 1,923	R 1,830		R 1,830
S C P Belamant	1,431	400	1,831	1,200		1,200	1,200		1,200
H G Kotzé	863	180	1,043	673	50	723	630		630
Fees paid to non-executive									
directors:									
J C Livingstone			75			75			
D A J Donald						25			25
B J S Hore									
D G S Muller									

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	Opening Balance	Shares Exercised During Year	Sold During Year	Closing Balance	Exercise Price Per Share	Average Sale Price Per Share
Share options						
Executive directors						
S C P Belamant	600	600	1,200		R 1.475	R 3.51
H G Kotzé	600	600	1,200		R 1.475	R 3.51
Non-executive directors						
J C Livingstone	600	600	600	600	R 1.475	R 2.98
D A J Donald						
D G S Muller						
B J S Hore						

	2003	2002	2001
12. Income Tax Expense			
South African normal tax			
Current year	R 73,818	R 44,082	R 44,014
Deferred tax	(7,896)	(796)	(1,803)
Secondary Tax on Companies	3,210	, , ,	260
•	R 69,132	R 43,286	R 42,471
	%	%	%
Reconciliation of rate of tax:			
South African normal tax rate	30.0	30.0	30.0
Permanent differences	3.1	(1.1)	0.7
Secondary Tax on Companies	1.6		0.2
Deferred tax not provided on tax losses		0.1	0.2
Effective rate of tax	34.7	29.0	31.1
Gross estimated tax losses of certain subsidiaries			
available for utilisation against			
Future taxable income	R 46,040	R 32,337	R 18,211
Applied to increase deferred tax asset	(28,320)	(28,227)	(18,211)
	R 17,720	R 4,110	R

13. Earnings Per Share

	2003	2002	2001
13.1 Number of shares in issue at end of year (000)	236,977	233,464	229.814
13.2 Earnings per share (Rands)	0.53	0.45	0.41
The calculation of earnings per share is based on consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of R 126,187 (2002: R 104,033/ 2001: R 83,187) and the weighted average number of shares.			
Weighted average number of issued shares (000)	236,977	230,001	225,004

Aplitec has no other equity instruments outstanding at the balance sheet date.

F-25

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Operating Lease Commitments

The Group leases certain premises under operating leases. The minimum future commitments of the Group for leased premises are:

	Due	Within 1 Year	Within 2-5 Years	After 5 Years	Total
2003	R 7,967	R 5,586	R 81	R 13,634	
2002	8,062	3,551		11,613	
2001	15,964	9,411		25,375	

15. Capital Commitments

		Group		
	2003	2002	2001	
The Group s outstanding capital commitments at the year-end, which have been approved by the directors and contracted for amounted to:	R	R 12,643	R 3,200	

These commitments will be funded from cash generated from operations.

16. Retirement Benefits

The Group Provident Fund was a defined contribution fund, registered in terms of the Pension Funds Act (1965), of which membership was optional. The fund was discontinued and currently the Group provides no retirement benefits.

17. Related Party Transactions

Light & Livingstone Financial Services CC, in which Mr. J C Livingstone (a non-executive director) is a member, performs the Company Secretarial function for the Group.

	2003	2002	2001
18. Cash Generated From/(Utilised by) Operations			
Profit/(Loss) before interest and tax	R 175,868	R 135,000	R 125,756
Depreciation and amortisation	35,939	26,390	27,944
Unpaid on disposal of joint venture			
Income from subsidiaries			
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment	(200)	(679)	(252)
Profit on disposal of business	(1,086)	(2,713)	188
Profit/(Loss) from operations before working capital			
changes	210,521	157,998	153,636
Working capital changes	20,063	(5,019)	10,589
Inventory	9,084	1,078	(98)
Trade and other receivables	(42,906)	(12,019)	34,331
Trade and other payables	53,885	5,922	(23,644)

R 230,584 R 152,979 R 164,225

F-26

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	2003	2002	2001
19. Tax Paid			
Hansid at hasinning of year	D (20.206)	D (29.705)	D (22 101)
Unpaid at beginning of year Unpaid on acquisition of subsidiary	R (30,396)	R (28,795)	R (23,101)
Unpaid on disposal of joint venture			(246) 83
Current tax and secondary tax charged to the income			0.3
statement	(77,029)	(44,082)	(44,274)
Unpaid at end of year	50,934	30,396	28,795
Onpaid at end of year	R (56,491)	R (42,481)	R (38,743)
20. Disposal of Business			
Goodwill	R 1,630	R	R
Inventory		11	
Trade and other receivables	2,284	1,623	
Cash and cash equivalents		702	
Trade and other payables	(5,000)	(136)	
Profit on disposal of business	1,086	2,713	
Cash and cash equivalents received		4,913	
Cash and cash equivalents paid		(702)	
Net cash inflow	R	R 4,211	R
21. Purchase of Minority Interests/ Subsidiaries			
Cash and cash equivalents	R	R	R
Property, plant and equipment			1,101
Inventory			29
Trade and other receivables			715
Trade and other payables			(293)
Tax			(246)
Deferred tax			(193)
Goodwill	12,432		17,886
Minority interests			6,317
Acquisition costs incurred			146
Cost price	12,432		25,462
Shares issued at a premium			(19,500)
Net cash outflow	R 12,432	R	R 5,962
22. Cash and Cash Equivalents			
Bank balances and cash	R 428,549	R 321,814	R 200,881

23. US GAAP Information

Reconciliation of Net Income, Shareholders Equity and Cash Flows from SA GAAP to US GAAP

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (SA GAAP), which differs in certain respects from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States (US GAAP). The effect of applying US GAAP principles to net profit and

F-27

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

shareholders equity is set out below along with an explanation of applicable differences between SA GAAP and US GAAP:

	Notes	2001	2002	2003
Net profit as reported in accordance with SA GAAP		R 93,187	R 104,033	R 126,187
Items increasing/ (decreasing) net profit:				
Goodwill capitalization	(a)	(11,909)	(11,909)	
Goodwill non-amortization	(b)			5,660
Goodwill purchase price adjustment	(c)	1,510	1,510	
Intangible assets purchase price adjustment	(c)	(630)	(630)	(630)
Goodwill purchase price adjustment compensation	(d)	1,089	1,089	Ì
Goodwill treatment of negative goodwill	(e)	93	371	
Goodwill date of acquisition	(f)	(5,883)		(11,204)
Goodwill self insurance	(i)	1,400	1,400	
Goodwill acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings	. ,	,	,	
intangible asset	(g)	(1,448)	(1,448)	(1,448)
Deferred taxes acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings				
intangible asset	(g)	1,448	1,448	1,448
Development expenditure	(h)	3,307	3,716	2,279
Self-insurance	(i)	2,832	4,751	7,901
Stock compensation employees	(j)	(11,233)	(3,904)	(5,553)
Derivatives	(k)	116		, , ,
Internally developed intangible asset	(1)	543	543	1,630
Income tax rate differences	(m)	(10,687)	(11,361)	(13,886)
Income tax effect of US GAAP adjustments	(n)	(2,330)	(3,166)	(4,224)
Net profit in accordance with US GAAP before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		61,405	86,443	108,160
Extraordinary item SFAS 142	(e)			7,764
Change in accounting policy upon adoption of SFAS 142	(e)			2,879
Net profit in accordance with US GAAP after extraordinary				
item and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		R 61,405	R 86,443	R 118,803
Earnings per share before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle computed in accordance with US GAAP				
Basic (ZAR)		0.27	0.38	0.46
Diluted (ZAR)		0.27	0.37	0.46
Earnings per share after extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle computed in accordance with US GAAP		0.25	0.00	0.50
Basic (ZAR)		0.27	0.38	0.50
Diluted (ZAR)		0.27	0.37	0.50
	T			

F-28

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	Notes	2001	2002	2003
Shareholders equity as reported in accordance with SA				
GAAP		R 309,075	R 418,455	R 524,120
Items increasing/ (decreasing) shareholders equity:				
Goodwill capitalization	(a)	93,973	82,064	82,064
Goodwill non-amortization	(b)			5,660
Goodwill purchase price adjustment	(c)	(11,299)	(9,789)	(9,789)
Intangible asset purchase price adjustment	(c)	5,669	5,039	4,409
Goodwill purchase price adjustment compensation	(d)	(8,440)	(7,351)	(7,351)
Goodwill treatment of negative goodwill	(e)	93	464	464
Goodwill date of acquisition	(f)	(5,883)	(5,883)	(17,087)
Goodwill self insurance	(i)	3,150	4,550	4,550
Goodwill acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings				
intangible asset	(g)	13,028	11,581	10,133
Deferred taxes impact of acquisition of Net 1 Investment				
Holdings intangible asset	(g)	(13,028)	(11,581)	(10,133)
Development expenditure	(h)	(5,995)	(2,279)	
Self-insurance	(i)	2,832	7,583	15,484
Derivatives	(k)	(125)	(125)	(125)
Internally developed intangible asset	(1)	(2,173)	(1,630)	, ,
Income tax rate differences	(m)	(20,261)	(31,622)	(45,508)
Income tax effect of US GAAP adjustments	(n)	2,063	(1,103)	(5,327)
Change in accounting policy on adoption of SFAS 142	(e)	ŕ	` ' '	2,879
Dividends declared but not paid			(25,681)	(35,547)
Extraordinary item			(- / /	7,764
, , ,				
Shareholders equity in accordance with US GAAP		R 362,679	R 432,692	R 526,660
Movements in shareholders equity in accordance with US GAAP				
Balance at beginning of period		R 229,696	R 362,679	R 432,692
Issue of share capital		60,526	5,383	5,183
Share issue costs		(181)	(36)	(24)
Net profit for the year		61,405	86,443	118,803
Stock-based compensation		11,233	3,904	5,553
Dividends declared			(25,681)	(35,547)
Balance at end of period		R 362,679	R 432,692	R 526,660

The cash flow statement is presented in accordance with SA GAAP, which in this respect is the same as IAS No 7, Cash flow statements and consequently the SEC does not require a reconciliation to US GAAP to be presented.

F-29

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A summary of the principal differences between SA GAAP and US GAAP applicable to the Company is set forth below:

(a) Goodwill Capitalization

Under SA GAAP up to and including the financial year ended June 30, 2000, goodwill arising in a business combination was written off immediately against shareholders—equity. With effect from July 1, 2000, SA GAAP changed and entities were required to capitalize goodwill arising on business combinations and to amortize the goodwill over its useful life.

The Company wrote off the following amounts of goodwill directly to reserves:

1998	17,110
1999	71,154
2000	32,778
Total	R 121,042

Under US GAAP until July 1, 2002 goodwill should have been capitalized and amortized over its useful life not to exceed 40 years.

The adjustment therefore gives effect to the amount of goodwill that would have been required to be recognized in a US GAAP balance sheet and the amount of amortization that would have arisen thereon, which has been calculated on the basis of a useful life of 10 years.

(b) Goodwill Non-amortization

Under current SA GAAP since July 1, 2000 (see a above), positive purchased goodwill should be capitalized as an asset. If it is regarded as having a limited useful life it should then be amortized over that useful live which is generally presumed not to exceed 20 years. If it is regarded as having a useful life in excess of 20 years the goodwill is amortized over the best estimate of its useful life and the recoverable amount of the goodwill is assessed at least annually in order to identify any impairment loss. If goodwill is regarded as having an indefinite useful live it should not be amortized. Goodwill that is not amortized should be tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period and, if necessary, written down.

Under US GAAP, accounting for goodwill and intangible assets was substantially the same as current SA GAAP until the adoption of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations (SFAS 141) and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS 142). SFAS 141 requires all business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted for under the purchase method. SFAS 141 also sets forth guidelines for applying the purchase method of accounting in the determination of intangible assets, including goodwill, acquired in a business combination.

SFAS 142 addresses the initial and ongoing financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other intangible assets. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill be separately disclosed from other intangible assets in the balance sheet, and no longer be amortized but tested for impairment at least annually (or more frequently if impairment indicators arise). SFAS 142 is effective for financial statements for periods beginning on or after December 15, 2001. Additionally, the amortization provisions of SFAS 142 are applicable to goodwill arising in all business acquisitions consummated after June 30, 2001 regardless of the adoption date of SFAS 142.

The Company adopted SFAS 142 generally with effect from July 1, 2002. From that date all goodwill is no longer amortized.

This adjustment therefore reverses the amount of goodwill amortization charged after July 1, 2002 in the SA GAAP financial statements. This adjustment excludes R 1,754 of expense recorded as goodwill

F-30

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

amortization for SA GAAP purposes that would be considered to be intangible asset amortization expense under US GAAP in accordance with adjustment (g) below.

The Company has carried out the initial impairment testing of goodwill required by SFAS 142 as at July 1, 2002. Fair value was determined based on discounted cash flows using reasonable and appropriate assumptions that are consistent with internal forecasts. As a result, the Company determined that goodwill was not impaired and no adjustments were recorded.

(c) Goodwill and Intangible Assets Purchase Price Adjustment

During the three year period ended June 30, 2000, the Company acquired controlling interests in Cash Paymaster Services (Proprietary) Limited, Country on a Card, Moneyline Financial Services (Proprietary) Limited, and Net 1 Southern Africa (Proprietary) Limited (Creative Logica). Purchase consideration was satisfied in each instance by the Company through the issuance of a fixed number of shares. The number of shares issued was determined based on a fixed share price and the value ascribed to the business being acquired. For the Company s purpose, the purchase price was determined using that fixed share price.

US GAAP requires that shares issued in a purchase business combination should be accounted for at their fair value, which in the case of quoted shares should be determined using the market value at the date the terms of the acquisition are announced, and in the case of the acquisition of an intangible asset, at the date of acquisition.

This adjustment reduces the total amount of purchased goodwill for US GAAP purposes. Because the goodwill arising under SA GAAP was written off directly to reserves, the adjustment consequently reduces the amount of amortization expense arising as a consequence of adjustment (a) above until 2003 when goodwill ceased to be amortized for US GAAP purposes, and increases the amount of amortization expense recorded in respect of the Company s intangible asset in accordance with adjustment (g) below.

(d) Goodwill Purchase Price Adjustment and Compensation Effect

In March 1999, the Company acquired 100% of Cash Paymaster Services (Proprietary) Limited. The consideration was payable in two tranches, and included the issuance of 5 million shares to employees of the acquired company to induce them to enter into new employment contracts. There were no provisions requiring the employees to return the shares if they left employment.

For US GAAP purposes, these shares represented compensation to employees which, absent any service period, should have been immediately expensed.

This adjustment therefore adjusts for US GAAP purposes the amount of goodwill that arose on the acquisition by reducing it and instead charging an amount of compensation expense to income in 1999 and thus reducing the amount of goodwill amortization arising from adjustment (a).

The Company also paid R 4 million for consulting services to be provided by the selling shareholder. Under SA GAAP, the amount is being amortized over the period over which the services are to be rendered. For US GAAP, such payments are not additional purchase price consideration, and should be expensed in a manner consistent with SA GAAP.

(e) Treatment of Negative Goodwill

Under SA GAAP, negative goodwill is determined as the excess of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the purchase price in a business combination. It is then amortized by crediting the income statement over an appropriate period.

Under SA GAAP, negative goodwill is included in the balance sheet and is credited to goodwill in two different methods. For negative goodwill that is related to anticipated future losses or expenditures, it

F-31

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

is recognized as income when the losses or expenditure are incurred. For negative goodwill that relates to identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the useful economic life of the non-monetary assets.

Under US GAAP, until July 1, 2002, the excess of the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities over purchase price was first applied to reduce pro-rata the fair value of long-lived intangible and tangible assets (with certain exceptions) and once the carrying value of such assets had been reduced to zero the remaining amount (negative goodwill) was then amortized by crediting the income statement over an appropriate period.

Under US GAAP for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, where the sum of the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the cost of the acquired entity, that excess is allocated as a pro-rata reduction of the amounts that otherwise would have been assigned to all of the acquired assets except (a) financial assets other than investments accounted for by the equity method, (b) assets to be disposed of by sale, (c) deferred tax assets, (d) prepaid assets related to pension or other post retirement benefit plans, and (e) any other current assets. If any excess remains after reducing to zero the amounts that otherwise would have been assigned to those assets, that remaining excess is recognized as an extraordinary gain. Any unamortized negative goodwill relating to a business combination which occurred prior to July 1, 2001 was required to be written off and recognized as a change in accounting principle upon adoption of SFAS 142.

Prior to July 1, 2002 no negative goodwill arose for SA GAAP purposes but because of adjustment (f) described below and the effect of reducing the purchase price for US GAAP purposes, negative goodwill arose for US GAAP purposes. This adjustment recognizes that amount of negative goodwill, amortizes it for US GAAP purposes up to July 1, 2002 and then recognizes the remaining amount as a cumulative adjustment.

Subsequent to June 30, 2002 negative goodwill arose for SA GAAP and US GAAP purposes. This adjustment also credits the amount of negative goodwill recognized under US GAAP to income as an extraordinary item and reverses the amortization credit recorded for SA GAAP purposes.

(f) Goodwill Date of Acquisition Adjustment

For the Company s purposes, the date of acquisition of a minority interest in the year ended June 30, 2003 has been treated as being the beginning of the financial year and the results of the acquired business have been included in consolidated income statement from that date. Likewise, goodwill has been computed as the difference between the purchase price and the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities as of the same date.

For US GAAP purposes, the results of acquired businesses should be reflected in the income statement only as from the date of acquisition and the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities determined as of that date.

This adjustment therefore deducts from the income for the period the results of the acquired business from the beginning of the year until the date of acquisition and treats that amount as goodwill to be accounted for in accordance with SFAS 142. the relevant provisions of US GAAP at the time.

(g) Goodwill Acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings

The Company obtained the patent for the Funds Transfer System (FTS) on its acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (Net 1) on July 12, 2000. 100% of Net 1 s issued share capital was acquired for R 3 million, which was satisfied through the issuance of 9,750,000 of Aplitec common shares. Net 1 was a holding company that did not generate significant revenues or expenses and did not have significant assets or liabilities other than the FTS patent rights for South Africa and surrounding territories, on which the Company s smart card applications are now based.

F-32

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For SA GAAP purposes, this was treated as the acquisition of a business as it was a corporate entity and the excess of the purchase price over the identifiable assets acquired was treated as goodwill and amortized over 10 years.

For US GAAP purposes, EITF 98-3, Determining Whether a Nonmonetary Transaction Involves Receipt of Productive Assets or of a Business, defines a business and the acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings was in substance the acquisition of an asset. As such, the treatment of the premium on acquisition over the net asset value is regarded as being attributable to the patent rights acquired and not treated as goodwill. The patent rights carrying value should be amortized over 10 years, which is the same period that would be used to amortize goodwill. Accordingly there would be no income statement effect if the patent were amortized as opposed to goodwill of the same amount.

However, while under SA GAAP, no deferred tax liability is recognized in respect of intangible assets acquired other than in a business combination where there is a difference at the date of acquisition between the assigned values and the tax bases of the assets, under US GAAP, a deferred tax liability (and corresponding increase in assets acquired) is recognized for all temporary differences between the assigned values and the tax bases of intangible assets acquired. The recording of such deferred tax liability has no net impact on net income or shareholders equity as determined under US GAAP as the decrease in income tax expense is offset by a corresponding increase in amortization.

(h) Development Expenditure

The Company capitalised R 15 million in development costs in 1998 and 1999 and has then amortised these over the four years ended June 30, 2003. Subsequent to 1999, development costs have been expensed as incurred.

Under SA GAAP, expenditure on development is charged to income in the year in which it is incurred except where a clearly defined project is undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that development costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs are capitalized as an intangible asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the project from the date when the developed asset is put into use. Research costs are generally expensed as incurred.

Under US GAAP, costs incurred to develop computer software to be used externally are expensed as incurred until the developed software has been proven to be technologically feasible, in accordance with SFAS 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed (SFAS 86). Under SFAS 86, technological feasibility of a computer software produce is established when all planning, designing, coding, and testing activities that are necessary to establish that the produce can be produced to meet its design specifications including functions, features, and technical performance requirements. Costs to develop software for internal use by the Company are generally expensed as incurred, except in certain situations, as outlined in Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use (SOP 98-1), issued by the AICPA. Under SOP 98-1, only certain costs to develop internal-use computer software during the application development stage or costs to develop or obtain software that allows for access or conversion of old data by new systems are eligible for capitalization. All other costs, including those incurred in the project development and post-implementation stages are expensed as incurred.

The Company did not meet the relevant criteria for capitalization of software development costs under US GAAP and consequently the amounts capitalized under SA GAAP would not have been capitalized under US GAAP.

(i) Self-Insurance Provision and Captive Insurance Company

The Company has established a provision in respect of self-insured losses (mainly attributable to cash in transit theft) based on an actuarially determined amount of such losses expected to arise in the next

F-33

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 months. The amount provided is R 10 million in the year ended June 30, 2002 and a further R 10 million in the year ended June 30, 2003. These provisions have not been claimed for tax purposes and accordingly a debit to deferred tax has been raised to account for the tax effect of such amounts.

In addition, the Company has an insurance captive with a current balance of around R 10 million. This was acquired as part of the acquisition of Cash Paymaster Services in 1999. This asset was not recognised on acquisition and the amount at acquisition was R 14 million.

For the purpose of US GAAP, self-insurance does not represent the transfer of risk and as such it is not possible to recognize a liability for future losses that will arise from events subsequent to the balance sheet date. In addition the captive insurance company should be consolidated for US GAAP purposes.

This adjustment therefore reverses that part of the charge in the income statement in respect of such losses that does not represent the losses of the period, consolidates the assets of the captive insurance company and decreases, for US GAAP purposes, the amount of goodwill amortization that is recorded under SA GAAP.

(j) Stock Compensation Employees

Under SA GAAP there is currently no literature that regulates the accounting treatment of employee stock compensation. Accordingly, for SA GAAP purposes, the Company does not account for the stock options at the time of grant. Upon exercise, the issuance of the shares is accounted for at the exercise price of the stock option, with no effect on earnings. Options granted to directors are disclosed in the Company s financial statements.

Under US GAAP, companies may elect to follow the accounting prescribed by either Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25), or SFAS No 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123). Under US GAAP, compensation is recorded for the cost of providing warrants and options to the employee over the relevant service period. The costs can be determined based on either the intrinsic value method (APB 25) or the fair value method (SFAS 123).

Under the intrinsic value method, the compensation cost is the difference between the market price of the stock at the measurement date and the price to be contributed by the employee (exercise price). Under the intrinsic method, the measurement date is the first date on which the employee knows the number of shares that such employee is entitled to receive and the exercise price. The measurement date is often the grant date; however, it may be later than the grant date in plans with variable terms that depend on events that occur after the grant date. These terms may be variable by design, may become variable due to their modification after the date of grant, or may be considered variable due to their relationship to other stock option features. In such cases, compensation is measured at the end of each reporting period until the measurement date or, in some cases, until exercise, forfeiture, or expiry of the stock option.

The Company has elected to apply the intrinsic value method in respect of grants to employees made in May 2000. While these grants of options were made at an exercise price that was equivalent to market value at date of grant the employees were permitted to exercise using a loan provided by the Company. These loans are non-recourse and bear interest at a variable rate. Consequently, under EITF 95-16, Accounting for Stock Compensation Arrangements with Employer Loan Features under APB Opinion No. 25 and FIN 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, these awards are accounted for as variable awards under US GAAP with the final measurement of the compensation expense only being determined when the loans are repaid or when the options are exercised without a loan.

F-34

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has historically entered into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on specific transactions. Under SA GAAP, prior to the adoption of AC133, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (AC 133) on July 1, 2002, gains and losses on forward contracts designated as hedges of identifiable foreign currency firm commitments were recognized in the measurement of the related foreign currency transactions.

Under SA GAAP, upon adoption of AC133, the difference between previous carrying amounts and the fair value of derivatives, which prior to the adoption of AC133 had been designated as either fair value or cash flow hedges but do not qualify as hedges under AC133, is recognized as an adjustment of the opening balance of retained earnings at the beginning of the financial year AC133 is initially applied. Changes in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedges after July 1, 2002 are recorded in the income statement.

Under US GAAP, upon adoption of SFAS 133, the difference between previous carrying amounts and the fair values of derivatives, which prior to the adoption of SFAS 133 had been designated as cash flow type hedges but do not qualify as hedges under SFAS 133 is recognized as a cumulative effect adjustment of other comprehensive income in the year SFAS 133 is initially applied.

(l) Internally Developed Intangible Asset

In 2000, the Company incurred costs of approximately R3 million to develop and promote a trademark. Under SA GAAP, these costs were capitalized as an intangible asset. Under US GAAP, only the costs of intangible assets acquired from other enterprises or individuals that provide a future discernible benefit are capitalized, whilst other costs of developing, maintaining, or restoring intangible assets which are not specifically identifiable, have indeterminate lives, or are inherent in a continuing business and related to an enterprise as a whole are deducted from income when incurred. The trademark developed by the Company would not be considered to have a determinate life under US GAAP, and would consequently be expensed as incurred.

This adjustment therefore treats the costs of developing the trademark as an expense in 2000 for US GAAP purposes and reverses the intangible asset amortization under SA GAAP from 2000.

(m) Income Tax Rate Differences and Effect on Tax Charge

The tax rate in South Africa varies depending on whether income is distributed. The income tax rate is 30% but upon distribution an additional tax (Secondary Tax on Companies or STC) of 12.5% is due based on the amount of the dividends net of dividends received during a dividend cycle.

In conformity with SA GAAP, the Company reflects the STC as a component of the income tax charge for the period in which dividends are declared. SA GAAP also requires that deferred tax be provided for at the undistributed rate of 30%.

For the purpose of US GAAP, under SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS 109), temporary differences have been tax effected using the tax rate that will apply when income is distributed, i.e. an effective rate of 37.78% including STC.

The Company has therefore computed the estimated STC that would become payable upon distribution of relevant undistributed earnings and accrued that amount as an additional liability for US GAAP purposes.

(n) Deferred Taxation

The tax effects of the US GAAP adjustments have been calculated based on the enacted tax rate of 37.78% (2002: 37.78%; 2001: 37.78%).

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A reconciliation of the deferred tax balances under SA GAAP to the amounts determined under US GAAP is as follows:

	2001	2002	2003
		•	
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities):			
As reported under SA GAAP	R 10,240	R 11,036	R 18,932
Additional temporary difference	(13,028)	(11,580)	(10,132)
Income tax rate difference	2,706	2,913	4,960
Tax effect of US GAAP adjustments	2,063	(1,103)	(5,327)
As adjusted under US GAAP	R 1,981	R 1,266	R 8,433

Under US GAAP, long-term tax liabilities would be recognized as of June 30, 2001, 2002, and 2003 of \$20,261, \$31,622 and \$45,508, respectively, in respect of the tax rate adjustment described in adjustment (m) above.

Other differences between SA GAAP and US GAAP not affecting the determination of shareholders equity or net income for the periods presented

Capitalized Interest

Under SA GAAP, borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Under US GAAP, interest cost incurred during the construction period is capitalized. The capitalized interest is recorded as part of the asset to which it relates and is amortized over the estimated useful life of the asset. Capitalized interest was nil for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

The Company has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset sold are transferred. Under SA GAAP, turnover represents the net invoice value of goods and services provided to third parties, deducting sales taxes and duties.

US GAAP has a number of specific pronouncements relating to aspects of revenue recognition in general and in particular industries. The SEC Staff has issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, *Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements* (SAB 101). Under SAB 101 revenue is recognized when the following four criteria are all met: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, (iii) the sales price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Inventory

Under SA GAAP, inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Under US GAAP inventory is valued at the lower of cost and market value. No material difference results.

Impairment of Assets

Under SA GAAP, the Company is required to annually assess at the balance sheet date or earlier should a triggering event occur, whether there are any indications that an asset may be impaired. Should there be such an indicator, the asset must be tested for impairment. An impairment loss must be recognized in the income statement, should the carrying amount of an asset exceed its recoverable amount.

F-36

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net selling price of the asset and its value in use. Value in use is the future cash flows to be derived from the particular asset, discounted to present value using a pre-tax market-determined rate that reflects the current assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. The reversal of an impairment loss in subsequent periods is permitted when there has been a change in economic conditions or the expected use of the asset.

Under US GAAP, the Company is required to test for impairment whenever there is an indication of impairment. For assets to be held and used, impairment is first measured by reference to undiscounted cash flows. If there is no impairment by reference to undiscounted cash flows, no further action is required but the useful life of the asset must be reconsidered. If impairment exists the Company must measure impairment by comparing the fair value of the asset to its carrying value. Fair value is either market value (if an active market for the asset exists) or the sum of discounted future cash flows. The discount rate reflects the risk that is specific to that asset. For assets to be disposed of, the loss recognized is the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its fair value less costs to sell. The reversal of previously recognized impairment losses is prohibited.

The Company currently has no material GAAP difference for impairment of assets.

Business Combinations Contingent Purchase Price

SA GAAP requires that when an acquisition agreement provides for an adjustment to the purchase consideration contingent on one or more future events, the amount of the adjustment should be included in the cost of the acquisition as at the date of acquisition if the adjustment is probable and the amount can be measured reliably. The cost of the acquisition should be adjusted when a contingency affecting the amount of the purchase consideration is resolved subsequent to the date of the acquisition, such that payment of the amount is probable and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Under US GAAP contingent purchase consideration is usually only included in the measurement of purchase price, and hence goodwill, when the contingency is resolved and consideration becomes payable.

The Company currently has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Business Combinations Determination of Fair Value

Under SA GAAP, where it is not possible to complete the determination of fair values by the date on which the first post-acquisition financial statements are approved, a provisional assessment of fair values is made and any adjustments required to those provisional fair values, and the corresponding adjustments to purchased goodwill, are incorporated in the financial statements for the first full annual accounting period following the acquisition.

Under US GAAP, adjustments are likewise permitted subsequent to consummation of the acquisition, but the allocation period should usually not exceed one year from the consummation of a business combination.

The Company currently has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Accounting for Minority Interest in a Business Combination

Under SA GAAP, minority interest in a business combination is either stated at the minority s proportion of the fair values of the net identifiable assets of the acquired entity or at historical values.

Under US GAAP, minority interest is determined at historical values.

For SA GAAP purposes, the Company states minority interest at historical values. Accordingly, the Company has no GAAP difference in this respect.

F-37

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounting for Leases

Under SA GAAP, a lease is classified as a finance lease if the risks and rewards of ownership lie with the lessee.

Examples of situations that would normally lead to a lease being classified as a finance lease are:

- (1) The lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term.
- (2) The lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price which is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable such that, at the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.
 - (3) The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is not transferred.
- (4) At the inception of the lease the present value of the minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset.
 - (5) The leased assets are of a specialized nature such that only the lessee can use them without major modifications being made.
 - (6) If the lessee can cancel the lease, the lessor s losses associated with the cancellation are borne by the lessee.
- (7) Gains or losses from the fluctuation in the fair value of the residual fall to the lessee (for example in the form of a rent rebate equaling most of the sales proceeds at the end of the lease).
- (8) The lessee has the ability to continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent that is substantially lower than market rent.

 Under US GAAP, if any one of the following four criteria applies to a lease agreement, then the lease must be classified as a finance lease by the lessee:
 - (1) The lease transfers ownership of the leased assets to the lessee at the end of the lease term.
 - (2) The lease contains a bargain purchase option.
 - (3) The lease term is greater than or equal to 75% of the economic useful life of the leased asset.
 - (4) The present value of the minimum lease payments is greater than or equal to 90% of the fair value of the leased asset. The Company currently has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Restructuring Costs

Under SA GAAP, a provision is required to be recognized when an entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Under US GAAP, restructuring costs are accounted for under SFAS No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (SFAS 146). SFAS 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. It also concludes that an entity s commitment to a plan, by itself, does not create a present obligation to others that meets the definition of a liability. Under SFAS 146, fair value is the objective for initial measurement of the liability. In respect to other exit costs, liabilities are simply recognized when they are incurred, which is normally when the goods or services associated with the activity are received.

Table of Contents 130

F-38

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Company currently has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Investments in Securities

Under SA GAAP, accounting for investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values and for all debt securities is based on the particular security classification.

Debt securities that the entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost.

Debt and equity securities that are held for current resale are classified as held for trading securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings.

All other debt and equity securities are classified as available for sale and should be reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses either included in earnings or recognized in equity until the debt or equity security is sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of, or until the financial asset is determined to be impaired.

A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. An enterprise should assess at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets may be impaired. If any such evidence exists, the enterprise should estimate the recoverable amount of that asset or group of assets and recognize any impairment loss in earnings. If a loss on a financial asset carried at fair value has been recognized directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative net loss that had been recognized directly in equity should be removed from equity and recognized in net profit or loss for the period even though the financial asset has not been derecognized.

Under US GAAP, investments in equity securities with no readily determinable fair values are recorded at historical cost. The accounting for investments in equity securities that have readily determinable fair values and for all debt securities is based on the particular security classification.

Debt securities that the entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. The requirements for use of this category are very restrictive.

Debt and equity securities that are held for current resale are classified as trading securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. All other debt and equity securities are classified as available for sale and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as other comprehensive income.

For securities classified as either held to maturity or available for sale, other than temporary declines in fair value require that the cost of the security be written down to the fair value and the adjustment be recorded through earnings.

The Company currently has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

Stock Compensation Non-employees

In 1997 the Company granted certain stock options (the call options) to three black empowerment agencies whereby the agency had the right to acquire shares at a pre-determined price provided that they introduced certain levels of additional business to the Company.

These call options were not exercised because the Company believed that the required levels of additional business were not attained. However, in respect of one agency the Company decided to make cash settlement and that amount was recognized as an expense in 2002.

F-39

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Under US GAAP, warrants and options granted to non-employees for services performed are accounted for at fair value. The fair value is measured at the earlier of the completion of the services or the date when the Company receives a commitment of performance with estimates of final compensation expense made in the intervening periods until final cost can be measured.

Because of the nature of the performance conditions, the Company does not believe it would have been required to recognize any compensation cost under these arrangements and as such a measurement date was never reached. Consequently, for the purpose of US GAAP the cash settlement appropriately measures the cost.

In addition to granting the call options to the black empowerment agencies, the Company also had the option to require the agencies to purchase shares at the same pre-determined price (the put options). Although the put options in respect of two of the agencies expired unexercised, the Company exercised its put option in respect of one agency in 1999 and issued 4 million shares. At the time of issuance, the market price of the Company s share exceeded the option s exercise price and the agency had no further obligation to provide any additional service.

Under SA GAAP, the issuance of the put option was recognized as the issuance of share capital at the option exercise price.

Under US GAAP, the option would be accounted for at fair value, with the excess between the option exercise price and the fair value of the shares recognized as a period expense. In 1999, therefore, an additional expense would have been recorded for US GAAP purposes, with an offsetting increase to additional-paid-in-capital. There is no impact of this entry on total shareholders—equity, however, in any of the periods presented.

Derecognition of Assets

Under SA GAAP, financial assets are derecognized when the Company realizes the rights to the benefits specified in the contract, the rights expire or the Company surrenders or otherwise loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial asset.

Under SA GAAP, financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Under US GAAP, a transfer of all or a portion of a financial asset in which the transferor surrenders control over such financial asset shall be accounted for as a sale to the extent that consideration other than beneficial interests in the transferred asset is received in exchange. The transferor has surrendered control over transferred assets if and only if all of the following conditions are met:

- a. The transferred assets have been isolated from the transferor put presumptively beyond the reach of the transferor and its creditors, even in bankruptcy or other receivership.
- b. transferee (or, if the transferee is a qualifying SPE, each holder of its beneficial interests) has the right to pledge or exchange the assets (or beneficial interests) it received, and no condition both constrains the transferee (or holder) from taking advantage of its right to pledge or exchange and provides more than a trivial benefit to the transferor.
- c. The transferor does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through either (1) an agreement that both entitles and obligates the transferor to repurchase or redeem them before their maturity or (2) the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets, other than through a cleanup call

The Company currently has no material GAAP difference in this respect.

F-40

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Additional Disclosures Required by US GAAP

(a) Stock-based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the expense recognition provisions of APB 25 and provides disclosures of pro-forma stock compensation expense in accordance with SFAS 123. Included in net income for the Company s share option plan under APB 25 was a charge of R 11 million (2002: R 4 million; 2001: R 5 million). Had compensation expense for share options granted under the stock option plan been determined based on fair value at the grant dates consistent with the method required in accordance with SFAS 123, the Company s net income and earnings per share in accordance with US GAAP for 2001, 2002 and 2003 would have been as presented in the pro-forma disclosures below:

Net income, as reported under			
US GAAP	R 61,405	R 86,443	R 118,803
Add back: stock-based compensation expense included in reported			
net income, net of related tax effects	11,233	3,904	5,553
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense determined under			
fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax effects	(3,934)	(2,122)	(902)
			
Pro forma net income	R 68,704	R 88,225	R 123,454
Earnings per share, basic and diluted (R):			
Basic, as reported	0.27	0.38	0.50
Basic, pro forma	0.31	0.39	0.52
Diluted, as reported	0.27	0.37	0.50
Diluted, pro forma	0.30	0.38	0.52

The fair value for these options at the date of grant was estimated using a Black-Scholes model The assumptions used in this valuation were as follows:

Risk-free interest rate	12.00%	13.00%	14.00%
Dividend yield	0.00%	0.00%	0.00%
Stock volatility	67.82%	67.82%	67.82%
Average expected life (years)	2.15	2.15	2.15

F-41

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The movement in stock-based awards outstanding during the three years ended June 30, 2003 is summarized in the following table:

	2001		20	2002		2003	
	No. of Shares Under Option	Weighted Average Exercise Price	No. of Shares Under Option	Weighted Average Exercise Price	No. of Shares Under Option	Weighted Average Exercise Price	
Outstanding at							
beginning of year	11,025,000	1.475	7,250,000	1.475	3,550,008	1.475	
Granted							
Exercised	3,625,000	1.475	3,649,992	1.475	3,513,341	1.475	
Lapsed or otherwise							
forfeited	150,000	1.475	50,000		36,667		
Outstanding at end of							
year		7,250,000	1.475	3,550,008	1.475		
•							
Exercisable at end of year							

(b) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On July 1, 2002 the Company adopted SFAS 142 for US GAAP purposes, which requires that goodwill and certain intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, including those recorded in past business combinations, no longer be amortized, but instead be tested for impairment at least annually. The standard also requires the completion of a transitional impairment test with any resulting impairment identified treated as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Prior to SFAS 142, the Company assessed goodwill for impairment based on the guidance in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 17, Intangible Assets and SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of and had to evaluate the periods of amortization continually to determine whether later events and circumstances warranted revised estimates of useful lives; impairment had to be recognized when the carrying amount exceeded the fair market value of the asset.

In connection with the adoption of SFAS 142, the Company completed a transitional impairment test of its goodwill. Fair value was determined based on discounted cash flows using reasonable and appropriate assumptions that are consistent with internal forecasts. As a result, the Company determined that goodwill was not impaired and that no adjustment was required.

Summarized below is the carrying value and accumulated amortization of the intangible asset that will continue to be amortized under SFAS 142, as well as the carrying amount of goodwill, which will no longer be amortized.

		2002			2003	
	Gross Carrying Value	Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Value	Gross carrying value	Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Value
Goodwill	85,816	(30,172)	55,644	90,276	(30,172)	60,104
Finite-lived intangible assets: FTS patent(1)	38,316	(7,663)	30,653	38,316	(11,494)	26,822

(1) See note (g) to the description of quantified differences between US GAAP and SA GAAP for a discussion of the FTS patent. F-42

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Aggregate amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2003 was R 3.8 million. The Company estimates amortization expense to be R 3.8 million each year for the next five years. Actual amortization expense to be reported in future periods could differ from these estimates as a result of new intangible asset acquisitions, changes in useful lives and other relevant factors.

As required by SFAS 142, the standard has not been retroactively applied to the results for the period prior to adoption. Net profit on a pro-forma basis, as if SFAS 142 had been adopted as of July 1, 2000, is presented below:

	2001	2002	2003
Reported net profit	R 61,405	R 86,443	R 118,803
Add back: goodwill amortization	9,118	8,970	
Recognition of negative goodwill	(5,688)		
Adjusted net profit	R 64,835	R 95,413	R 118,803

(c) Comprehensive Income

For each of the three years ended June 30, 2003, the Company s total comprehensive income was equal to net income as reported under US GAAP.

(d) Summarized Income Statements and Balance Sheets (Under US GAAP)

Balance sheets	2001	2002	2003	
		(In thousands of Rands)		
Current assets	R 334,673	R 459,663	R 596,768	
Goodwill	63,535	55,644	60,104	
Intangible assets	34,487	30,653	26,822	
Other long-term assets	47,095	41,892	83,779	
Total assets	479,790	587,852	767,473	
Current liabilities	81,600	46,342	174,886	
Long-term liabilities	33,931	105,544	65,927	
Minority interests	1,579	3,274		
Shareholders equity	R 362,679	R 432,692	R 526,660	

Income statements	2001	2002	2003
Revenue	557,445	525,585	678,567
Cost of sales	(167,312)	(143,795)	(234,885)
Other operating income	1,215	1,872	5,373
Operating expenses	(279,922)	(253,172)	(274,552)
Interest income	10,986	14,014	23,546
Profit before taxation	122,412	144,504	198,049
Taxation	(54,040)	(56,365)	(85,794)
Profit after taxation	68,372	88,139	112,255
Income attributable to minority interests	(6,967)	(1,696)	(4,095)
Profit from continuing operations	61,405	86,443	108,160
Extraordinary item			7,764
Effect of accounting change			2,879
Net profit for the year	61,405	86,443	118,803

Table of Contents 137

F-43

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(e) Operating Segments

The Company discloses segment information in accordance with SFAS No. 131, *Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information* (SFAS 131), which requires companies to report selected segment information on a quarterly basis and to report certain entity-wide disclosures about products and services, major customers, and the material countries in which the entity holds assets and reports revenues.

The Company has three reportable segments which each operate exclusively within South Africa: Transaction-based activities, Financial services and Technology sales and outsourcing. The Company s reportable segments are strategic divisions that offer different products and services and are managed separately as each division requires different resources and marketing strategies.

The Transaction-based activities segment provides a state pension and welfare benefit distribution service to provincial governments in South Africa. Fee income is earned based on the number of beneficiaries included in the government payfile. This segment has individually significant customers that each provide more than 10 per cent of the total revenue of the Company. For the year ended June 30, 2003, there were two such customers, providing 35 per cent and 20 per cent of total revenue (2002: three customers providing 30, 18 and 13 per cent of total revenue; 2001: three customers providing 16, 14 and 12 per cent of total revenue).

The Financial services segment derives revenue from short-term personal lending activities. Interest income is recognized in the income statement as it falls due, using the interest method by reference to the constant interest rate stated in each loan agreement

The Technology sales and outsourcing segment markets, sells and implements the Universal Electronic Payment System. The segment undertakes smart card system implementation projects, delivering hardware and software in the form of customized systems. Revenue for such arrangements is recognized under the completed contract method, no income and profit being recognized until the contract is completed.

Corporate/ eliminations include the Company s head office cost centres in addition to the elimination of inter-segment transactions.

The accounting policies of the segments are consistent with those described in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note 1 and any intersegment sales or transfers are eliminated.

The Company evaluates segment performance based on net income after tax. The following tables summarize segment information:

2003

	Transaction- based Activities	Financial Services	Technology Sales and Outsourcing	Corporate/ Eliminations	Total
Revenues from external customers	R 523,550	R 121,426	R 57,767	R (11,259)	R 691,484
Interest revenue	52,928	4,994	11,138	4,026	73,086
Interest expense	44,260	3,886	2	1,392	49,540
Depreciation and amortization	25,507	2,997	127	7,308	35,939
Income tax expense	46,005	14,170	5,868	3,089	69,132
Net profit after tax	101,580	32,824	13,612	(17,734)	130,282
Segment assets	448,986	116,760	95,161	21,621	682,528
Expenditures for long-lived assets	54,729	960	135	4,967	60,791
		F-44			

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2002

	Transaction- based Activities	Financial Services	Technology Sales and Outsourcing	Corporate/ Eliminations	Total
Revenues from external customers	R 371,498	R 106,196	R 56,224	R (8,333)	R 525,585
Interest revenue	25,582	2,807	4,976	(279)	33,086
Interest expense	16,406	4,093		(1,427)	19,072
Depreciation and amortization	14,653	2,547	502	8,688	26,390
Income tax expense	30,780	3,297	8,949	260	43,286
Net profit after tax	79,035	7,572	20,929	(1,808)	105,728
Segment assets	310,271	90,297	107,643	2,506	510,717
Expenditures for long-lived assets	9,574	8,295	54	1,549	19,472

2001

	Transaction- based Activities	Financial Services	Technology Sales and Outsourcing	Corporate/ Eliminations	Total
Revenues from external customers	R 366,447	R 94,914	R98,281	R (2,197)	R 557,445
Interest revenue	7,151	1,953	2,133	703	11,940
Interest expense	311	2,633	10	(2,000)	954
Depreciation and amortization	17,169	1,138	653	8,985	27,945
Income tax expense	25,900	7,541	8,581	449	42,471
Net profit after tax	57,863	17,660	20,008	(1,260)	94,271
Segment assets	221,936	72,388	75,998	21,933	392,255
Expenditures for long-lived assets	16,238	1,412	155	4,151	21,956

(f) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share has been calculated by dividing the net income, before and after the extraordinary item and the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share has been calculated to give effect to the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the potential common shares that were dilutive had been issued in each period.

The following table details the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the years ended June 30:

		2001	2002	2003
Weighted average number of shares	basic	225,004,299	230,001,354	236,977,187
Weighted average effect of dilutive	o di si c	220,000,200	200,001,001	200,571,107
securities: Employee stock options		228,661,336	2,122,263	
Zimprojee stoen options				
Weighted average number of shares	diluted	228,661,336	232,123,617	236,977,187

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted at June 30, 2003 for US GAAP Purposes.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, *Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets* (SFAS 144). SFAS 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment of long-lived assets and for long-lived assets to be disposed of. This Statement supersedes SFAS 121. However, this Statement retains the fundamental provisions of SFAS 121 for recognition and measurement of the (a) impairment of long-lived assets to be held and used and (b) long-lived assets to

F-45

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

be disposed of by sale. The Company adopted SFAS 144 effective July 1, 2002, and it had no material impact on the Company s results of operations and financial position.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, *Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities* (SFAS 146). This Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, *Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring*) (EITF 94-3). SFAS 146 eliminates the definition and requirements for recognition of exit costs in EITF 94-3. SFAS 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when the liability is incurred. Under EITF 94-3, a liability for an exit cost as defined in EITF 94-3 was recognized at the date of an entity s commitment to an exit plan. SFAS 146 also concluded that an entity s commitment to a plan, by itself, does not create a present obligation to others that meets the definition of a liability. SFAS 146 also establishes that fair value is the objective for initial measurement of the liability. SFAS 146 is effective for all exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company adopted SFAS 146 on January 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 146 had no impact on the Company s results of operations and financial position.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor's Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees and Indebtedness of Others (an interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and Rescission of Interpretation No. 34) (FIN 45). This interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. This interpretation does not prescribe a specific approach for subsequently measuring the guarantor's recognized liability over the term of the related guarantee. This interpretation also incorporates, without change, the guidance in FASB Interpretation No. 34, Disclosure of Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, (FIN 34), which is being superseded. The initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of this interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002, irrespective of the guarantor's fiscal year-end. The disclosure requirements in this Interpretation are effective for financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company adopted the disclosure requirements in the year ended June 30, 2003.

The interpretive guidance incorporated without change from FIN 34 continues to be required for financial statements for fiscal years ending after June 15, 1981 the effective date of FIN 34. The Company adopted the initial recognition and initial measurement provisions of FIN 45 and it had no material impact on the Company s results of operations and financial positions.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, *Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, Transition and Disclosure* (SFAS 148). SFAS 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. SFAS 148 also requires that disclosures of the pro forma effect of using the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation be displayed more prominently and in a tabular format. Additionally, SFAS 148 requires disclosure of the pro forma effect in interim financial statements. The transition and annual disclosure requirements of SFAS 148 are effective for fiscal years ended after December 15, 2002. The interim disclosure requirements of SFAS 148 are effective for interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. As the Company has no stock-based compensation plans accounted for under SFAS 123, SFAS 148 is not applicable to the Company s stock option plan accounting in the year ended June 30, 2003. The Company continues to apply the provisions in APB 25, as interpreted by FIN 28.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, Rescission of SFAS Nos. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of SFAS 13, and Technical Corrections (SFAS 145). SFAS 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4, Reporting Gains

F-46

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt (SFAS 4), SFAS No. 44, Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers, and SFAS No. 64, Extinguishments of Debt made to satisfy Sinking-Fund requirements. As a result, gains and losses from extinguishment of debt will no longer be classified as extraordinary items unless they meet the criteria of unusual or infrequent as described in Accounting Principles Boards Opinion 30, Reporting the Results of Operations Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions. In addition, SFAS 145 amends SFAS No. 13, Accounting for Leases, to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar to sale-leaseback transactions.

SFAS 145 also amends other existing authoritative pronouncements to make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions. The Company adopted all provisions of SFAS 145 in the year ended June 30, 2002. The adoption of SFAS 145 had no material impact on the Company s results of operations or financial position.

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Adopted at June 30, 2003

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, *Accounting for Obligations, Associated with the Retirement of Long-Lived Assets* (SFAS 143). SFAS 143 establishes accounting standards for recognition and measurement of a liability at fair value for an asset retirement obligation and an addition to the associated asset retirement cost. The accretion of interest expense each period is subsequently recorded as an expense and added to the liability. SFAS 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company adopted SFAS 143 on July 1, 2003 and is currently evaluating the impact it will have on its results of operations and financial position. However, the Company does not believe that the adoption of SFAS 143 will have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

In November 2002, the EITF reached a final consensus related to Revenue Arrangement with Multiple Deliverables (EITF 00-21). The consensus requires that revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting if (a) a delivered item has value to the customer on stand alone basis, (b) there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item and (c) if the arrangement includes a general right of return, delivery or performance of the undelivered items is considered probable and substantially in the control of the vendor. Arrangement consideration should be allocated among the separate units of accounting based on their relative fair value and appropriate revenue recognition criteria would be applied to each separate unit of accounting. The Company has not yet determined what effect, if any, EITF 00-21 would have on revenue and net income determined in accordance with US GAAP. The EITF agreed the effective date for the consensus will be for all revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003, with early adoption permitted. The Company is still evaluating the impact of this EITF on its financial statements. This EITF will be effective for the Company for revenue arrangements entered into after July 1, 2004.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, *Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities and Interpretation of ARB No. 51* (FIN 46). This interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, *Consolidated Financial Statements*, addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities, which have one or both of the following characteristics:

- 1. The equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties, which is provided through other interest that will absorb some or all of the expected losses of the entity.
 - 2. The equity investors lack one or more of the following essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest:
 - (a) The direct or indirect ability to make decisions about the entity s activities through voting rights or similar rights.

F-4

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- (b) The obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity if they occur, which makes it possible for the entity to finance its activities.
- (c) The right to receive the expected residual returns of the entity if they occur, which is the compensation for the risk of absorbing the expected losses.

FIN 46 applies immediately to variable interest entities created after January 31, 2003, and to variable interest entities in which an enterprise obtains an interest after that date. It applies in the first fiscal year or interim period beginning after June 15, 2003, to variable interest entities in which an enterprise holds a variable interest that it acquired before February 1, 2003. The Interpretation applies to public enterprises as of the beginning of the applicable interim or annual period.

FIN 46 may be applied prospectively with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date on which it is first applied or by restating previously issued financial statements for one or more years with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the beginning of the first year restated. The Company is still evaluating the impact of this interpretation on its financial statements. However, the Company does not believe that the adoption of FIN 46 will have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

In April 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, *Amendment of SFAS No. 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities* (SFAS 149). SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS 133. In particular, it (1) clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net investment meets the characteristic of a derivative as discussed in SFAS 133, (2) clarifies when a derivative contains a financing component, (3) amends the definition of an underlying to conform it to the language used in FIN 45 and (4) amends certain other existing pronouncements.

SFAS 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, except as stated below and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003.

The provisions of SFAS 149 that relate to SFAS 133 Implementation Issues that have been effective for fiscal quarters that began prior to June 15, 2003, should continue to be applied in accordance with their respective effective dates. In addition, certain provisions relating to forward purchases or sales of when-issued securities or other securities that do not yet exist, should be applied to existing contracts as well as new contracts entered into after June 30, 2003. SFAS 149 should be applied prospectively.

The Company does not expect that the adoption of this Statement will have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

In May 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity (SFAS 150). SFAS 150 modifies the accounting for certain financial instruments that, under previous guidance, issuers could account for as equity. SFAS 150 requires that those instruments be classified as liabilities in statements of financial position.

SFAS 150 affects an issuer s accounting for three types of freestanding financial instruments, namely:

Mandatorily redeemable shares, which the issuing company is obligated to buy back in exchange for cash or other assets.

Financial instruments, other than outstanding shares, that do or may require the issuer to buy back some of its equity shares in exchange for cash or other assets.

Unconditional obligations that can be settled with equity shares, the monetary value of which is fixed, tied solely or predominantly to a variable such as a market index, or varies inversely with the value of the issuer s equity shares.

SFAS 150 does not apply to features embedded in financial instruments that are not derivatives in their entirety.

F-48

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In addition to its requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments within its scope, SFAS 150 also requires disclosures about alternative ways of settling such instruments and the capital structure of entities, all of whose shares are mandatorily redeemable.

SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 150 on its results of operations and financial position.

F-49

Table of Contents

NET 1 APPLIED TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and For the Six Month Period Ended December 31, 2003

Balance sheets at December 31, 2003 and June 30, 2003

	Notes	December 31, 2003	June 30, 2003
		(Unaudited) (In thousand	(Audited) s of Rands)
	ASSETS		
Non-current assets		R 95,444	R 96,050
Property, plant and equipment		63,241	65,075
Intangible assets	2	8,535	12,043
Deferred tax		23,668	18,932
Current assets		637,042	586,478
Inventory		5,745	6,437
Trade and other receivables		138,543	151,492
Cash and cash equivalents		492,754	428,549
			
Total assets		732,486	682,528
E	QUITY AND LIABILITIES		
Capital and reserves		561,999	524,120
Share capital	4	237	237
Share premium		134,497	134,497
Accumulated profit		427,265	389,386
Current liabilities		170,487	158,408
Trade and other payables		108,520	107,474
Tax		61,967	50,934
Total equity and liabilities		R 732,486	R 682,528

F-50

Table of Contents

INCOME STATEMENTS

For the Six Month Periods Ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002

	Notes	Six Months Ended December 31, 2003	Six Months Ended December 31, 2002
		(Unaudited)	(Unaudited) ds of Rands)
Revenue		R 390,742	R 310,834
Cost of sales		129,363	104,064
Gross profit		261,379	206,770
Other operating (expense) income		(159)	1,200
Operating expenses		156,213	133,264
Distribution costs		7,053	1,345
Administration expenses		36,540	27,073
Other operating expenses		112,620	104,846
Profit/(Loss) from operations		105,007	74,706
Interest received		50,548	27,388
Finance cost		(39,388)	(13,901)
Profit/(Loss) before tax		116,167	88,193
Income tax expense	3	42,740	31,349
meonic tax expense	3		
Profit/(Loss) after tax		73,427	56,844
Minority interests			2,494
			
Net profit/(Loss) for the period		R 73,427	R 54,350
Earnings per share (Rands)	5	0.31	0.23
			

F-51

Table of Contents

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

For the Six Month Periods Ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002

	Notes	Six Months Ended December 31, 2003	Six Months Ended December 31, 2002
		(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)
		`	ds of Rands)
Cash flows from operating activities		R 77,874	R 25,589
Cash receipts from customers		408,894	302,359
Cash paid to suppliers and employees		(270,192)	(236,562)
Cash (utilised by)/ generated from operations	8	138,702	65,797
Interest received		50,549	27,388
Finance cost		(39,388)	(13,901)
Tax paid		(36,442)	(28,014)
Dividends paid		(35,547)	(25,681)
Cash flows from investing activities		(13,669)	(32,779)
Additions to property, plant and equipment		(13,798)	(33,422)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		129	643
Cash flows from financing activities			(14)
Proceeds from issue of share capital			
Share issue expenses			(14)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		64,205	(7,204)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period		428,549	321,814
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period		R 492,754	R 314,610

F-52

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the Six Month Period Ended December 31, 2003 (Unaudited) (In thousands of Rands)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as the Interim Financial Statements) have been prepared in accordance with South African generally accepted accounting principles (SAGAP). The Interim Financial Statements are unaudited but include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) which the Company is management considers necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position as of such dates and the operating results and cash flows for those periods. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with SAGAAP have been condensed or omitted. The results of operations for the six-month period ended December 31, 2003 may not necessarily be indicative of the operating results that may be incurred for the entire fiscal year.

The June 30, 2003 balance sheet was derived from audited financial statements but does not include all disclosures required by SA GAAP. The Company believes that the disclosures are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. These Interim Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company s audited consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the related audited consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and changes in stockholders equity for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2003.

	December 31, 2003	June 30, 2003
2. Intangible Assets		
Cost		
Capitalised development costs	R 15,076	R 15,076
Trademarks		
Goodwill	23,093	23,093
		
	38,169	38,169
Accumulated amortization		
Capitalised development costs	15,076	15,076
Trademarks	·	,
Goodwill	14,558	11,050
	29,634	26,126
Carrying amount		
Capitalised development costs		
Trademarks		
Goodwill	8,535	12,043
	R 8,535	R 12,043
The comming amount of intensible assets can be reconciled as		
The carrying amount of intangible assets can be reconciled as follows:		
Carrying amount at beginning of year	R 12,043	R 18,284
Acquisition of minority interests/subsidiaries		5,062
Disposal of trademark		(1,630)
Amortisation	(3,508)	(9,673)

Carrying amount at end of year

R 8,535

R 12,043

F-53

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

	Six Months Ended December 31, 2003	Six Months Ended December 31, 2002
3. Income Tax Expense		
South African normal tax Current year	R 43,033	R 22,837
Deferred tax	(4,736)	5,302
Secondary Tax on Companies	4,443	3,210
	D 42.740	D 21 240
	R 42,740 %	R 31,349
Reconciliation of rate of tax:	,,	,,,
South African normal tax rate	30.0	30.0
Permanent differences	3.0	1.9
Secondary Tax on Companies	3.8	3.6
Deferred tax not provided on tax losses		
Effective rate of tax	36.8	35.5
Gross estimated tax losses of certain subsidiaries available for		
utilisation against future taxable income	R 61,814	R 45,519
Applied to increase deferred tax asset	(44,107)	(34,297)
	R 17,707	R 11,222
	December 31,	June 30,
	2003	2003
4. Share Capital		
Authorised:		
500,000,000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each	R 500	R 500
500,000,000 N ordinary shares of 0,001 cent each	5	5
Issued:		
236,977,187 (2002: 233,463,846) ordinary shares of 0,1 cent each	R 237	R 237
Share options		2.550
Unexercised at beginning of year Cancelled during year		3,550 (37)
Exercised during year		(3,513)
Exercised during year		(3,313)
Unexercised at end of year		
	_	

Table of Contents 151

F-54

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

		Six Months Ended December 31, 2003	Six Months Ended December 31, 2002
5. Earning	gs Per Share		
13.1	Number of shares in issue at end of year (000)	236,977	233,464
13.2	Earnings per share (Rands)	0.31	0.23
	The calculation of earnings per share is based on consolidated net		
	profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of R 36,316 (2002:		
	R 30,295) and the weighted average number of shares.		
	Weighted average number of issued shares (000)	236,977	230,001
	Aplitec has no other equity instruments outstanding at the balance sh	eet date.	

6. Operating Lease Commitments

	Due	Within 1 Year	Within 2-5 Years	After 5 Years	Total
The Group leases certain premises under operating lease	s. The minimur	n future comm	itments for lease	d premises a	re:
2003		R7,967	R 5,586	R 81	R 13,634
2002		8,062	3,351		11,613

7. Capital Commitments

	December 31, 2003	June 30, 2003
The Group s outstanding capital commitments at the year-end, which have been approved by the directors and contracted for amounted to:	R 2,040	R 4,233
	Six Months Ended December 31, 2003	Six Months Ended December 31, 2002
8. Cash Generated from/(Utilised by) Operations		
Profit/(Loss) before interest and tax	R 105,007	R 74,709
Depreciation and amortisation	19,013	12,033
Unpaid on disposal of joint venture		
Income from subsidiaries		
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment	(3)	(875)
Profit on disposal of business		
Profit/(Loss) from operations before working capital changes	124,017	85,867
Working capital changes	14,685	(20,070)
Inventory	691	2,650
Trade and other receivables	12,948	(13,105)
Trade and other payables	1,046	(9,615)
	-	

R 138,702 R 65,797

9. Related Party Transactions

Light & Livingstone Financial Services CC, in which Mr. J C Livingstone (a non-executive director) is a member, performs the Company Secretarial function for the Group.

F-55

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. US GAAP Information

Reconciliation of Net Income, Shareholders Equity and Cash Flows from SA GAAP to US GAAP

The interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (SA GAAP), which differs in certain respects from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States (US GAAP). The effect of applying US GAAP principles to net profit and shareholders equity is set out below:

		Six Months Ended December 31,		
	Notes	2002	2003	
		(Unaudited)	(Unaudited)	
Net profit as reported in accordance with SA GAAP		R 54,350	R 73,427	
Items increasing/ (decreasing) net profit:				
Goodwill non-amortization	(b)	10	1,226	
Intangible assets purchase price adjustment	(c)	(315)	(315)	
Goodwill date of acquisition	(f)	(7,868)	1,707	
Goodwill acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings intangible asset	(g)	(724)	(724)	
Deferred taxes acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings intangible				
asset	(g)	724	724	
Development expenditure	(h)	1,367		
Self-insurance	(i)	3,829	13,500	
Stock compensation employees	(j)	(1,889)		
Internally developed intangible asset	(1)	1,630		
Income tax rate differences	(m)	(4,087)	(6,287)	
Income tax effect of US GAAP adjustments	(n)	(2,460)	(4,981)	
				
Net profit in accordance with US GAAP from continuing operations		44,567	78,277	
Extraordinary item SFAS 142	(e)	7,764		
Change in accounting policy upon adoption of SFAS 142	(e)	2,879		
Net profit in accordance with US GAAP after extraordinary item and				
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle		R 55,210	R 78,277	
Earnings per share before extraordinary item and cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle computed in accordance				
with US GAAP				
Basic and diluted		0.19	0.33	
Earnings per share after extraordinary item and cumulative effect		****		
of a change in accounting principle computed in accordance with				
US GAAP				
Basic and diluted		0.24	0.33	
F-56				

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

		June 30, 2003	December 31, 2003
	Notes	(Audited)	(Unaudited)
Shareholders equity as reported in accordance with SA GAAP		R 524,120	R 561,999
Items increasing/ (decreasing) shareholders equity:			
Goodwill capitalization	(a)	82,064	82,064
Goodwill non-amortization	(b)	5,660	6,885
Goodwill purchase price adjustment	(c)	(9,789)	(9,789)
Intangible asset purchase price adjustment	(c)	4,409	4,094
Goodwill purchase price adjustment compensation	(d)	(7,351)	(7,351)
Goodwill treatment of negative goodwill	(e)	464	464
Goodwill date of acquisition	(f)	(17,087)	(15,380)
Goodwill self insurance	(i)	4,550	4,550
Goodwill acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings intangible asset	(g)	10,133	9,409
Deferred taxes impact of acquisition of Net 1 Investment Holdings			
intangible asset	(g)	(10,133)	(9,409)
Self-insurance	(i)	15,484	28,984
Derivatives	(k)	(125)	(125)
Income tax rate differences	(m)	(45,508)	(51,793)
Income tax effect of US GAAP adjustments	(n)	(5,327)	(10,308)
Change in accounting policy on adoption of SFAS 142	(e)	2,879	2,879
Dividends declared but not paid		(35,547)	
Extraordinary item		7,764	7,764
			
Shareholders equity in accordance with US GAAP		R 526,660	R 604,937

The cash flow statement is presented in accordance with SA GAAP, which in this respect is the same as IAS No 7, *Cash flow statements* and consequently the SEC does not require a reconciliation to US GAAP to be presented.

A discussion of the material variations in the accounting principles, practices, and methods used in preparing the audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with SA GAAP from the principles, practices, and methods generally accepted in the United States is provided in Note 23 to the Company s audited financial statements for the three years ended June 30, 2003. There are no new significant variations between SA GAAP and US GAAP accounting principles, practices, and methods used in preparing the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements.

Additional Disclosures Required by US GAAP

(a) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

On July 1, 2002 the Company adopted SFAS 142 for US GAAP purposes, which requires that goodwill and certain intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, including those recorded in past business combinations, no longer be amortized, but instead be tested for impairment at least annually. The standard also requires the completion of a transitional impairment test with any resulting impairment identified treated as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Prior to SFAS 142, the Company assessed goodwill for impairment based on the guidance in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 17, *Intangible Assets* and SFAS No. 121, *Accounting for the*

F-57

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of and had to evaluate the periods of amortization continually to determine whether later events and circumstances warranted revised estimates of useful lives; impairment had to be recognized when the carrying amount exceeded the fair market value of the asset.

In connection with the adoption of SFAS 142, the Company completed a transitional impairment test of its goodwill. Fair value was determined based on discounted cash flows using reasonable assumptions that are consistent with internal forecasts. As a result, the Company determined that goodwill was not impaired and that no adjustment was required.

Summarized below is the carrying value and accumulated amortization of the intangible asset that will continue to be amortized under SFAS 142, as well as the carrying amount of goodwill, which will no longer be amortized.

		June 30, 2003				
	Gross Carrying Value	Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Value	Gross Carrying Value	Accumulated Amortization	Net Carrying Value
Goodwill	R 90,276	R (30,172)	R 60,104	R 90,276	R (30,172)	R 60,104
Finite-lived						
intangible assets:						
FTS patent	R 38,316	R (11,494)	R 26,822	R 38,316	R (13,410)	R 24,906

Aggregate amortization expense for the six month period ended December 31, 2003 was approximately R 1.9 million. The Company estimates amortization expense to be R 3.8 million each year for the next five years. Actual amortization expense to be reported in future periods could differ from these estimates as a result of new intangible asset acquisitions, changes in useful lives and other relevant factors.

(b) Comprehensive Income

For each of the three month periods ended December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2003, the Company s total comprehensive income was equal to net income as reported under US GAAP.

(c) Summarized Income Statements and Balance Sheets

Balance sheets	June 30, 2003	December 31, 2003
Current assets	596,768	647,332
Goodwill	60,104	60,104
Intangible assets	26,822	24,906
Other long-term assets	83,779	89,012
Total assets	767,473	821,354
Current liabilities	153,435	146,103
Long-term liabilities	61,697	70,314
Shareholders equity	552,341	604,937

F-58

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Six Month Period Ended December 31

Income statements	2002	2003			
Revenue	301,574	390,742			
Cost of sales	(104,064)	(129,363)			
Other operating (expense) income	1,200	(159)			
Operating expenses	(127,964)	(140,819)			
Interest income	13,487	11,160			
Profit before taxation	84,233	131,561			
Taxation	(37,172)	(53,284)			
Profit after taxation	47,061	78,277			
Income attributable to minority interests	(2,494)				
Net profit from continuing operations	44,567	78,277			
Extraordinary item	7,764				
Effect of accounting change	2,879				
Net profit for the year	55,210	78,277			

(d) Operating Segments

The Company discloses segment information in accordance with SFAS No. 131, *Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information* (SFAS 131), which requires companies to report selected segment information on a quarterly basis and to report certain entity-wide disclosures about products and services, major customers, and the material countries in which the entity holds assets and reports revenues.

The Company has three reportable segments which each operate exclusively within South Africa: Transaction-based activities, Financial services and Technology sales and outsourcing. The Company s reportable segments are strategic divisions that offer different products and services and are managed separately as each division requires different resources and marketing strategies.

The Transaction-based activities segment provides a state pension and welfare benefit distribution service to provincial governments in South Africa. Fee income is earned based on the number of beneficiaries included in the government payfile. This segment has individually significant customers that each provide more than 10 per cent of the total revenue of the Company. For the year ended June 30, 2003, there were two such customers, providing 35 per cent and 20 per cent of total revenue (2002: three customers providing 30, 18 and 13 per cent of total revenue; 2001: three customers providing 16, 14 and 12 per cent of total revenue).

The Financial services segment derives revenue from short-term personal lending activities. Interest income is recognized in the income statement as it falls due, using the interest method by reference to the constant interest rate stated in each loan agreement

The Technology sales and outsourcing segment markets, sells and implements the Universal Electronic Payment System. The segment undertakes smart card system implementation projects, delivering hardware and software in the form of customized systems. Revenue for such arrangements is recognized under the completed contract method, no income and profit being recognized until the contract is completed.

Corporate/ eliminations include the Company s head office cost centers in addition to the elimination of inter-segment transactions.

F-59

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The accounting policies of the segments are consistent with those described in the summary of significant accounting policies in Note 1 to the Company s audited financial statements and any intersegment sales or transfers are eliminated.

The Company evaluates segment performance based on net income after tax. The following tables summarize segment information:

December 31, 2003

	Transaction- based Activities R 000	Financial Services R 000	Technology Sales and Outsourcing R 000	Corporate/ Eliminations R 000	Total R 000
Revenues from external customers	320,292	56,666	21,078	(7,294)	390,742
Interest revenue	39,156	1,939	4,446	5,007	50,548
Interest expense	37,207	411		1,770	39,388
Depreciation and amortization	14,603	1,522	4	2,884	19,013
Income tax expense	29,987	7,548	2,358	2,847	42,740
Net profit after tax	66,929	18,162	5,502	(17,166)	73,427
Segment assets	516,242	127,077	85,794	3,373	732,486
Expenditures for long-lived assets	9,854	496	4	3,443	13,797

December 31, 2002

	Transaction- Based Activities R 000	Financial Services R 000	Technology Sales and Outsourcing R 000	Corporate/ Eliminations R 000	Total R 000
Revenues from external customers	212,539	60,503	42,548	(4,756)	310,834
Interest revenue	19,564	2,089	4,194	1,541	27,388
Interest expense	11,047	1,894		960	13,901
Depreciation and amortization	6,591	1,553	106	3,783	12,033
Income tax expense	19,274	6,248	4,260	1,567	31,349
Net profit after tax	45,249	14,928	9,940	(13,273)	56,844

(e) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted at December 31, 2003 for US GAAP Purposes

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, *Accounting for Obligations, Associated with the Retirement of Long-Lived Assets* (SFAS 143). SFAS 143 establishes accounting standards for recognition and measurement of a liability at fair value for an asset retirement obligation and an addition to the associated asset retirement cost. The accretion of interest expense each period is subsequently recorded as an expense and added to the liability. SFAS 143 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company adopted SFAS 143 on July 1, 2003. The Company adopted SFAS 143 effective July 1, 2003, and it had no material impact on the Company s results of operations or financial position.

In April 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, *Amendment of SFAS No. 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities* (SFAS 149). SFAS 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS 133. In particular, it (1) clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net investment meets the characteristic of a derivative as discussed in SFAS 133, (2) clarifies when a derivative contains a financing component, (3) amends the definition of an underlying to conform it to the language used in FIN 45 and (4) amends certain other existing pronouncements.

F-60

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SFAS 149 is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003, except as stated below and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003.

The provisions of SFAS 149 that relate to SFAS 133 Implementation Issues that have been effective for fiscal quarters that began prior to June 15, 2003, should continue to be applied in accordance with their respective effective dates. In addition, certain provisions relating to forward purchases or sales of when-issued securities or other securities that do not yet exist, should be applied to existing contracts as well as new contracts entered into after June 30, 2003. SFAS 149 should be applied prospectively.

The Company adopted SFAS 149 effective July 1, 2003, and it had no material impact on the Company s results of operations or financial position.

In May 2003 the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, *Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity* (SFAS 150). SFAS 150 modifies the accounting for certain financial instruments that, under previous guidance, issuers could account for as equity. SFAS 150 requires that those instruments be classified as liabilities in statements of financial position.

SFAS 150 affects an issuer s accounting for three types of freestanding financial instruments, namely:

Mandatorily redeemable shares, which the issuing company is obligated to buy back in exchange for cash or other assets.

Financial instruments, other than outstanding shares, that do or may require the issuer to buy back some of its equity shares in exchange for cash or other assets.

Unconditional obligations that can be settled with equity shares, the monetary value of which is fixed, tied solely or predominantly to a variable such as a market index, or varies inversely with the value of the issuer s equity shares.

SFAS 150 does not apply to features embedded in financial instruments that are not derivatives in their entirety.

In addition to its requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments within its scope, SFAS 150 also requires disclosures about alternative ways of settling such instruments and the capital structure of entities, all of whose shares are mandatorily redeemable.

SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The Company adopted the SFAS 150 effective July 1, 2003, and it had no material impact on the Company s results of operations or financial position.

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Adopted at December 31, 2003 for US GAAP Purposes

In November 2002, the EITF reached a final consensus related to Revenue Arrangement with Multiple Deliverables (EITF 00-21). The consensus requires that revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting if (a) a delivered item has value to the customer on stand alone basis, (b) there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item and (c) if the arrangement includes a general right of return, delivery or performance of the undelivered items is considered probable and substantially in the control of the vendor. Arrangement consideration should be allocated among the separate units of accounting based on their relative fair value and appropriate revenue recognition criteria would be applied to each separate unit of accounting. The Company has not yet determined what effect, if any, EITF 00-21 would have on revenue and net income determined in accordance with US GAAP. The EITF agreed the effective date for the consensus will be for all revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003, with early adoption permitted. The Company is still evaluating the impact of this EITF on its financial statements. This EITF will be effective for the Company for revenue arrangements entered into after July 1, 2004.

F-61

Table of Contents

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, *Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities and Interpretation of ARB No. 51* (FIN 46). This interpretation of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, *Consolidated Financial Statements*, addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities, which have one or both of the following characteristics:

- 1. The equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties, which is provided through other interest that will absorb some or all of the expected losses of the entity.
 - 2. The equity investors lack one or more of the following essential characteristics of a controlling financial interest:
 - (a) The direct or indirect ability to make decisions about the entity s activities through voting rights or similar rights.
 - (b) The obligation to absorb the expected losses of the entity if they occur, which makes it possible for the entity to finance its activities.
 - (c) The right to receive the expected residual returns of the entity if they occur, which is the compensation for the risk of absorbing the expected losses.

In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51 (FIN 46R or the Interpretation). FIN 46R clarifies the application of ARB No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support. FIN 46R requires the consolidation of these entities, known as variable interest entities (VIEs), by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary is the entity, if any, that will absorb a majority of the entity is expected losses, receive a majority of the entity is expected residual returns, or both.

Among other changes, the revisions of FIN 46R (a) clarified some requirements of the original FIN 46, which had been issued in January 2003, (b) eased some implementation problems, and (c) added new scope exceptions. FIN 46R deferred the effective date of the Interpretation for public companies, to the end of the first reporting period ending after March 15, 2004, except that all public companies must at a minimum apply the provisions of the Interpretation to entities that were previously considered special-purpose entities under the FASB literature prior to the issuance of FIN 46R by the end of the first reporting period ending after December 15, 2003. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of FIN 46 will have a material impact on its financial position, cash flows and results of operations.

F-62

Table of Contents

ANNEX A

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT

TO ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 607.1006, Florida Statutes, this Florida corporation adopts the following articles of amendment to the articles of incorporation:

FIRST: Amendment adopted (indicate articles number being amended, added or deleted)

ARTICLE IV, CAPITAL STOCK IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS:

The maximum number of shares of capital stock (as defined in Section 6 herein) that the Corporation (as defined in Section 6 herein) shall be authorized to issue and have outstanding at any one time shall be eight hundred million (800,000,000), of which five hundred million (500,000,000) shares shall be designated as common stock (the *Common Stock*), par value \$.001 per share, and three hundred million (300,000,000) shares shall be designated as Preferred Stock (the *Preferred Stock*) par value of \$0.001 per share.

Blank Check Preferred Stock

Series of the Preferred Stock may be created and issued from time to time, with such designations, preferences, conversion rights, cumulative, relative, participating, optional or other rights, including voting rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof as shall be stated and express in the resolution or resolutions providing for the creation and issuance of such series of Preferred Stock as adopted by the Board of Directors pursuant to the authority in this paragraph given.

Special Convertible Preference Stock

The Corporation hereby establishes and designates a class of its Preferred Stock as follows:

SECTION 1. Number; Designation; Rank.

- (a) This series of convertible Preferred Stock is designated as the Special Convertible Preference Stock (the *Convertible Preference Stock*). The number of shares constituting the Convertible Preference Stock is 192,967,138 shares, par value \$0.001 per share. The Convertible Preference Stock ranks, with respect to dividend rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation:
 - (i) on parity, without preference and priority, to the Common Stock, par value \$0.001 per share, of the Corporation (subject to Section 2), and each other class or series of Equity Security (as defined in Section 6 herein) of the Corporation, the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank on parity, without preference or priority, with the Convertible Preference Stock with respect to dividend rights or rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (collectively, with the Common Stock, the *Parity Securities*); and
 - (ii) junior in preference and priority to each other class or series of Equity Security of the Corporation the terms of which expressly provide that it will rank senior in preference or priority to the Convertible Preference Stock with respect to dividend rights or rights upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (collectively, the *Senior Securities*).

SECTION 2. Dividends.

(a) So long as there are any shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding, immediately prior to the declaration of any dividend or distribution on the Common Stock or the Convertible Preference Stock,

A-1

Table of Contents

the Board of Directors shall determine the portion (if any) of the Corporation s assets available for such dividend or distribution that is the result of funds or assets from New Aplitec (as defined in Section 6 herein), received by way of dividend, distribution, or other payment of earnings, capital, interest or principal or otherwise (the South African Amount) and shall determine what portion of such assets available for such dividend or distribution is not the South African Amount (the Non-South African Amount); provided that the South African Amount shall not include amounts received by way of any liquidation, distribution or dividend after an Insolvency Event on the part of New Aplitec has occurred.

- (b) So long as there are any shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding, the Directors may declare and pay a dividend or distribution on the shares of Convertible Preference Stock and the Common Stock solely from a Non-South African Amount (without declaring and paying a dividend from the South African Amount) and the Directors may declare and pay a dividend or distribution on the Common Stock solely from a South African Amount (without declaring and paying a dividend from the Non-South African Amount).
- (c) Any determination by the Board of Directors of a South African Amount or a Non-South African Amount shall be made in good faith and shall be final and binding on both the holders of Common Stock and the holders of Convertible Preference Stock.
- (d) So long as there are any shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding, each holder of issued and outstanding Convertible Preference Stock will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by the Board, for each share of Convertible Preference Stock a pro rata portion, together with the holders of Common Stock on a share for share basis, of the Non-South African Amount. The holders of Common Stock and Convertible Preference Stock shall rank *pari passu* in respect of dividends and distributions from Non-South African Amounts.
- (e) So long as there are any shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding, dividends and distributions from the South African Amounts shall be paid only to the holders of Common Stock and the holders of Convertible Preference Stock shall have no entitlement to participate in any such dividends or distributions from South African Amounts.
- (f) So long as there are any shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding, the Corporation shall take all actions necessary or advisable under the Florida Business Corporation Act to authorize and permit the payment of dividends to the holders of Common Stock in the maximum amount of the South African Amount, and to the extent permitted in the exercise of their fiduciary duties and under the Florida Business Corporation Act, the Board of Directors shall declare and cause the Corporation to pay a dividend on the Common Stock in the South African Amount promptly upon the receipt of proceeds representing the South African Amount after deducting therefrom the taxes payable by the Corporation on the amount so received.

SECTION 3. Liquidation, Dissolution and Winding Up.

In the event of the voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution, distribution of assets or winding-up of the Corporation, the holders of shares of Convertible Preference Stock shall be entitled to receive, share for share and *pari passu* with the holders of shares of Common Stock, all the assets of the Corporation of whatever kind available for distribution to stockholders, after the rights of the holders of Senior Securities have been satisfied.

SECTION 4. Voting Rights.

- (a) Holders of Convertible Preference Stock have the right to receive notice of, attend, speak and vote at general meetings of the Corporation.
- (b) The holders of Convertible Preference Stock are entitled to vote on all matters on which the holders of Common Stock are entitled to vote, and except as otherwise provided herein or by law, the holders of Convertible Preference Stock will vote together with the holders of Common Stock as a single class. Each holder of Convertible Preference Stock present in person (as defined in Section 6 herein), or the person representing the holder of Convertible Preference Stock, is entitled to a number of votes equal

A-2

Table of Contents

to the number of shares of Common Stock that would be issued upon conversion of the Convertible Preference Stock held by such holder on the record date.

- (c) So long as there are any shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding, as adjusted for stock dividends, splits, combinations and similar events, and except as otherwise provided by law, the Corporation may not take any of the following actions without the prior vote or written consent of holders representing at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Convertible Preference Stock, voting together as a separate class:
 - (i) any increase (including by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise) in the total number of authorized or issued shares of Convertible Preference Stock; or
 - (ii) any amendment, alteration or change to the powers, designations, preferences, rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions of the Convertible Preference Stock set forth in these Articles of Incorporation in any manner (including by way of merger, consolidation or otherwise) that adversely affects the holders of Convertible Preference Stock.

SECTION 5. Conversion.

Each share of Convertible Preference Stock is convertible into one share of Common Stock as provided in this Section 5.

- (a) *General*. Convertible Preference Stock is convertible upon the occurrence of a Trigger Event (as defined in Section 6 herein) into duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock in the ratio of one share of Convertible Preference Stock for each one share of Common Stock. For each share of Convertible Preference Stock that is converted, the holder thereof shall transfer and deliver to the Corporation (i) 1.228070176 New Aplitec B Share (as defined in Section 6 herein) (the *Equity Payment Ratio*) and (ii) the Appropriate Principal Amount (as defined in Section 6 herein). The *Equity Payment Ratio* is the ratio of (i) the number of New Aplitec B Shares required to be delivered to the Corporation in connection with the conversion of shares of Convertible Preference Stock to (ii) one share of Convertible Preference Stock, and shall equal 1.228070176 but may be adjusted from time to time as provided herein.
- (b) Optional Conversion. Each holder of Convertible Preference Stock is entitled to convert, at any time and from time to time at the option and election of such holder, any or all shares of outstanding Convertible Preference Stock held by such holder into shares of Common Stock. In order to convert shares of Convertible Preference Stock into shares of Common Stock, the holder, or any trustee holding the Convertible Preference Stock and acting for the account of the holder upon receipt of written notice by such holder that such holder elects to convert any or all of such number of shares represented by such certificates as specified therein, must surrender (A) the certificates representing such shares of Convertible Preference Stock, (B) the certificates for the New Aplitec B Shares, and (C) an assignment and transfer, in favor of the Corporation, evidencing the New Aplitec B Loans, in each case in the appropriate amounts as described in Section 5(a), at the principal office of the Corporation, or if so designated by the Corporation, the Corporation s transfer agent or other agent appointed by the Corporation for effectuating the conversion (the Conversion Agent).
- (c) *Mandatory Conversion*. Upon the notice of the Corporation that an Exchange Control Event (as defined in Section 6 herein) has occurred or without notice upon the occurrence of an Insolvency Event (as defined in Section 6 herein), the outstanding shares of Convertible Preference Stock shall automatically and without any further act by the holder thereof be converted into Common Stock. The Corporation shall provide written notice to all holders of Convertible Preference Stock and to New Aplitec stating that the Convertible Preference Stock has been converted to Common Stock, the Conversion Date (as defined below) and that the holders of Convertible Preference Stock are required to deliver to the Corporation on the date set out in the notice (which shall be a date not earlier than fourteen days from the date of notice) (i) the share certificates for the shares of Convertible Preference Stock, (ii) the certificates for the New Aplitec B Shares, and (iii) an assignment and transfer in favor of the Corporation of the New Aplitec B Loans.

A-3

Table of Contents

(d) Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued upon conversion of the Convertible Preference Stock, unless the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall otherwise determine to issue fractional shares. Subject to the foregoing, in lieu of fractional shares, the Corporation shall pay cash equal to such fractional amount multiplied by the Fair Market Value per share of Common Stock as of the Conversion Date (as defined below). If more than one share of Convertible Preference Stock is being converted at one time by the same holder, then the number of full shares issuable upon conversion will be calculated on the basis of the aggregate number of shares of Convertible Preference Stock converted by such holder at such time.

(e) Mechanics of Conversion.

- (i) The Conversion Date shall be, (A) in the case of an optional conversion, the date of receipt of notice (together with certificates) by the Conversion Agent or the Corporation, (B) in the case of an Exchange Control Event, the date determined by the Board of Directors and set forth in the notice of mandatory conversion, and (C) in the case of an Insolvency Event, the date such event first occurred. If reasonably required by the Corporation, certificates surrendered for conversion in accordance with this Section 5 must be endorsed or accompanied by a written instrument of transfer, in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Corporation, duly executed by the registered holder or his, her or its attorney-in-fact duly authorized in writing. Within three business days after the relevant Conversion Date in the case of an optional conversion (or as soon as practical in case of other Trigger Events), the Corporation shall promptly issue and deliver or cause to be issued and delivered to such holder a certificate for the number of shares of Common Stock (the New Common Stock) to which such holder is entitled, together with a check or cash for payment of fractional shares, if any, but in no case shall such delivery exceed five business days (or 20 business days in the case of an Insolvency Event). Such conversion will be deemed to have been made on the Conversion Date, and the person (as defined in Section 6) entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder of such shares of Common Stock on such Conversion Date. In the case of an optional conversion where fewer than all the shares represented by any such certificate are to be converted, a new certificate shall be issued representing the unconverted shares without cost to the holder thereof, except for any documentary, stamp or similar issue or transfer tax due because any certificate for shares of Common Stock is issued in a name other than the name of the converting holder. The Corporation shall pay any documentary, stamp or similar issue or transfer tax due on the issue of Common Stock upon conversion or due upon the issuance of a new certificate for any shares of Convertible Preference Stock not converted other than any such tax due because shares of Common Stock or a certificate for shares of Convertible Preference Stock are issued in a name other than the name of the converting holder.
- (ii) The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available, free from any preemptive rights, out of its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the Convertible Preference Stock, the full number of shares of Common Stock deliverable upon the conversion of all outstanding Convertible Preference Stock (assuming for the purposes of this calculation that all outstanding shares of Convertible Preference Stock are held by one holder). The Corporation shall comply with all United States federal and state laws, rules and regulations and applicable rules and regulations of any securities exchange or automated quotation system on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted. Before taking any action which would cause an adjustment in the Equity Payment Ratio that would result in the consideration received by the Corporation upon conversion per share of Common Stock to be below the then par value of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Convertible Preference Stock, the Corporation will take any corporate action which may, in the opinion of its counsel, be necessary in order that the Corporation may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock after taking such action.

(iii) From and after the Conversion Date, dividends on the Convertible Preference Stock to be converted on such Conversion Date shall cease to accrue; such shares shall no longer be deemed to be outstanding; and all rights of the holder thereof as a holder of Convertible Preference Stock (except

A-4

Table of Contents

the right to receive from the Corporation the Common Stock upon conversion) shall cease and terminate with respect to such shares. Any shares of Convertible Preference Stock that have been converted will, after such conversion, be deemed cancelled and retired and have the status of authorized but unissued Preferred Stock, without designation as to series until such shares are once more designated as part of a particular series by the Board.

- (iv) If the optional conversion is in connection with any public offering or other sale, the conversion may, at the option of any holder tendering any share of Convertible Preference Stock for conversion, be conditioned upon the closing of the sale of shares of Common Stock with the underwriter or other purchaser in such sale, in which event such conversion of such shares of Convertible Preference Stock shall not be deemed to have occurred until immediately prior to the closing of such sale.
- (v) The New Common Stock shall be credited as fully paid and shall rank *pari passu* in all respects and form once class with the shares of Common Stock then in issue.
- (vi) If the shares of Convertible Preference Stock remain capable of conversion into shares of Common Stock and there is a consolidation or stock-split of then outstanding shares of Common Stock, the shares of Convertible Preference Stock shall be consolidated or split in a similar manner in order, in the Directors fair and reasonable opinion, to maintain the relative economic benefits attributable to the shares of Convertible Preference Stock and the shares of Common Stock after the consolidation or stock-split with the position prior to such consolidation or stock-split. In any such event, the Equity Payment Ratio shall be adjusted in a similar manner in order, in the Directors fair and reasonable opinion, to maintain the relative economic benefits attributable to the shares of Convertible Preference Stock and the New Aplitec B Shares, New Aplitec B Loans and the shares of Common Stock.
- (f) Effect of Reclassification, Merger or Sale.
- (i) If any of the following events occur, namely (x) any reclassification of or any other change to the outstanding shares of Common Stock (other than a stock split or consolidation to which Section 5(e)(vi) applies), (y) any merger, consolidation or other combination of the Corporation with another person as a result of which all holders of Common Stock become entitled to receive capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) with respect to or in exchange for such Common Stock, or (z) any sale, conveyance or other transfer of all or substantially all of the properties of the Corporation to any other person as a result of which all holders of Common Stock become entitled to receive capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) with respect to or in exchange for such Common Stock, then shares of Convertible Preference Stock will be convertible into the kind and amount of shares of capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) receivable upon such reclassification, change, merger, consolidation, combination, sale, conveyance or transfer by a holder of a number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of such shares of Convertible Preference Stock (assuming, for such purposes, a sufficient number of authorized shares of Common Stock available to convert all such Convertible Preference Stock) immediately prior to such reclassification, change, merger, consolidation, combination, sale, conveyance or transfer.
- (ii) If the holders of Common Stock were entitled to exercise a right of election as to the kind or amount of capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) receivable upon such reclassification, change, merger, consolidation, combination, sale, conveyance or transfer, then the holders of Convertible Preference Stock shall have the same election as to the kind and amount of capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) receivable in respect of each share of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Convertible Preference Stock.

A-5

Table of Contents

- (iii) If a tender offer (which includes any exchange offer) is made to and accepted by the holders of Common Stock under circumstances in which, upon completion of such tender offer, the maker thereof, together with members of any group (as defined in Section 6 herein) of which such maker is a part, and together with any affiliate or associate (as defined in Section 6 herein) of such maker and any members of any such group of which any such affiliate or associate is a part, own beneficially more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, each holder of Convertible Preference Stock will be entitled to receive the highest amount of capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) to which such holder would actually have been entitled as a holder of Common Stock if such holder had converted such holder s Convertible Preference Stock prior to the expiration of such tender offer, accepted such offer and all of the Common Stock held by such holder had been purchased pursuant to such tender offer.
- (iv) This Section 5(f) will similarly apply to successive reclassifications, changes, mergers, consolidations, combinations, sales, conveyances and transfers. If this Section 5(f) applies to any event or occurrence, Section 5(e) will not apply.

 (g) *Notice of Record Date.* In the event of:
 - (i) any stock split or combination of the outstanding shares of Common Stock;
 - (ii) any reclassification, change, merger, consolidation, combination, sale, conveyance or transfer to which Section 5(f) applies; or
- (iii) the dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the Corporation; then the Corporation shall file with its corporate records and mail to the holders of the Convertible Preference Stock at their last addresses as shown on the records of the Corporation, at least 10 days prior to the record date specified in (A) below or 20 days prior to the date specified in (B) below, a notice stating:
 - (A) the record date of such stock split, combination, dividend or other distribution, or, if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of Common Stock of record to be entitled to such stock split, combination, dividend or other distribution are to be determined, or
 - (B) the date on which such reclassification, change, merger, consolidation, combination, sale, conveyance, transfer, liquidation, dissolution or winding up is expected to become effective, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of Common Stock of record will be entitled to exchange their shares of Common Stock for the capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) deliverable upon such reclassification, change, merger, consolidation, combination, sale, conveyance, transfer, liquidation, dissolution or winding up.
- (h) Certificate of Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Equity Payment Ratio pursuant to this Section 5, the Corporation at its expense shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms hereof (as defined in Section 6 herein) and furnish to each holder of Convertible Preference Stock a certificate setting forth such adjustment or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based and shall file a copy of such certificate with its corporate records. The Corporation shall, upon the reasonable written request of any holder of Convertible Preference Stock, furnish to such holder a similar certificate setting forth (i) such adjustments and readjustments, (ii) the Equity Payment Ratio then in effect, and (iii) the number of shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of capital stock, other securities or other property (including but not limited to cash and evidences of indebtedness) which then would be received upon the conversion of Convertible Preference Stock.
- (i) *No Impairment.* The Corporation may not, whether by any amendment of these Articles of Incorporation, by any reclassification or other change to its capital stock, by any merger, consolidation or other combination involving the Corporation, by any sale, conveyance or other transfer of any of its assets, by the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation or by any other way, impair or restrict its ability to convert shares of Convertible Preference Stock and issue shares of Common Stock therefor, or

A-6

Table of Contents

avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms to be observed or performed hereunder by the Corporation, but will at all times in good faith assist in the carrying out of all the provisions of this Section 5 and in the taking of all such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order to protect the conversion rights of the holders of the Convertible Preference Stock against impairment to the extent required hereunder.

SECTION 6. Additional Definitions. For purposes of these articles of amendment, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

- (a) *affiliate* means, with respect to any specified person, any other person that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by or is under common control with, such specified person, for so long as such other person remains so associated to such specified person.
- (b) Aplitec means Net 1 Applied Technology Holdings Limited, registration number 1997/007207/06, a public company incorporated in South Africa.
 - (c) Aplitec Holdings Participation Trust means the Aplitec Holdings Participation Trust, a trust established in the Cayman Islands.
- (d) Appropriate Principal Amount means, as of any time, (i) the aggregate principal amount of the New Aplitec B Loans initially issued, plus any accrued interest, less (A) any repayments of such loans and (B) any of such loans transferred to the Corporation in connection with the conversion of shares of Convertible Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock, divided by (ii) the number of shares of Convertible Preference Stock outstanding at such time.
 - (e) associate has the meaning given such term in Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act.
 - (f) Board of Directors or Board or Directors means the board of directors of the Corporation.
- (g) capital stock means any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated, whether voting or non voting) of capital stock, partnership interests (whether general or limited) or equivalent ownership interests in or issued by such person, and with respect to the Corporation includes, without limitation, any and all shares of Common Stock and the Preferred Stock.
 - (h) Corporation means this Corporation.
- (i) Equity Securities means (x) any shares of capital stock of the Corporation, (y) any rights, options, warrants or similar securities to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of capital stock of the Corporation, and (z) debt or other evidences of indebtedness, capital stock or other securities directly or indirectly convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of such the Corporation.
 - (j) Exchange Act means the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
- (k) Exchange Control Event means the relaxation or abolishment of exchange control regulations in the Republic of South Africa such that residents of South Africa are permitted to hold shares of Common Stock, provided that the Corporation may rely on the reasonable opinion of South African legal counsel as to the occurrence of an Exchange Control Event.
- (l) Fair Market Value of any property means the fair market value thereof as determined in good faith by the Board, which determination must be set forth in a written resolution of the Board, in accordance with the following rules:
 - (i) for a security traded or quoted on a national securities exchange or automated quotation system, the Fair Market Value will be the average of the closing prices of such security on such exchange or quotation system over a 20-trading day period ending on the trading day immediately prior to the date of determination;

A-7

Table of Contents

- (ii) for Common Stock that is not so traded or quoted, the Fair Market Value shall be determined: (x) mutually by the Board and the holders of at least a majority of the then outstanding shares of Convertible Preference Stock, (y) by the Board based on a valuation of the Corporation not less than the implied valuation of the Common Stock based on an arms -length sale of Equity Securities to a non-affiliate third-party within six months of the date of determination, or (z) by a nationally recognized investment bank or accounting firm (whose fees and expenses will be paid by the Corporation); or
- (iii) for any other property, the Fair Market Value shall be determined by the Board assuming a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm s-length transaction;

provided that if holders representing two-thirds of the then outstanding shares of Convertible Preference Stock object to a determination of the Board made pursuant to clause (ii)(y) or (z) or clause (iii), then the Fair Market Value of such property will be as determined by a nationally recognized investment banking or accounting firm (whose fees and expenses will be paid by the Corporation) selected by mutual agreement between the Board and the holders representing a majority of the then outstanding shares of Convertible Preference Stock.

- (m) group has the meaning assigned to such term in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act.
- (n) hereof, herein and hereunder and words of similar import refer to these resolutions as a whole and not merely to any particular clause, provision, section or subsection.
 - (o) Insolvency Event means
 - (i) any case, proceeding or other action commenced by either the Corporation or New Aplitec, and in each case, (A) under any existing or future law of any jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or relief of debtors, seeking to have an order for relief entered with respect to it or seeking to adjudicate it bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, winding-up, liquidation, dissolution, composition or other relief with respect to it or its debts, or (B) seeking appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian, conservator or other similar official for it or for all or any substantial part of its assets;
 - (ii) any case, action or proceeding or other action of relief of a nature referred to in clause (i) above against either the Corporation or New Aplitec, which, in each case, (A) results in the entry of an order for relief or any such adjudication or appointment or (B) remains undismissed, undischarged or unbonded for a period of 60 days;
 - (iii) any case, proceeding or action against either the Corporation or New Aplitec, and in each case, seeking issuance of a warrant of attachment, execution, distraint or similar process against all or any substantial part of its assets which results in the entry of an order for any such relief that shall not have been vacated, discharged, or stayed or bonded pending appeal within 60 days from the entry thereof; or
 - (iv) any action by either the Corporation or New Aplitec, and in each case, in furtherance of, or indicating consent to, approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the acts set forth in clause (i), (ii), or (iii) above.
- (p) New Aplitec means Newshelf 713 (Proprietary) Limited registration number is 2002/03144607, to be renamed Net 1 Applied Technologies South Africa (Proprietary) Limited or a similar name, a private company incorporated in South Africa.
- (q) New Aplitec B Loans means B class loans in the capital of New Aplitec in an aggregate principal amount of ZAR 239,356,482, or ZAR 1.001004 per New Aplitec B Share which are linked by their terms to the New Aplitec B Shares.
- (r) New Aplitec B Shares means the B Class preference shares of New Aplitec of nominal value ZAR 0.001 each in the capital of New Aplitec which are linked by their terms to the New Aplitec B Loans.

A-8

Table of Contents

- (s) New Aplitec Participation Trust means the New Aplitec Participation Trust, a trust established in South Africa.
- (t) *person* means any individual, corporation, limited liability Corporation, limited or general partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock Corporation, trust, unincorporated organization, government or any agency or political subdivision thereof or any other entity or any group comprised of two or more of the foregoing.
 - (u) Subsidiaries means any of the Corporation s majority or wholly owned subsidiaries.
 - (v) Trigger Event means, any of:
 - (i) the occurrence of notice from the holder of Convertible Preference Stock provided for in Section 5(a) of the determination to convert shares of Convertible Preference Stock into shares of Common Stock;
 - (ii) the occurrence of an Insolvency Event; or
 - (iii) the occurrence of an Exchange Control Event.
 - (w) ZAR means the South African Rand.

SECTION 7. Transfer Restrictions.

The shares of Convertible Preference Stock may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged, or encumbered, except in connection with the conversion into shares of Common Stock. The shares of Convertible Preference Stock may not be held by any person other than the Aplitec Holdings Participation Trust for the benefit of the New Aplitec Participation Trust and indirectly for the benefit of former shareholders of Aplitec, and directly by the New Aplitec Participation Trust indirectly for the benefit of former shareholders of Aplitec.

SECTION 8. Miscellaneous.

- (a) *Notices*. Any notice, demand, offer, request or other communication required or permitted to be given by the Corporation to the holders of shares of Convertible Preference Stock shall be in writing and shall be deemed to be given upon the earliest to occur of:
 - (i) the date actually received by the holder of Convertible Preference Stock;
 - (ii) one (1) business day after being delivered by facsimile (with receipt of appropriate confirmation);
 - (iii) one (1) business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized overnight courier service; or
 - (iv) three (3) business days after being addressed to each holder of record at such holder s address appearing on the books of the Corporation and deposited in the United States mail (first class with postage prepaid and return receipt requested).
- (b) Status of Converted or Redeemed Shares. No shares of Convertible Preference Stock converted into shares of Common Stock or redeemed, repurchased or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any of its Subsidiaries (as defined in Section 6 herein) shall be reissued as Convertible Preference Stock and shall have the status of undesignated Preferred Stock.
- (c) *Amendments*. Any amendment to this Article IV shall be subject to the terms hereof and shall comply with the Florida Business Corporation Act.
- (d) Reports. The Corporation shall mail to all holders of Convertible Preference Stock any reports, proxy statements and other materials that it mails to the holders of Common Stock.

A-9

Table of Contents

(e) *Headings and Subheadings*. The headings and subheadings of the sections, paragraphs, subparagraphs, clauses and sub clauses of this Article are for convenience of reference only and shall not define, limit or otherwise affect any of the provisions hereof.

[Rest of page intentionally left blank.]

A-10

Table of Contents

SECOND: If an amendment provides for an exchange, reclassification or cancellation of issued shares, provision for implementing the amendment if not contained in the amendment itself, are as follows: NONE.

THIRD: The date of each amendment s adoption is May 27, 2004.

FOURTH: The date of the adoption of this Amendment is May 27, 2004:

The amendment was approved by the shareholders. The number of votes cast for the amendment was sufficient for approval.

Signed this 27th day of May, 2004

By:

Name: Claude Guerard
Title: Chief Executive Officer

A-11

Table of Contents

ANNEX B

2004 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN OF

NET 1 UEPS TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

1. Purpose of the Plan

The purpose of the Plan is to aid the Company and its Affiliates in recruiting and retaining key employees, directors or consultants of outstanding ability and to motivate such employees, directors or consultants to exert their best efforts on behalf of the Company and its Affiliates by providing incentives through the granting of Awards. The Company expects that it will benefit from the added interest which such key employees, directors or consultants will have in the welfare of the Company as a result of their proprietary interest in the Company s success.

2. Definitions

The following capitalized terms used in the Plan have the respective meanings set forth in this Section:

- (b) Act: The Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any successor thereto.
- (c) Affiliate: With respect to the Company, any entity directly or indirectly controlling, controlled by, or under common control with, the Company or any other entity designated by the Board in which the Company or an Affiliate has an interest.
 - (d) Award: An Option, Stock Appreciation Right or Other Stock-Based Award granted pursuant to the Plan.
 - (e) Beneficial Owner: A beneficial owner, as such term is defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Act (or any successor rule thereto).
 - (f) Board: The Board of Directors of the Company.
 - (g) Code: The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any successor thereto.
 - (h) Committee: The Board, or such committee of the Board as it shall designate from time to time, in accordance with Section 4.
 - (i) Company: Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc., a Florida corporation.
- (j) Disability: Inability of a Participant to perform in all material respects the Participant s duties and responsibilities to the Company, or any Subsidiary of the Company, by reason of a physical or mental disability or infirmity which inability is reasonably expected to be permanent and has continued (i) for a period of six consecutive months or (ii) such shorter period as the Committee may reasonably determine in good faith. The Disability determination shall be in the sole discretion of the Committee and a Participant (or the Participant s representative) shall furnish the Committee with medical evidence documenting the Participant s disability or infirmity which is satisfactory to the Committee.
 - (k) Effective Date: The date the Board approves the Plan, or such later date as is designated by the Board.
- (1) *Employment:* The term Employment as used herein shall be deemed to refer to (i) a Participant s employment if the Participant is an employee of the Company or any of its Affiliates, (ii) a Participant s services as a consultant, if the Participant is consultant to the Company or its Affiliates and (iii) a Participant s services as an non-employee director, if the Participant is a non-employee member of the Board.

B-1

Table of Contents

- (m) Fair Market Value: On a given date, (i) if there should be a public market for the Shares on such date, the arithmetic mean of the high and low prices of the Shares as reported on such date on the Composite Tape of the principal national securities exchange on which such Shares are listed or admitted to trading, or, if the Shares are not listed or admitted on any national securities exchange, the arithmetic mean of the per Share closing bid price and per Share closing asked price on such date as quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (or such market in which such prices are regularly quoted)(the OTC Bulletin Board), or, if no sale of Shares shall have been reported on the Composite Tape of any national securities exchange or quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board on such date, then the immediately preceding date on which sales of the Shares have been so reported or quoted shall be used, and (ii) if there should not be a public market for the Shares on such date, the Fair Market Value shall be the value established by the Committee in good faith.
 - (n) ISO: An Option that is also an incentive stock option granted pursuant to Section 6(d) of the Plan.
 - (o) LSAR: A limited stock appreciation right granted pursuant to Section 7(d) of the Plan.
 - (p) Other Stock-Based Awards: Awards granted pursuant to Section 8 of the Plan.
 - (q) Option: A stock option granted pursuant to Section 6 of the Plan.
 - (r) Option Price: The purchase price per Share of an Option, as determined pursuant to Section 6(a) of the Plan.
- (s) Participant: An employee, director or consultant of the Company or a Subsidiary who is selected by the Committee to participate in the Plan.
 - (t) Performance-Based Awards: Certain Other Stock-Based Awards granted pursuant to Section 8(b) of the Plan.
 - (u) Person: A person, as such term is used for purposes of Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Act (or any successor section thereto).
 - (v) Plan: The 2004 Stock Incentive Plan of Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. and its Subsidiaries.
 - (w) Shares: Shares of common stock, par value \$0.001 per share, of the Company.
 - (x) Stock Appreciation Right: A stock appreciation right granted pursuant to Section 7 of the Plan.
- (y) Subsidiary: With reference to the Company, a subsidiary corporation, as defined in Section 424(f) of the Code (or any successor section thereto).

3. Shares Subject to the Plan

The total number of Shares which may be issued under the Plan is 17,441,872; provided, that, (i) the maximum number of Shares for which Options may be granted is 8,720,936, and (ii) the maximum number of Shares for which Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Stock-Based Awards may be granted is 8,720,936. The maximum number of Shares for which Options and Stock Appreciation Rights (or Awards other than in Section 8(b)) may be granted during a calendar year to any Participant shall be 2,616,281 Shares. The Shares may consist, in whole or in part, of unissued Shares or treasury Shares. The issuance of Shares or the payment of cash upon the exercise of an Award or in consideration of the cancellation or termination of an Award shall reduce the total number of Shares available under the Plan, as applicable. Shares which are subject to Awards which terminate or lapse without the payment of consideration may be granted again under the Plan. Shares delivered to the Company as part or full payment for the exercise of an Option or to satisfy withholding obligations upon the exercise of an Option, in each case if permitted by the Committee, may be granted again under the Plan.

B-2

Table of Contents

4. Administration

The Plan shall be administered by the Committee, which may delegate its duties and powers in whole or in part to any subcommittee thereof, which Committee shall consist, unless otherwise determined by the Board, (i) during any period that the Company is subject to Section 16 of the Act, solely of at least two individuals who are intended to qualify as Non-Employee Directors within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Act (or any successor rule thereto) and (ii) during any period that the Company is subject to Section 162(m) of the Code, solely of outside directors within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code (or any successor section thereto). Awards may, in the discretion of the Committee, be made under the Plan in assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted by the Company or its affiliates or a company acquired by the Company or with which the Company combines. The number of Shares underlying such substitute awards shall be counted against the aggregate number of Shares available for Awards under the Plan. The Committee is authorized to interpret the Plan, to establish, amend and rescind any rules and regulations relating to the Plan, to grant awards consistent with the terms of the Plan, and to make any other determinations that it deems necessary or desirable for the administration of the Plan. The Committee may correct any defect or supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan in the manner and to the extent the Committee deems necessary or desirable. Any decision of the Committee in the interpretation and administration of the Plan, as described herein, shall lie within its sole and absolute discretion and shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties concerned (including, but not limited to, Participants and their beneficiaries or successors). The Committee shall have the full power and authority to establish the terms and conditions of any Award consistent with the provisions of the Plan and to waive any such terms and conditions at any time (including, without limitation, accelerating or waiving any vesting conditions). The Committee shall require payment of any amount it may determine to be necessary to withhold for federal, state, local or other taxes as a result of the exercise, grant or vesting of an Award. Unless the Committee specifies otherwise, the Participant may elect to pay a portion or all of such withholding taxes by (a) delivery in Shares or (b) having Shares withheld by the Company from any Shares that would have otherwise been received by the Participant.

5. Limitations

No Award may be granted under the Plan after the tenth anniversary of the Effective Date, but Awards theretofore granted may extend beyond that date.

6. Terms and Conditions of Options

Options granted under the Plan shall be, as determined by the Committee, non-qualified or incentive stock options for federal income tax purposes, as evidenced by the related Award agreements, and shall be subject to the foregoing and the following terms and conditions and to such other terms and conditions, not inconsistent therewith, as the Committee shall determine:

- (a) *Option Price*. The Option Price per Share shall be determined by the Committee, but shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the date an Option is granted; provided, however, that the Committee may, in its sole discretion, initially grant Options following the Effective Date with an Option Price per Share of \$.50.
- (b) *Exercisability*. Options granted under the Plan shall vest and become exercisable at such time and upon such terms and conditions as may be determined by the Committee, but in no event shall an Option be exercisable more than ten years after the date it is granted. Unless otherwise provided in an Award agreement, an Option shall vest with respect to twenty percent (20%) of the Shares initially covered by the Option on each of the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date the Option was granted, subject to the Participant s continued Employment with the Company and the other terms and conditions of the Plan and the Award agreement.
- (c) Exercise of Options. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or in an Award agreement, an Option may be exercised for all, or from time to time any part, of the Shares for which it is then

B-3

Table of Contents

exercisable. For purposes of Section 6 of the Plan, except as otherwise provided in an Award agreement, the exercise date of an Option shall be the later of the date a notice of exercise is received by the Company and, if applicable, the date payment is received by the Company pursuant to clauses (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) in the following sentence. The purchase price for the Shares as to which an Option is exercised shall be paid to the Company in full, in accordance with Committee procedures, at the election of the Participant (i) in cash or its equivalent (e.g., by check), (ii) to the extent permitted by the Committee, in Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the aggregate Option Price for the Shares being purchased and satisfying such other requirements as may be imposed by the Committee; *provided* that such Shares have been held by the Participant for no less than six months (or such other period as established from time to time by the Committee in order to avoid adverse accounting treatment applying generally accepted accounting principles), (iii) partly in cash and, to the extent permitted by the Committee, partly in such Shares or (iv) to the extent permitted by the Committee, if there is a public market for the Shares at such time, through the delivery of irrevocable instructions to a broker to sell Shares obtained upon the exercise of the Option and to deliver promptly to the Company an amount out of the proceeds of such Sale equal to the aggregate Option Price for the Shares being purchased. No Participant shall have any rights to dividends or other rights of a stockholder with respect to Shares subject to an Option until the Participant has given written notice of exercise of the Option, paid in full for such Shares and, if applicable, has satisfied any other conditions imposed by the Committee pursuant to the Plan.

(d) *ISOs*. The Committee may grant Options under the Plan that are intended to be ISOs. Such ISOs shall comply with the requirements of Section 422 of the Code (or any successor section thereto). No ISO may be granted to any Participant who at the time of such grant owns ten percent or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of any Subsidiary, unless (i) the Option Price for such ISO is at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date the ISO is granted and (ii) the date on which such ISO terminates is a date not later than the day preceding the fifth anniversary of the date on which the ISO is granted. Any Participant who disposes of Shares acquired upon the exercise of an ISO either (i) within two years after the date of grant of such ISO or (ii) within one year after the transfer of such Shares to the Participant, shall notify the Company of such disposition and of the amount realized upon such disposition. All Options granted under the Plan are intended to be nonqualified stock options, unless the applicable Award agreement expressly states that the Option is intended to be an ISO. If an Option is intended to be an ISO, and if for any reason such Option (or portion thereof) shall not qualify as an ISO, then, to the extent of such nonqualification, such Option (or portion thereof) shall be regarded as a nonqualified stock option granted under the Plan; *provided* that such Option (or potion thereof) otherwise complies with the Plan s requirements relating to nonqualified stock options. In no event shall any member of the Committee, the Company or any of its Affiliates (or their respective employees, officers or directors) have any liability to any Participant (or any other Person) due to the failure of an Option to qualify for any reason as an ISO.

(e) Attestation. Wherever in this Plan or any agreement evidencing an Award a Participant is permitted to pay the exercise price of an Option or taxes relating to the exercise of an Option by delivering Shares, the Participant may, subject to procedures satisfactory to the Committee, satisfy such delivery requirement by presenting proof of beneficial ownership of such Shares, in which case the Company shall treat the Option as exercised without further payment and shall withhold such number of Shares from the Shares acquired by the exercise of the Option.

7. Terms and Conditions of Stock Appreciation Rights

(a) *Grants*. The Committee also may grant (i) a Stock Appreciation Right independent of an Option or (ii) a Stock Appreciation Right in connection with an Option, or a portion thereof. A Stock Appreciation Right granted pursuant to clause (ii) of the preceding sentence (A) may be granted at the time the related Option is granted or at any time prior to the exercise or cancellation of the related Option, (B) shall cover the same number of Shares covered by an Option (or such lesser

B-4

Table of Contents

number of Shares as the Committee may determine) and (C) shall be subject to the same terms and conditions as such Option except for such additional limitations as are contemplated by this Section 7 (or such additional limitations as may be included in an Award agreement).

- (b) *Terms*. The exercise price per Share of a Stock Appreciation Right shall be an amount determined by the Committee but in no event shall such amount be less than the greater of (i) the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date the Stock Appreciation Right is granted or, in the case of a Stock Appreciation Right granted in conjunction with an Option, or a portion thereof, the Option Price of the related Option and (ii) the minimum amount permitted by applicable laws, rules, by-laws or policies of regulatory authorities or stock exchanges. Each Stock Appreciation Right granted independent of an Option shall entitle a Participant upon exercise to an amount equal to (i) the excess of (A) the Fair Market Value on the exercise date of one Share over (B) the exercise price per Share, times (ii) the number of Shares covered by the Stock Appreciation Right. Each Stock Appreciation Right granted in conjunction with an Option, or a portion thereof, shall entitle a Participant to surrender to the Company the unexercised Option, or any portion thereof, and to receive from the Company in exchange therefore an amount equal to (i) the excess of (A) the Fair Market Value on the exercise date of one Share over (B) the Option Price per Share, times (ii) the number of Shares covered by the Option, or portion thereof, which is surrendered. The date a notice of exercise is received by the Company shall be the exercise date. Payment shall be made in Shares or in cash, or partly in Shares and partly in cash (any such Shares valued at such Fair Market Value), all as shall be determined by the Committee. Stock Appreciation Rights may be exercised from time to time upon actual receipt by the Company of written notice of exercise stating the number of Shares with respect to which the Stock Appreciation Right is being exercised. No fractional Shares will be issued in payment for Stock Appreciation Rights, but instead cash will be paid for a fraction or, if the Committee should so determine, the number of Shares will be rounded downward
- (c) *Limitations*. The Committee may impose, in its discretion, such conditions upon the exercisability or transferability of Stock Appreciation Rights as it may deem fit.
- (d) Limited Stock Appreciation Rights. The Committee may grant LSARs that are exercisable upon the occurrence of specified contingent events. Such LSARs may provide for a different method of determining appreciation, may specify that payment will be made only in cash and may provide that any related Awards are not exercisable while such LSARs are exercisable. Unless the context otherwise requires, whenever the term Stock Appreciation Right is used in the Plan, such term shall include LSARs.

8. Other Stock-Based Awards

(a) *Generally*. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may grant or sell Awards of Shares, Awards of restricted Shares and Awards that are valued in whole or in part by reference to, or are otherwise based on the Fair Market Value of, Shares (Other Stock-Based Awards). Such Other Stock-Based Awards shall be in such form, and dependent on such conditions, as the Committee shall determine, including, without limitation, the right to receive, or vest with respect to, one or more Shares (or the equivalent cash value of such Shares) upon the completion of a specified period of service, the occurrence of an event and/or the attainment of performance objectives. Other Stock-Based Awards may be granted alone or in addition to any other Awards granted under the Plan. Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Committee shall determine to whom and when Other Stock-Based Awards will be made, the number of Shares to be awarded under (or otherwise related to) such Other Stock-Based Awards; whether such Other Stock-Based Awards shall be settled in cash, Shares or a combination of cash and Shares; and all other terms and conditions of such Awards (including, without limitation, the vesting provisions thereof and provisions ensuring that all Shares so awarded and issued shall be fully paid and non-assessable). Unless otherwise provided in an Award agreement, Other Stock-Based Awards shall vest with respect to twenty percent (20%) of the Shares initially covered by such Other Stock-Based Award on each of the grant date and the first, second,

B-5

Table of Contents

third and fourth anniversaries of the date such Award was granted, subject to the Participant s continued Employment with the Company and the other terms and conditions of the Plan and the Award agreement.

(b) Performance-Based Awards. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, certain Other Stock-Based Awards granted under this Section 8 may be granted in a manner which is deductible by the Company under Section 162(m) of the Code (or any successor section thereto) (Performance-Based Awards). A Participant s Performance-Based Award shall be determined based on the attainment of written performance goals approved by the Committee for a performance period established by the Committee (i) while the outcome for that performance period is substantially uncertain and (ii) no more than 90 days after the commencement of the performance period to which the performance goal relates or, if less, the number of days which is equal to 25% of the relevant performance period. The performance goals, which must be objective, shall be based upon one or more of the following criteria: (i) consolidated earnings before or after taxes (including earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization); (ii) net income; (iii) operating income; (iv) earnings per Share; (v) book value per Share; (vi) return on shareholders equity; (vii) expense management; (viii) return on investment; (ix) improvements in capital structure; (x) profitability of an identifiable business unit or product; (xi) maintenance or improvement of profit margins; (xii) stock price; (xiii) market share; (xiv) revenues or sales; (xv) costs; (xvi) cash flow; (xvii) working capital and (xviii) return on assets. The foregoing criteria may relate to the Company, one or more of its Subsidiaries or one or more of its divisions or units, or any combination of the foregoing, and may be applied on an absolute basis and/or be relative to one or more peer group companies or indices, or any combination thereof, all as the Committee shall determine. In addition, to the degree consistent with Section 162(m) of the Code (or any successor section thereto), the performance goals may be calculated without regard to extraordinary items. The maximum amount of a Performance-Based Award during a calendar year to any Participant shall be: (x) with respect to Performance-Based Awards that are Options, 2,616,281 Shares and (y) with respect to Performance-Based Awards that are not Options, \$20,000,000. The Committee shall determine whether, with respect to a performance period, the applicable performance goals have been met with respect to a given Participant and, if they have, to so certify and ascertain the amount of the applicable Performance-Based Award. No Performance-Based Awards will be paid for such performance period until such certification is made by the Committee. The amount of the Performance-Based Award actually paid to a given Participant may be less than the amount determined by the applicable performance goal formula, at the discretion of the Committee. The amount of the Performance-Based Award determined by the Committee for a performance period shall be paid to the Participant at such time as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion after the end of such performance period; provided, however, that a Participant may, if and to the extent permitted by the Committee and consistent with the provisions of Section 162(m) of the Code, elect to defer payment of a Performance-Based Award.

9. Adjustments Upon Certain Events

Notwithstanding any other provisions in the Plan to the contrary, the following provisions shall apply to all Awards granted under the Plan:

(a) In the event of any change in the outstanding Shares after the Effective Date by reason of any Share dividend or split, reorganization, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, spin-off, combination or transaction or exchange of Shares or other corporate exchange, or any distribution to shareholders of Shares other than regular cash dividends or any transaction similar to the foregoing, the Committee, in its sole discretion and without liability to any person, may make such substitution or adjustment, if any, as it deems to be equitable, as to (i) the number or kind of Shares or other securities issued or reserved for issuance pursuant to the Plan or pursuant to outstanding Awards, (ii) the maximum number of Shares for which Options or Stock Appreciation Rights may be granted during a calendar year to any Participant, (iii) the maximum amount of a Performance-Based Award

B-6

Table of Contents

that may be granted during a calendar year to any Participant, (iv) the Option Price or exercise price of any stock appreciation right and/or (v) any other affected terms of such Awards.

(b) In the event a significant corporate transaction such a sale of voting stock, merger, sale of substantial assets, or other similar corporate event involving the Company, occurs after the Effective Date, (i) if determined by the Committee in the applicable Award agreement or otherwise, any outstanding Awards then held by Participants which are unexercisable or otherwise unvested or subject to lapse restrictions may automatically be deemed exercisable or otherwise vested or no longer subject to lapse restrictions, as the case may be, as of immediately prior to such Corporate transaction, and (ii) the Committee may, but shall not be obligated to, (A) cancel such Awards for fair value (as determined in the sole discretion of the Committee) which, in the case of Options and Stock Appreciation Rights, may equal the excess, if any, of value of the consideration to be paid in such corporate transaction to holders of the same number of Shares subject to such Options or Stock Appreciation Rights (or, if no consideration is paid in any such transaction, the Fair Market Value of the Shares subject to such Options or Stock Appreciation Rights) over the aggregate exercise price of such Options or Stock Appreciation Rights or (B) provide for the issuance of substitute Awards that will substantially preserve the otherwise applicable terms of any affected Awards previously granted hereunder as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion or (C) provide that for a period of at least 15 days prior to the consummation of such corporate transaction, such Options shall be exercisable as to all shares subject thereto and that upon the consummation of such corporate transaction, such Options shall terminate and be of no further force and effect.

10. No Right to Employment or Awards

The granting of an Award under the Plan shall impose no obligation on the Company or any Subsidiary to continue the Employment of a Participant and shall not lessen or affect the Company s or Subsidiary s right to terminate the Employment of such Participant. No Participant or other Person shall have any claim to be granted any Award, and there is no obligation for uniformity of treatment of Participants, or holders or beneficiaries of Awards. The terms and conditions of Awards and the Committee s determinations and interpretations with respect thereto need not be the same with respect to each Participant (whether or not such Participants are similarly situated).

11. Successors and Assigns

The Plan shall be binding on all successors and assigns of the Company and a Participant, including without limitation, the estate of such Participant and the executor, administrator or trustee of such estate, or any receiver or trustee in bankruptcy or representative of the Participant s creditors.

12. Nontransferability of Awards

Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, an Award shall not be transferable or assignable by the Participant otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. An Award exercisable after the death of a Participant may be exercised by the legatees, personal representatives or distributees of the Participant.

13. Amendments or Termination

The Board may amend, alter or discontinue the Plan, but no amendment, alteration or discontinuation shall be made, (a) without the approval of the shareholders of the Company, if such action would (except as is provided in Section 9 of the Plan), increase the total number of Shares reserved for the purposes of the Plan or change the maximum number of Shares for which Awards may be granted to any Participant or (b) without the consent of a Participant, if such action would diminish any of the rights of the Participant under any Award theretofore granted to such Participant under the Plan; provided, however, that the Committee may amend the Plan in such manner as it deems necessary to permit the granting of Awards meeting the requirements of the Code or other applicable laws.

B-7

Table of Contents

14. International Participants

With respect to Participants who reside or work outside the United States of America and who are not (and who are not expected to be) covered employees—within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, amend the terms of the Plan or Awards with respect to such Participants in order to conform such terms with the requirements of local law.

15. Choice of Law

The Plan shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without regard to conflicts of laws.

16. Effectiveness of the Plan

The Plan shall be effective as of the Effective Date, subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company.

B-8

Table of Contents

ANNEX C

January 30, 2004

Board of Directors

Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. 744 West Hastings St., #325 Vancouver, BC V6C 1A5 Canada

Members of the Board:

Re: Fairness Opinion

You have requested our Opinion as independent business appraisers as to the fairness (Opinion) of the consideration to be received by Net 1 UEPS Technologies, Inc. (NET or the Company) for the issuance of approximately 105.6 million shares of common stock at a price of \$0.50 per share (the Issuance) to Brait Private Equity (BRAIT) at January 30, 2004 (the Valuation Date). We have not been requested to opine as to, and our Opinion does not in any manner address, the underlying business decision of the Company to proceed with the contemplated acquisition of substantially all of the assets and the assumption of substantially all of the liabilities (the Transaction) of Net Applied Technology Holdings Limited (APLITEC). In addition, we have not been requested to explore any alternatives to the Issuance. The basis for our Opinion is supported by our Valuation Report addressed to Mr. Claude Guerard, Chief Executive Officer of NET dated January 30, 2004.

In arriving at our Opinion, we, among other things, included discussions, meetings, reliance and review of the following:

- a) Form 10Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003 and Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2002;
- b) Discussions with management and directors of NET were undertaken;
- c) Assumptions on NET s market, competitive position and outlook as relayed by NET management at the Valuation Date;
- d) Relevant external and internal public information including economic, investment, industry, public market and transaction data as a background against which to assess findings specific to the business were considered;
- e) Major contracts both existing and anticipated in the very near future for NET, if any, were discussed with management, including any features or factors that may have an influence on value;
 - f) Management s forecast financial statements for the Company; and,
- g) Discussed with management of the Company the nature of the business, past operating results, future prospects with respect to operations, profitability and competition.

In arriving at our Opinion, we relied upon and assumed the accuracy and completeness of all of the financial and other information that was used, without assuming any responsibility for any independent verification of any such information, and further relied upon the assurances of NET s management that they were not aware of any facts or circumstances that would make any such information inaccurate or misleading.

Further, we relied upon representations by NET management that there were no material changes to NET s financial position, results of operations, or the forecast financial statements provided to us subsequent to September 30, 2003, the date of the most current available financial statements provided to

C-1

Table of Contents

us. We have not audited this information as part of our analysis and therefore, we do not express an opinion or other form of assurance regarding the information.

We assumed that the Issuance will comply, in all respects, with the securities laws, trade regulations and other applicable statutes and regulations of the various foreign jurisdictions under which the Issuance may be governed. Our Opinion was based upon market, economic and other conditions as they existed on, and could be evaluated as of, January 30, 2004. Accordingly, although subsequent developments may affect our Opinion, we do not assume any obligation to update, review or reaffirm our Opinion.

In connection with our services, we received a fee for this engagement which was in no way contingent upon the results of our analysis. In addition, the Company has agreed to indemnify us for certain liabilities that may arise out of the rendering of this Opinion. This Opinion is not intended to be and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder of the Company as to how such shareholder should vote, if required to, with respect to either the Issuance or the Transaction.

Our Opinion is for the use and benefit of the Board of Directors of the Company and is rendered to the Board of Directors in connection with its consideration of the Issuance and may not be used by the Company for any other purpose or reproduced, disseminated, quoted or referred to by the Company at any time, in any manner or for any purpose, without the prior written consent of Stenton Leigh Capital Corp., except that this Opinion may be reproduced in full in, and references to the Opinion and to Stenton Leigh Capital Corp. and its relationship with the Company may be included in any proxy statement or registration statement relating to the Issuance that the Company files with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and is distributed to holders of the Company s Common Stock in connection with the Issuance.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, it is our Opinion that, as of the date of this letter, (a) the value of NET is approximately \$.004 per share at January 30, 2004, the Valuation Date and (b) the consideration to be received by NET from BRAIT, is fair.

Very truly yours,

STENTON LEIGH CAPITAL CORP.

Milton H. Barbarosh, CPA, CA, MBA, CBV, ASA President

C-2

Table of Contents